NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held at the Jeffery Room,
Guildhall on Monday, 3 July 2006 at 6:00 pm.

M. McLean
Chief Executive

AGENDA

K= Key decisions
1. APOLOGIES

2 MINUTES

3. DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES
4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

5

ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY Clir Malpas
COMMITTEES

Report of Public Engagement and Communications Task and
Finish Group (copy herewith)

K.. 6. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2006/07 MONITORING (LCPFSP) A. Betts
Report of Corporate Manager (Finance and Asset Management) x 8718
(copy herewith)
7. REVENUE BUDGET 2006/07 (LCPFSP) A. Betts
x 8718

Report of Corporate Manager (Finance and Asset Management)
(copy herewith)

K 8. PAY & GRADING REVIEW- CHOICE OF JOB EVALUATION
SCHEME (BIPSE-G)

This item has been combined with the following one.

K.. 9. PAY & GRADING REVIEW- IMPLEMENTATION RESOURCES  A. Tillson
(BIPSE-G) 7590

Report of Corporate Director (Human Resources) (copy herewith)

10. ITEM WITHDRAWN

11.  ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR STRATEGY (BIPSE-G) D.
Report of Community Safety Manager (copy herewith) )lj%r%l;fon
K.. 12. NEIGHBOURHOOD MANAGEMENT (BIPSIE-G) S. Silver
x 8530

Report of Corporate Manager (Citizen Engagement) (copy
herewith)

13. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS



THE CHAIR TO MOVE:

“THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM THE
REMAINDER OF THE MEETING ON THE GROUNDS THAT
THERE IS LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF SUCH
CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY
SECTION 100(1) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS
LISTED AGAINST SUCH ITEMS OF BUSINESS BY
REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH OF
SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.”



SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA

Exempted Under Schedule

12A of L.Govt Act 1972
Para No:-
14.  LAND AT REAR 20-22 STATION ROAD (LCPFSP) (3) J. Hume
Report of Asset Manager (copy herewith) x 7686
K.. 15,  OPTIONS FOR NEW LEASE OF ROYAL AND (3) S.
DERNGATE THEATRES TO NORTHAMPTON McFadyen
THEATRES TRUST (LCPFSP) x 8177

Report of Asset Manager (copy herewith)

<TRAILER_SECTION>
A4643



REPORT OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND COM!Au\Y\TIDII T.\s2" AND E2H1511 GRIUP

To review how the Gouncil consults and involves
'"a residents and residents satisfaction with
,{,}f their levels of involvement

Report of the Overview and Scrutiny
NORTHAMPTON . - -
BOROUGH COUNCIL Public Engagement and Communications Task and Finish Group

. 8| JUNE2006 |




Index

Chair’s Foreword

Executive Summary

Final Report including recommendations
Action Plan 1
Bibliography

<N OO RN

APPENDICES

Appendix A- Review Scope
Appendix B- Minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2005
Appendix C - Minutes of the meeting held on 2 March 2006

Appendix D - Notes from the visit to the London Borough of
Haringey

Appendix E -Examples of best practice from Beacon Councils for
Getting Closer to Communities

Appendix F - Evaluation of the Focus Group Sessions held on 20"
and 21° April 2006

Appendix G - Proforma document
Appendix H - Results of completed questionnaires

Appendix | - Results of completed questionnaires from the Youth
Forum

Appendix J — Consultation Protocol



FOREWORD

Following a referral from Northampton Borough Council’s Improvement Board,
the Overview & Scrutiny Committee was asked to review the way that the
Council consulted with and engaged its citizens.

It set up a Task & Finish Group consisting of Councillor Christopher Malpas
(Chair), Councillor Brandon Eldred, Councillor Michael Hill, Councillor Anjona
Roy and Councillor Andrew Simpson to carry out the work.

The purpose of the Task and Finish Group’s review was to be able to
demonstrate the extent to which that the Council consults and involves a
satisfactory cross section of residents and that the residents are satisfied with
their levels of involvement. It was decided to adopt the specific criteria which
had been set within in Northampton Borough Council’s Strategy for
Communications and Consultation:-

" To have by July 2006 more than 50% of residents feeling we
consult and involve them and to increase to 55% residents who
are satisfied/very satisfied with us by April 2006’

Although the review was thoroughly scoped at the onset, the subject area
expanded as evidence was taken. Mid-review, the Task and Finish Group
realised that the work needed to be refined and refocused.

The review was designed to examine a diverse range of information.
Interviews were arranged with key front line employees and senior staff from
NBC. Information was taken from Councils who gained beacon status for their
achievements in the ‘Getting Closer to Communities’ category. There was a
visit to the London Borough of Haringey. Baseline information was received
and desktop research was carried out using the Internet. Focus Groups were
conducted with current consultees, and a consultation visit to the Council’s
Youth Forum took place.



The Task and Finish Group commenced in late November 2005 and
concluded in May 2006.

The review proved to be interesting and informative giving clear evidence of
ways that the Council can progress.

Councillor Christopher Malpas
Chair of the Public Engagement and Communications Task and Finish Group

Acknowledgements to all those who took part in the Review:-

e Councillors Michael Hill, Anjona Roy and Andrew Simpson

e Councillor Brendan Glynane (Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee),

e Thomas Hall (Corporate Manager)

e Kay Atkinson (Corporate Manager) and Lindsey Ambrose (Area
Partnerships and Forums Co-Ordinator) for assisting at the Focus
Groups

e Councillor Tony Woods for facilitating a session at the Focus Group.

e Zena Brabazon, Head of Neighbourhood Management, and her team
at the London Borough of Haringey, for arranging the visit to
Neighbourhood Management Services and making the Group feel so
welcome.

e Tracy Tiff for all her work during this project.

e Margaret Martin of the Consortium



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Following a referral from Northampton Borough Council’'s Improvement Board,
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee was asked to review public
engagement and communications within the Council. A Task and Finish
Group was therefore set up to investigate how the Council consults and
engages with its citizens.

Communications and Public Engagement is a key priority in Northampton
Borough Council’'s Recovery Plan and there is a need to ensure that
consultation and community engagement are used effectively by the Council.

The Task and Finish Group established that there is a need for: -

e Clear details of the integrity of customer satisfaction measurement

o Effective consultation

e Consultation mechanisms that ensures residents feel they are
consulted and involved across all services to affect service
improvement.

e A comprehensive consultation process/strategy that is fit for purpose
for the Council.

The Task and Finish Group determined that there were already a number of
examples of consultation within the Council but there was a need for them to
be co-ordinated and brought up to a consistent standard. This Overview and
Scrutiny Task and Finish Group has made a number of recommendations
around consultation methods, citizen engagement and internal processes and
procedures. The recommendations that the Task and Finish Group is
proposing are aiming at increasing public engagement within the Council and
the introduction of improved, standardised consultation methods.

A significant amount of evidence was heard and these are included as
appendices to the report.



Northampton Borough Council

Overview and Scrutiny

Report of the Public Engagement and Communications
Task and Finish Group

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Task and Finish Group was to review the way the Council
consults and involves its citizens, to evaluate how robust mechanisms are and
to suggest areas for improvement.

2. Context

Communications and Public Engagement is a key priority in Northampton
Borough Council’'s Recovery Plan because it was highlighted in the Audit
Commission’s CPA progress Report, June 2005 that: -

“Consultation and community engagement are not used effectively by
the Council. The Council does not yet have strategies in place to
develop these tools.”

The Task and Finish Group needed to be selective in its approach, as
consultation and engagement is a very wide area. It chose therefore to focus
on two key outcomes from Northampton Borough Council’'s Strategy for
Communications and Consultation: -

“To have by July 2006 more than 50% of residents feeling we consult and
involve them and to increase to 55% residents who are satisfied/very satisfied
with us by April 2006.”

The Group established that there is a need for: -

e Councillors to have a true picture of the integrity of customer
satisfaction measurement (that they are for example, truthful, honest,
and decent) and to understand that it is measured in the right way.

e Clear recommendations about how effective consultation should
happen.

e Scrutiny of consultation mechanisms to ensure as many residents as
possible feel they are consulted and involved across all services to
affect service improvement.

e The identification of the risks that could prevent the overall targets
being achieved.

e A comprehensive consultation strategy and process that is fit for
purpose for the Council.

e Evaluation of the Communication and Consultation Strategy.



The Council’s Recovery Plan (March 2006 to September 2006) states that
good quality citizen engagement is required for:

o “Services that are directly shaped by our customers and convenient
to them

e Clear, timely, effective and accurate two way communication with
residents, stakeholders and employees

e Continually improving local and national reputation and profile

e Celebrate successes on the journey to Excellence”

Mid-review, the Group realised that it had taken on a very large remit and the
original scope was therefore not likely to be completed within the allotted time
frame. After looking at the evidence and information gathered, Councillors
agreed that further work was required to complete the review and therefore
extended the completion date from March to May 2006.

3. Evidence

In scoping the review it was decided that evidence would be taken from a
variety of sources:

3.1 Corporate Manager (Citizen Engagement)

Thomas Hall, Corporate Manager, NBC, who provided Public Engagement
and Communication baseline information, which detailed a sample of the
types of consultation that was taking place. It was apparent that consultation
had been uncoordinated in the past with services undertaking their own
consultation as the need arose. In certain service areas considerable sums
were spent on consultation but Area Partnerships often felt that they were not
aware of the consultation, not invited to partake and there was no feedback.
(Appendix B refers - minutes of 14 December 2005 meeting)

3.2 Front Line Employees

Key front line employees were interviewed regarding consultation in respect
of:

e The Budget — Alison Betts, Finance Manager

e Planning (Development Control) — Derrick Simpson, Project Manager

e Area Partnerships and Forums - Sean Silver, Community
Development Manager, Lindsey Cameron, Participation Team Leader,
Lindsey Ambrose, Area Partnerships and Forums Co-Ordinator

The key points from the interviews were: -

e Timing for the budget consultation was significant if people are to
believe their views will be acted upon

e Development Control is an example where a high number of people
are consulted. It demonstrates where there needs to be a compromise



between the cost, numbers consulted and the quality of the
consultation which the Council would need to address.

e The Council could make more use of Area Partnerships as forums for
consultation.

(Appendix C refers minutes of 2 March 2006 meeting)
3.3 Best Practice Visit

Councillors Christopher Malpas, Michael Hill, Andrew Simpson and Brendan
Glynane (Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee) visited the London
Borough of Haringey, a Beacon Council for Getting Closer to its Communities.
A presentation from the Head of Neighbourhood Management was given,
followed by a question and answer session. The Group had a tour of the work
of Neighbourhood Management and met with a Cabinet Councillor, the
Beacon Co-Coordinator, the Communications Manager and community
workers. The Group felt that a lot of the procedures and policies used by the
London Borough of Haringey could be adopted by Northampton Borough
Council. (Appendix D refers — notes of the visit to the London Borough of
Haringey)

The key points from the visit were: -

Difference between informing and consulting

Neighbourhood Management

Having a learning mindset

Citizens with rights and responsibilities not just residents

Developing civic pride

Giving citizens a genuine say in what happens in local decision making

34 Beacon Councils

Examples of best practice were required from Local Authorities who had
achieved Beacon status for Getting Closer to Communities, including:

e Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council
e London Borough of Croydon
e Wiltshire County Council
e London Borough of Haringey
(Appendix E gives examples of the above)

Examples of best practice included:

e The use of corporate branding to promote the Council
e Consulting within neighbourhood working to engage with citizens



3.5 Desktop Research — Council website

Councillor Andrew Simpson carried out desktop research (web based) and as
a result concentrated on the City of Westminster Council. He perceived
Northampton Borough Council’'s website to be very good but he felt that
Westminster's navigation was better structured. Northampton Borough
Council’s website was still very departmentalised and used a lot of jargon.
Westminster published a questionnaire on its website "what do you think of
the Council and its website.” At the top of the homepage, different languages
were detailed and the user could click on the link to be directed to the relevant
language. Westminster had a one-city vision for the Council — branding
Westminster as one city. The London Borough of Haringey also used
corporate branding (Better Haringey), although it concentrated on identifying
more localised areas to give a feeling of "'neighbourhood communities.” As a
result of the information provided, the Task and Finish Group supported the
effective use of branding in encouraging citizen engagement.

The key findings were: -

e Feedback form on the website

o Different languages supported clearly

e The website was constructed around service areas rather than
departments, based on what the citizens wanted to do

e The website included a vision for the city

3.6 Focus Groups — Community

Focus Group sessions entitled Because your Opinion Matters were held on
different days and times in April 2006 to ensure the widest possible
attendance. They were called to ascertain the public’s perception of how well
Northampton Borough Council consults. Feedback from the Focus Group
sessions was varied and the results are annexed to Appendix F.  Proformas
were available at the Focus Group sessions for individuals wishing to discuss
issues that were outside the remit of the purpose of the Focus Group. (Copy
attached— Appendix G). The Group felt it would be useful for the proforma to
be adapted so that it could be used generically within the Council.

The main comments from the six groups sessions were: -

Good Consultation that has been carried out by Northampton Borough
Council

e Area Partnerships and Forums

Features of Poor Consultation that has been carried out by Northampton
Borough Council

e Consultation feedback, including that from Area Partnerships
e Councillors’ responses to citizens telephone calls
e The use of over-complex language



e The lack of consistent, professional approach to consultation
e Response from the Council (including letters, telephone, email etc)

Features of Consultation that could improve

Residents’ ability to challenge/review decisions

Engagement at local level in service improvement and consultation
Use of Community Centres for meetings and consultation events
Timing and location of meetings

Provide information about the role of Councillors

Clarify the roles of Northampton Borough Council and
Northamptonshire County Council, but provide a seamless service

e Communicate results of consultation and actions from it — follow it
through

Over the course of this review, issues that would improve communication
were: -

e Alternative means of communicating, for example, access to electronic
communication, such as PC’s located in the one stop shop.
e Better identification of Ward Councillors

3.7 Questionnaires

Consultation Questionnaires were issued to attendees at the Focus Group
sessions, individuals who requested a copy and a wide distribution list. All
completed questionnaires were analysed. It was apparent from the
completed questionnaires that the maijority of individuals understood why the
Council wished to consult with them. The majority had taken part in Council
consultations and about half thought that their views were not taken into
account. Individuals completing the questionnaires comprised mainly adults
and many of them had a background of being engaged with the Council’s
processes. It is recognised that this is not a representative sample and the
Group acknowledges there is future work to be done identifying the views of
citizens it has not managed to engage with.

The issues identified from the questionnaires that citizens voted to be their top
three priority issues for the future -

- Transportation 13 votes
- Revive Town Centre 11 votes
- Security/Policing 10 votes

Some of the questionnaires did not have all sections or boxes completed. The
comprehensive results of the consultation questionnaires are attached at
Appendix H.



3.8 Youth Forum

Councillor Malpas attended a meeting of the Youth Forum on 18 April 2006
and informed the young people of the Focus Group Sessions. It was
apparent from the questionnaires completed by the Youth Forum that only half
of the attendees understood why the Council wishes to consult with its
citizens. The majority had taken part in Council consultation and most
considered that their views were not taken into account.

The issues that the Youth Forum voted to be its top three priority issues for
consultation were: -

e Budget 13 votes
e Employment for young people 7 votes
e Youth Clubs/things to do 6 votes

The comprehensive results of the Youth Forum completed questionnaires are
attached at Appendix I.

3.9 Northampton Borough Council’s existing Consultation Protocol

The Task and Finish Group received a copy of Northampton Borough
Council’s Consultation Protocol that was currently in existence. It was felt that
this needed to be expanded upon and suggested amendments were made
(Appendix J refers)

4 Conclusions

4.1  The Group determined that there were already a number of examples
of consultation within the Council but that they were not necessarily co-
ordinated or of equal quality, and the cost and effectiveness of
consultation exercises was not uniformly collected or available.

e Every public facing service should be in a position to know how its
customers regard it.

e A plan should be developed showing how services will get to that
position.

e There is the need for a more coherent approach. The Council wants to
be a customer focussed organisation but cannot judge its success in
this, as it does not measure it.

e There is a need for a clear mechanism for consultation supported by a
consistent style. Consultation guidance should be produced and
issued to all Council service areas. All consultation data should go to
one central unit, which should be centrally collated (Community
intelligence — access of information).

4.2 The Group felt that the target below was a good target but the
timescales to achieve such a stretching target were unrealistic:

10



4.3

“To have by July 2006 more than 50% of residents feeling we consult
and involve them and to increase to 55% residents who are
satisfied/very satisfied with us by April 2006.”

In the course of preparing the Communications Strategy, figures had
been proposed by consultants as no measurements were in place;
these had been accepted by Cabinet. There was a need to look at the
figures as a longer-term aspiration. Measurement had not as yet been
looked at in detail. A standard satisfaction survey was due in the
autumn. (Appendix C refers minutes of 2 March 2006 meeting.)

Evidence was taken from the service areas, budget, planning, area
partnerships. Forums were chosen because they were of broad and
significant impact on the citizens and Council involving large numbers
of individuals. It became evident that:

Good Practice

(a) Rapid improvement in consultation is possible with much more
engagement than in previous years, by learning from good
practice.

Consultation and Change

(b)  There needs to be a clear link from consultation to change, and
this needs to be communicated back to the people who the
Council consults. For example, if views emerge through
consultation, they must be able to affect decisions, and the
people consulted need to know that they have affected decision-
making. Greater use of the media to explain changes would be
helpful. This applies to all the examples looked at.

Timing
(c) Timing is significant, if people are to believe their views will be
acted on.

Types of Information

(d) It is necessary to review the kind of information presented to
support consultation, to ensure that it can be understood and
addresses the issues people need to know about in order to
make informed comments.

Development Control
(e) Development Control is an example of very high volume

consultation. There is a compromise between cost, humbers
consulted and quality of consultation, which the Council would

11



4.4

4.5

need to address. This is an opportunity to reach a large volume
of citizens.

There are challenges in assessing satisfaction with consultation
or process, independently from satisfaction with the result (e.g. if
the planning application is approved when you did not want it to
be, would you be pleased with the process?) More imaginative
ways of assessing views and the effectiveness on the process
may be needed.

Development Control consultation also provides an example of
the difficulty of consulting all the interested people effectively,
which may suggest a continuing need to open up greater and
more accessible information channels for all sectors of the
community (e.g. website).

As with other forms of consultation, it was not clear why some
people did not respond and whether there are any patterns
which would help us to reach out to these people.

Area Partnerships and Forums

The Council could make more use of Area Partnerships and
Forums as opportunities for consultation. But there is a tension
between the Council setting the agenda in deciding what is to be
consulted about, and local people raising issues of their own
concern. Consultation is only one form of citizen engagement
and it should be supplemented with mechanisms which allow
citizens to initiate or add to the debate.

Area Partnerships are not always truly representative in nature
and there is no clear analysis or knowledge who attends and
who stays away.

There is no clear route for the issues raised at Area
Partnerships to influence the Council’s decision-making.

Area Partnerships provide, potentially, a locality perspective and
an opportunity for consultation. This opportunity is not therefore
exploited to its potential.

It would be advantageous to re-convene the Focus Group in 12 months

time using the same questions to ascertain whether the views or
participants have changed. This could constitute part of the monitoring
process for the outcomes of this review.

The Council does not know enough about which groups are reached
by its consultation and engagement mechanisms, and which are left
out. This creates a risk of false confidence in the results. (Appendix C
refers). The consultation agenda needs to be balanced by the provision

12



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

412

4.13

4.14

of regular and systematic opportunities for diverse groups of citizens to
raise issues of concern and see something done about them. Different
people have different requirements and there is a need have different
forms of consultation for widespread accessibility to the process.

Using the results of consultations is variable. There needs to be a
method by which outcomes of consultation can be seen to be built in to
decision-making, service planning and priority setting processes and
the demonstrable evidence for these excluded. A section on the
bottom of reports asking who was consulted is not enough especially, if
nothing is done with the outcomes. A summary of the consultation
should also be attached.

Consultees were often frustrated that, when they did take part, they did
not see or hear the results. Any consultation exercise should be
planned to include this feedback.

The costs and benefits of these exercises do not appear to be
calculated and accounted for. There appears to be no dedicated
budget for consultation which makes for difficulty in producing a co-
ordinated Council consultation mechanism.

It appears that the Council tends to set an agenda for consultation,
determining what questions are to be asked. There needs to be an
opportunity for citizens to be part of the agenda setting rather than just
the Council.

“‘Northampton Now” is a Council produced document and is clearly not
reaching out to citizens effectively as it was not mentioned as a means
of consultation from the Focus Group sessions or in any of the other
consultation undertaken by this Task and Finish Group.

On the basis of good practice Councils that the Task and Finish Group
examined, it was felt that the Council would engage more citizens
effectively if it developed neighbourhood working and consulted within
these structures.

Currently there is no way of measuring how Councillors, in their role as
Community Leaders, help to achieve the consultation and engagement
targets in the Council. Councillors are part of the public face of the
Council and need to be supported and engaged in the process.

The Council needs to embrace the national developments in a more
strategic sense. Text (SMS) messaging has been piloted at Liverpool
City Council and Renfrewshire Council as a means of consulting
effectively with harder to reach groups.

Clear signposting and branding helps citizens to understand who is
asking what of them and who is providing certain services. This was

13



4.15

demonstrated well by the London Borough of Haringey, Tameside
Metropolitan Borough Council and the City of Westminster. This could

be particularly valuable where there is confusion as to the role of
Borough and County Councils.

It was significant that where more effective consultation existed in

the Council there were specific employees who had responsibility for
this area of work.

14



5. Recommendations

For ease of delivery, the following series of recommendations are grouped in
specific areas: -

1 Management and Resources

1.1 Northampton Borough Council identifies a member of staff, from
the Communication or Community Development Service Area, with
specific responsibility for consultation for the Council.

1.2 There is a need for a budget for providing advice on
consultation. Each service area must provide for consultation in its own
budgets. The relevant budgetary measures should be allocated in the
next budget process.

1.3 All consultation exercises should be planned to include feedback
to the participants.

14 The costs and benefits of these exercises should be calculated
in full before the process starts.
2 Information and Co-Ordination

2.1 All consultation data and the results of analysis should be
accessible from a central source.

2.2 The outcomes of all consultations should be made available to
all services.

3 Systems and Protocols
3.1 Appropriate corporate consultation mechanisms should be in

place by the autumn to give the Council meaningful results. A baseline
should be established in order that progress can be monitored.

3.2 Northampton Borough Council should adopt an effective
consultation protocol to circulate internally and externally within the
Council. A starting draft has been produced by this Task and Finish
Group. (Appendix J refers)

3.3 A Corporate Policy and implementation process on consultation
and engagement should be produced.

3.4 The proforma used at the Focus Group sessions should be
adapted so that it can be used generically within the Council.

15



3.5 The results of consultations need to be built in to decision-
making, service planning and priority setting processes in the Council.

3.6 Northampton Borough Council should make use of
neighbourhood working for consultation processes and wider working
potential.

3.7 Plain language should be used in all Council documents in order
that any member of the public is able to access Council material.

3.8 It would be helpful for a guidance to be produced on Council and
Local Authority terminology.

3.9 Councillors should be supported in their role liaising between the
Council and the community and be provided with appropriate means and
methods for feeding back the outcomes of consultations in their
communities.

Engagement with Diverse Communities

4.1 Current methods of consultation should be supplemented with
other mechanisms to reach a larger and more diverse population allowing
citizens to initiate or add to the debate. For example — Community Groups
could be encouraged and supported to bring issues, concerns and ideas
directly to the Council.

4.2 A corporate brand that helps Northampton Borough Council to
bring consistency and inspire confidence should be developed.

Future Work and Review
5.1 The consultation exercise undertaken as part of the review by
this Task and Finish Group be used as the benchmark in 12 months time
to see what improvements the Council has made in that period of time.
5.2. Another piece of focussed work should be undertaken to ensure
that the Council is accessing all groups in the community in a systematic
and regular way.

5.3 It is proposed that the Task and Finish Group reviews progress
of this review in six months (December 2006/January 2007).

16



External Consultation

Kath Suer to devote 50% of time as a secondee

Consolidate plan for existing consultations to
produce calendar

Develop consultation framework based on
Beacon Councils who have won awards

Develop “Near-term” Consultation Plan

Gain indications of magnitude of cost and
approach, views and inputs from prospective
suppliers (MORI, RBA, BMG, Research for
today etc.)

Initiate procurement / tendering process

Manage delegation of consultations to corporate
managers

Sweep departmental consultations into
corporate programme

Public consultations work plan 2006
Geoff Wilkins / Kath

Suer

Geoff Wilkins

Kath Suer

Geoff Wilkins
Kath Suer

Geoff Wilkins
Kath Suer

Geoff Wilkins
Kath Suer

Geoff Wilkins
Mario Abela
Alison Betts

Kath Suer
Geoff Wilkins

05/05/06

31/05/06

31/05/06

16/06/06

15/07/06

17/07/06

1/08/06

Plan & review ongoing (Commenced)
Secondee agreement made Geoff Wilkins & Mairi
McLean - Done

Agreed by Ella Yeshin/Kath Suer
Agreed with Mario Abela/Thomas Hall - Done

Only statutory consultations planned — consolidated to
work plan

GW contacted 7 Beacon Councils for “Getting Closer to
the Communities”

Process documentation obtained

Completed — see attached

In process



Assess costs, budget
Review and agree

Identify Funding & commit

Complete instructing supplier(s) for September 1

commencement

Initiate consultation programme for 2006
(Completion 15-12-06)

Set up review, quality assurance, audit
guidelines

Resolve permanent staff appointment
(recruitment)

Ongoing review, quality assurance, audit

Develop guidelines and protocols for External
Consultations

Progress and project management reviews

Agree future performance measures and
objectives

Geoff Wilkins
Kath Suer
Mario Abela
Alison Betts

Mario Abela

Geoff Wilkins
Kath Suer

Corporate
managers

Geoff Wilkins
Kath Suer

Mario Abela
Kath Suer

Consultation
Manager

Communications

Manager

Consultation
Manager

Communications

Manager

Consultation
Manager

Performance
Manager

Communications

11/08/06

18/08/06
24/08/06

24/08/06

24/08/06

24/08/06

Commence 1/09/06
ongoing

29/09/06

Commencing 15/09/06
fortnightly

31/10/06



Feasibility Review of Information Management
Systems requirements (Consultation, analysis
and database management)

Plan next phase

Manager

Consultation
Manager
Communications
Manager

Consultation
manager
Communications
manager

31/10/06

01/11/06



Draft corporate public consultation plan 2006

Public consultation | Status CM / Mgr Supplier

Budget Planned for Alison Betts None identified
September

Corporate plan Planned for Ella Yeshin / None identified
September Simone Wade

Customer service In process Kay Atkinson MORI

(Collaboration with
NCC & others)

Customer contact
centre

Ongoing customer
telephone survey

Kay Atkinson

None required

Tenants Early stage Fran Rodgers None identified
planning

Benefits Early stage Fran Rodgers None identified
planning

Planning Early stage Christine None identified
planning Stevenson

Waste, recycling, Government Carl Grimmer MORI (Govt.

streetscene survey in place sponsored)

Waste, recycling, Carl Grimmer Not known

streetscene

Environmental Christine None identified

health Stevenson

Community safety Thomas Hall / None identified

Deborah Ferguson

Communities / Thomas Hall / None identified

equality / diversity Sean Silver

Sports & Leisure Christine None identified

Stevenson

Promoting the David Taylor None identified

local economy (Director) / Chris

(The town centre) Cavanagh

Staff survey

Planned for
September

Howard Crabtree

None identified

Geoffrey Wilkins June 2006




BIBLIOGRAPHY
Audit Commission’s CPA Report, June 2005

Northampton Borough Council’'s Recovery Plan, March 2006 to
September 2006

Key Lines of Enquiry for Corporate Governance Inspection (2005
version)

Northampton Borough Council’'s Communication Plan

Communications, Consultation and Engagement - Report for
Northampton Borough Council

Engagement — Northampton Borough Council’'s Strategy for
Communications and Consultation

Northampton Borough Council Corporate Identity Handbook
Area Partnership Attendance — November 2004 - January 2006

The Beacon Council Scheme 2004 — Application Form _ Wiltshire
County Council

West Wiltshire Community Strategy 2004-2005
Tottenham and Seven Sisters Area Assembly News — October 2005
Haringey Residents Survey 2005/06:digest

Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council — Consultation Strategy
2003/04

Croydon City Council — Neighbourhood Partnership and Community
Involvement

Policing: Engaging Local People (September 2003) — National
Extension College



Appendices



Appendix A
NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATIONS
TASK AND FINISH GROUP

REVIEW SCOPE

To have by July 2006 more than 50% of residents feeling we consult and
involve them and to increase to 55% residents who are satisfied/very

satisfied with us by April 2006

1 PURPOSE/OBJECTIVES OF THE REVIEW

To be able to demonstrate that the Council consult and involve more
residents and that the residents are satisfied with their levels of
involvement.

2 POTENTIAL OUTCOMES

Councillors have a true picture of the integrity customer satisfaction
measurement (for example, true, honest, decent) and understand
that it is measured in the right way.

Clear recommendations about how effective consultation should
happen.

Scrutiny of consultation mechanisms to ensure all residents feel
they are consulted and involved across all services to affect service
improvement.

The identification of the risks that may occur that would prevent the
overall targets being achieved.

A comprehensive consultation process/strategy that is fit for
purpose for the Council.

Evaluation of the Engagement Strategy.

3 INFORMATION REQUIRED

How each service area is approaching the targets

Who is taking responsibility for these targets across the Council
What is the current percentage of residents who feel consulted and
involved — and why do they feel consulted and involved

Best practice within Northampton (other public bodies) and best
practice external to Northampton

What budget is allocated to achieve the targets

How do Councillors in their role as Community Leaders help to
achieve the targets



What feedback mechanisms are in place when a resident contacts
the Council or takes part in consultations

How the Council measures the satisfaction of residents

The current IT system’s effectiveness to meet the Council’s
requirements.

The use of text messaging as a means of engaging particularly
young people, in the consultation mechanisms

The methods used to conduct previous survey(s)/consultation.

4 FORMAT OF INFORMATION

Baseline Data

Existing surveys

Officer briefings/reports/presentations

Residents "Mystery Shopping’ exercises

Past examples of public engagement (good and bad)
Interviews

Marketing/public relations expert

Specialists in public opinion surveying

Newspaper reporter/editor

5 METHODS USED

Interviews of key front line staff
Focus Groups

Random sample of residents
Visit/talks from other organisations
Desk top research/ web based
Questionnaires

Examples of best practice

6 CO-OPTION TO THE TASK AND FINISH GROUP
Suggestions:

Residents
Other Councillors

7 TIMETABLE

November to March 2006

8 RESPONSIBLE OFFICERS

Lead Officer Thomas Hall
Co-Ordinator Tracy Tiff

9 RESOURCES AND BUDGET

Communications Officer, one day a week, until the end of the Review



10 FINAL REPORT

Completed by March 2006. Presented by the Chair of the Task and Finish
Group to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and then to Cabinet.

On the basis of the recommendations being accepted, we will baseline the
data previous to the findings compared to the data after the implementation of
the recommendations.

11 MONITORING PROCESS

Key milestones identified under review

Review dates established and evidence required

Review the impact of the report after six months (September 2006)



Appendix B
NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Public Engagement and Communications Task and Finish
Group

Wednesday, 14 December 2005

Present:

Councillor Brendan Glynane
Councillor Andrew Simpson
Councillor Anjona Roy
Thomas Hall

Margaret Martin

Apologies:
Councillor B Eldred
Councillor C Malpas
Councillor M Hill

1 Minutes of last Meeting

The minutes were accepted and no further discussion was required.

2 Baseline Data

Thomas Hall issued a copy of the baseline data for discussion. This is work in
progress and is a sample of the types of consultation that are taking place.
There are gaps eg planning, streetscene and it is anticipated that more
information on consultation conducted by NBC will be available by the end of
the year.

It is apparent that consultation has been unco-ordinated in the past with
services undertaking their own as the need arose. There are no corporate
standards for consultation.

Discussion followed on what constitutes the “general public’, who was the
consultation particularly aimed at, more detail required on the frequency of
consultation and the numbers of people consulted and responding. To ensure
50% of residents feel we have consulted with them we need to establish types
and numbers of those we do consult with and get a sense of scale.

In certain service areas considerable sums are spent on consultation but Area
Partnerships often feel that they are not aware of the consultation, not invited
and there is no feedback.



The outcomes from consultation should be fed back and explanations
provided as to why we sometimes are not able to deliver what we are asked
for.

Suggested questions to gather more information:

Is any feedback given post consultation

Costs

Are others consulting on the same topic or related matters]
How do we ensure it is representative

Value for money

Evaluation

Need to look at other authorities who have good communication and
consultation arrangements — a starting point for this would be those councils
who have been recommended or have won awards in this field with Local
Government Chronicle or APSE.

UCN may be able to assist in involving young people.

Agreed in the future to look at external bodies; companies/ charities to look at
the methodology used to engage people - how do they obtain public opinion
which feeds into providing better products / services also what budget they
allocate to such projects.

Public Relations Plan is part of the strategy as well as the development of a
proactive approach to promoting our message.

Summary:

T Hall to continue to populate the data adding size of consultation and the
perception rating (internal view) of its effectiveness

Key Lines of Enquiry especially Theme 1 are very relevant to the work of this
group and could be incorporated.

This meeting has identified the gaps

Next meeting will look at the data.

Thomas please note:

Future meeting dates to be arranged with Tracy Feltham on her return
Root and Branch structure available on the intranet but can be copied to all
councillors.



Appendix C
NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATIONS
TASK AND FINISH GROUP

2 March 2006

PRESENT:

Councillor C Malpas Chair
Councillor M Hill
Councillor A Simpson

Councillor Glynane Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Thomas Hall Corporate Manager

Lindsey Ambrose Area Partnerships and Forums Co-
Ordinator

Margaret Martin Consortium

1 APOLOGIES

An apology for absence was received from Councillor A Roy.
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were none.

3 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 17 February 2006 were agreed as a true
record.

4 REVIEW OF DESKTOP RESEARCH AND 5 FEEDBACK FOR VISIT TO
BEST PRACTICED AUTHORITY

Consideration of items 4 and 5 were taken together.

T Hall, Corporate Manager, had sent an email to the Task and Finish Group
suggesting Local Authorities of best practice that Councillors could carry out
desktop research. Results of the desktop research would be presented to the
next meeting on 16 March.

L Ambrose had obtained information from Tameside Metropolitan Council,
Beacon Council for Getting Close to its Communities. She had also attended
a presentation on the Authority’s Area Committees and Decentralisation —
District Assemblies.



Tameside MBC disseminated its good practice and its key messages are:

Involving Citizens

Strong Partnership

Innovative Consultation Mechanisms
Engaging Young People

Sharing Practice through practical help

Practice based website
How to Guides
Themed Open days
One to One visits

Resourcing the Dissemination Plan

Partnership Approach

Training and Event Organisation
Practical Advice

Use of Mainstream Resources

Tameside MBC has eight District Assemblies for a population of 225,000
based on recognisable local townships. They were introduced in 1998. The
District Assemblies have decision-making powers. Their remit is mainly street
scene, but there is some variance between the District Assemblies, each
having their own budgets.

L Ambrose was not aware of published terms of reference for the District
Assemblies. M Martin confirmed that Nottingham City Council’'s Area
Partnerships had published terms of reference. The terms of reference was
the same for each Area: Partnership and linked in to the Local Plan.

Tameside MBC’s District Assemblies involved young people. Breakfast
meetings were held to involve the business community.

The Task and Finish Group was informed of the District Assembly
Framework:

e 6to 12 Councillors in each Assembly

Some Councillors sat on two Assemblies because of Ward/Township
boundary differences

2-3 business representatives

2-3 voluntary/community group representatives

1-2 residents/tenant representatives

2-3 elected high school representatives (14-16 year old students)

Local Police, fire service and the public.



An issue that Tameside had was how to make the District Assembly
representative, the Task and Finish Group felt that this was a question
that could be asked when it visited a Council of best practice.

Attendance at the District Assemblies was around 1,800 per year out of a
population of 45,000 per District Assembly. The Task and Finish Group felt
this to be an example of good engagement and also commented that on a
scale basis, attendance at NBC’s Area Partnerships was comparable. NBC’s
Area Partnerships also had regular attendees and for contentious issues, in
particular planning, a lot of people would attend the meeting.

Part of the meeting of the District Assembly became Open Forum — Have your
Say (question time), approximately 12 questions per meeting were asked by
the public.

The minutes of the meetings of the District Assemblies were referred to
Tameside’s Full Council.

The Chair perceived the District Assemblies to be of a similar format to
Northamptonshire County Council (NCC)'s old Area Committee System.

T Hall advised that there was a need to ensure that NBC’s Area Partnerships
networked with neighbourhood management. There were a number of
directions that could be followed but there was a need to ensure that they
linked up properly.

M Martin suggested that a copy of Tameside MBC’s
consultation/Engagement Strategy be obtained for the Task and Finish
Group’s information. It would also be advantageous to have details of
its satisfaction feedback and also details of how the Council consults
with individuals who did not attend District Assemblies.

T Hall advised that strengthening NBC’s Area Partnerships could only be part
of the Task and Finish Group’s recommendations.

Tameside MBC had also introduced Tameside Voice — Tameside-

Wider Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Forum — an effective,
accountable and representative structure. It embraced diversity of
Tameside’s communities through a wide range of member networks and
forums. It enabled everyone who wanted to get involved and have a say and
promoted the interests of Tameside communities, organisations and residents
at all levels of strategic partnership working. Councillor Glynane supported
Tameside Voice, commenting that NBC had a perfect venue to hold such
an event — the Great Hall.

The Task and Finish Group was then referred to the London Borough of
Croydon. It had ten Neighbourhood Partnerships, which were first set up in
2000. The purpose of the Partnerships was to consult, encourage comment
on the provision of service locally and influence policies of the Council and its
partnership agencies as they affected particular geographical areas. Croydon



had similar problems to NBC with its Area Partnerships. Often people would
come to an Area Partnership meeting to voice concern; therefore the
Partnerships lacked meaningful consultation. It held a review of its
Partnerships and found that different Council departments were using the
Partnerships differently and inconsistently, but these Partnerships were part of
what made the London Borough of Croydon a Beacon Council. It was
suggested that it would be beneficial to ascertain what Croydon had
done since its review.

The Task and Finish Group commented: -

e Beneficial to hold an event similar to Tameside Voice, possibly the
week before Full Council

e Advantageous for Area Partnerships to have decision-making powers.

e Planning issues achieved high attendance at Area Partnership
meetings.

L Ambrose confirmed that she would attend the Group’s next two meetings.

The Task and Finish Group was reminded that T Hall had carried out research
into other Local Authorities of good practice and had forwarded details to the
Group for information, which contained details for the Local Government
Chronicle’s annual awards, which included “Community Involvement’.
Councils that were short-listed included Brighton and Hove, Bristol City and
Cambridgeshire CC. Tameside MBC was a 'Beacon’ Council for Getting
Closer to Communities and the Institute of Public Relations has a good Local
Government section, which makes a series of awards in relevant categories,
which includes awards for Internal Communications (Liverpool City Council)
and Civic Newspaper (Colchester Borough Council). T Hall suggested that
from the work carried out, the Task and Finish Group had identified
areas that it required more information on, what the key issues were and
that key learning issues that should be brought back from other Local
Authorities. He undertook to provide this information.

As the Group had received information from Tameside it was suggested to
visit another Local Authority of best practice. T Hall confirmed that he would
devise a list of questions that could be asked on the visit.

A visit to a best practice Local Authority would be arranged possibly to
a London Borough on 20™ or 21%t March. Councillors Malpas, Hill and
Simpson expressed an interest on attending. As soon as a visit had
been arranged, Councillors would be issued with the details.

6 REVIEW OF ORIGINAL SCOPING DOCUMENT
The Task and Finish Group reviewed its original scoping document,

identifying whether there were any issues that required further information or
analysis.



The purpose of the review was to be able to demonstrate that the Council
consults and involves more residents and that the residents are satisfied with
their levels of involvement.

The Task and Finish Group discussed potential outcomes: It was
emphasised that they were potential outcomes and the Group had taken a too
big remit initially.

1 Councillors have a true picture of the integrity customer satisfaction
measurement (for example, true, honest, decent) and understand that it is
measured in the right way. The Group commented that the Council had
various pieces of consultation being undertaken but there was not a central
unit to “pull it all together’. There has not been a robust analysis of the
measurement of customer satisfaction. There are however specific indicators,
for example tenant satisfaction, but there are plenty of areas with no such
indicators. A potential conclusion could be that there were no standards;
every public facing service should be in a position to know how its
customers regarded it. A plan should be developed showing how
services get to that position. There was the need for a more coherent
approach. The Task and Finish Group recognised that the Council
wants to be a customer focussed organisation but cannot judge its
success, as it does not measure it.

2 Clear recommendations about how effective consultation should
happen. At an early meeting the Task and Finish Group had made
suggestions regarding consultation. There was a need for a clear
mechanism, with some central theme. Consultation guidance should be
produced and issued. All consultation data should go to one central
unit, which should be centrally collated. (Community intelligence -
access of information).

3 Scrutiny of consultation mechanisms to ensure all residents feels they
are consulted and involved across all services to affect service improvement.
Councillors commented that this potential outcome related to 2 above.

4 The identification of the risks that may occur that would prevent the
overall targets being achieved. The Group had ascertained that
no measurement was in place. Targets had been set as part of
the Recovery Plan, for example: To have by July 2006 more than
50% of residents feeling we consult and involve them and to
increase to 55% residents who are satisfied/very satisfied with us
by April 2006. T Hall confirmed that in the course of preparing
the Communications Strategy, figures had been proposed by
consultants, which had been accepted by the Cabinet. He felt
there was a need to look at the figures as a longer-term
aspiration, especially as we were already in March. Regarding
measurement, T Hall advised that this had not as yet been
looked at in detail. A standard satisfaction survey was due in
the autumn. He added that there were some Local Authorities
that set similar target but they were usually good or excellent



Councils. The Group suggested that its recommendations
could include that this was not a realistic target and there was
a need for appropriate methods to be in place by the autumn
to give the Council meaningful results.

5 A comprehensive consultation process/strategy that is fit for purpose for
the Council. A Communications Strategy had been produced and
approved. A Consultation Protocol was also in existence but was rarely
used. The Protocol had not been approved and at this stage was
guidance only. Councillors suggested that it could be recommended
that the Consultation Protocol be adopted. The Group requested that a
copy of the Consultation Protocol be presented to the next meeting.

6 Evaluation of the Engagement Strategy. This potential outcome relates
to 5 above.

The Task and Finish Group then discussed the information required section of
its Initial Scoping Document:

1 How each service area is approaching the targets.
2 Who is taking responsibility for these targets across the Council?

3 What is the current percentage of residents who feel consulted and
involved — and why do they feel consulted and involved

1 -3 above had been dealt with whilst discussing potential outcomes.

4 Best practice within Northampton (other public bodies)( and best
practice external to Northampton and 5 What budget is allocated to achieve
the targets Northampton Today was a Council produced document.
Departments should be able to measure success; therefore there was a
need for a budget. There should also be a central pot for consultation.
A recommendation could be that the Council lacks specialist knowledge
in consultation and there is a need for a consultation budget, whether or
not the Council is successful in its bid to for funding from the Capacity
Building Fund. Budget Heads would be reviewed in May and within
these budgets there is a need for allocation to continuous consultation.
It was also important that there was one common budget for
consultation.

6 How do Councillors in their role as Community Leaders help to achieve
the targets In respect of what Councillors expectations were via public
meetings, surgeries etc. how did Councillors know that the public was
satisfied with them? The Group felt that there was no way of measuring
this. One of the political groups had; produced a feedback form
measuring caseload work. Political Groups did things differently, based
on political parties and the wards. The Task and Finish Group
commented that Councillors were the public face of the Council. The
recommendation could state that Councillors needed to be supported in



their role, being provided with the correct information and models of
feedback.

7 What feedback mechanisms are in place when a resident contacts the
Council or takes part in consultations. Covered during discussion of the
potential outcomes.

8  How the Council measures the satisfaction of resident Covered during
discussion of the potential outcomes.

9 The current IT systems effectiveness to meet the Council’s requirements.
A Central Unit does not exist. The recommendation could state that
there was a need for a Central Unit to bring all information together on a
central database system.

10 The use of text messaging as a means of engaging particularly young
people in the consultation mechanisms As a Council the use of text
messaging is not used. Text messaging could be used to consult with
harder to reach groups. The recommendation could state that all
mechanisms to consult be investigated, such as website feedback forms
and SMS (text) messaging as a means of communication.

11 The methods used to conduct previous survey(s)/consultation. This
information had been acquired at the Group’s January meeting, when
employees from: Planning, Finance and Area Partnerships and Forums had
been interviewed.

7 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting would be held on Thursday 16 March commencing at
6.15pm and the agenda would include: -

e Desktop Research
e Consultation Protocol
e Visit to Best Practice Local Authority
(a) Authority to visit
(b) Set of questions to put to employees on their consultation methods

The meeting concluded at 8.00 pm



Appendix D
Public Engagement and Communications
Task and Finish Group

Visit to London Borough Of Haringey — 21 March 2006

NBC attendees

Councillor Christopher Malpas

Councillor Andrew Simpson

Councillor Michael Hill

Councillor Brendan Glynane Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Margaret Martin Consortium

London Borough of Haringey attendees

Zena Brabazon - Head of Neighbourhood Management —
(Lead on Beacon bid)
Marcelle Fletcher - Neighbourhood Renewal

Elaine Cunnea

Councillor Liz Santry

Janette Gedge - Consultation Manger (Communications &
Consultation Unit)

Zena Brabazon went through a presentation covering the Council’s Beacon Council
Award for Getting Closer to the Communities. The Council didn’t deliberately set out
to win an award.

Key to achieving it was the move towards Neighbourhood Management which started
in Haringey in 2001

Key position at start of process

Haringey has also been a poor/weak council in the past

The need to build a relationship with local people

Neighbourhood Management started in 2001

Haringey citizen’s were focused on environmental problems in the area such
as rubbish, graffiti

e Group set up for Neighbourhood Management

Key point — You need a learning ‘mindset’, this helps in:
e Trust building
e Confidence

Key Point — You need to deliver real improvements on environment (Haringey
helped with money/funding from SRB and Neighbourhood Renewal Funds)

Key Point — The poorer areas get the worst services
— Haringey had a split between the poorer east of the Borough and the
more affluent West.
— Neighbourhood Renewal Funds were directed into the east

ttiff/Haringeyvisit 1



— Building community involvement in the east before introducing across
the Borough
— Comprehensive research into problems in the east

Key Principles

e Be proactive
e Re-shape SRBs to have Neighbourhood Partnership Boards
e ‘Get out and onto the ground’ — tackling issues such as dumped furniture
where people can see the difference
¢ Council Officers/staff placed in Neigbourhood Centres
¢ Neighbourhood Partnership Boards are officially within the structure of the
Council
e Grasping ethnic mix helps understand community engagement
o affluent white west
o racially mixed east
o large transient population/asylum seekers (concentration in Tottenham
part of Borough)

Key point — Leaflet language translation — tells people what the leaflet is about rather
than all points (4 languages French, Somali, Kurdish & Turkish)

Baseline studies were conducted in 3 Neighbourhoods
The results all came out with the same issue:
e Crime & Environment was the number 1 priority

Key Point — Haringey view we have” Citizens not just Residents”

There is 5,000 homeless in the Borough - How do you get new people to feel are
citizens of Borough ?

Key Point — Developing Civic Pride is key to getting closer to community
Do this by giving citizens a genuine say is what happens through:
— Local issues/decision making (within Neighbourhoods/streets)
— Providing money for “street audits” so citizens can say what changes
they would like e.g. lighting improvements, litter bins
— Council ‘putting money where its mouth is” — but also explaining to
citizens if something can’t be done and getting them to make the
choice

‘Better Haringey’ — ‘branding that pulled the whole activity together’ — developed
organically

e Green-it, clean-it, light up
e Local people/including police — building relationships
e Feedback, continuous learning & respect

e Partnership Police Team engaged

ttiff/Haringeyvisit 2



e Always bring residents in
e Using services

e £5m from Haringey into “Better Haringey” campaigns

e Strong brand with “Better Haringey”
— 94% recognition by citizens

e Continually thinking about communication

Talk about what residents/citizens want
1100 households

Consultation with special groups

— Community consultation

Consultation

Key Points:
— Always ask
— Devolve money & decision to residents
— Community takes responsibility for consultation itself — get them to run
the surveys and do consultation
— Deliver and remind people you have delivered

Haringey has:

Community Workers

Youth Team

Consultation & Communications Unit

7
2
3

Area based planning of council services and citizen priorities with staff all working in
Neighbourhood Management (these relate to:

L» Assemblies/Partnerships

Janette Gedge presentation:
e Consultation who does it ? — each business & service areas do their own
e But 3 posts in C&C Unit which undertakes:
o the Annual Residents Survey
o Provides coaching/mentoring/support to other service areas (internal
consultancy)
@)
Key point — there is a big difference between informing and consulting

People need engagement in development of their area this is helped by :

Having a Community Development Worker on the ground

Thinking laterally — e.g. using library services for other services

Hard to reach groups/do something for them — “Mountain went to Mohamed”
Give money for small projects e.g. clearing litter

Key resource for information:

www.partnerships.org.uk Also a good article by David Wilcox called ‘the framework
of participation’

ttiff/Haringeyvisit 3



Key point — Haringey had no plan for Beacon Council bid

Zena Brabazon - ‘it’s not about ticking boxes it’s about having a good story to
tell’

e Council structure - Area Champions — Directors/Corporate Managers — each
has a responsibility for an area

e Key is to engage with Voluntary Groups

e Communications important - Communications Post within Neighbourhood
Management Team:

Branding helps

Regular Press Releases
Neighbourhood newsletters
Leaders Brief — every week
“‘Make the Difference”

0O O O O O

What has not worked ?

There are risks from effective engagement as follows:
—  Council,staff and councillors are highly accountable to residents
— How sustainable is it ?
— Managing community engagement through the Government’s
— NDC (New Deal for Communities)
— Need for collective responsibility
— Can be a nginefield

ttiff/Haringeyvisit 4



October
;2005

sNAFSHOTS of

i w

mt enham's best-tovad
and most hated
buildings were on sho
at the last sznh@m
and S'*veﬁ Sisters Area
Assembly.

The Assembly asked some local
residents to take digital
cameras and capture what they
did and didn't like, especially the
kind of housing they would they
like to live in and the style of
buildings they do not want to
see in Tottenham.

The aim was to encourage a
discussion about housing design
and local development from
residents’ points of view.
Resident photographers
Maureen Wright, Patricia
Sawyer and Steve Isaacs gave
presentations showing
photographs of their ‘housing
loves and hates’.

but still look good today, the
new build in Hornsey Park
Road, the mosque in Wightman
Road, Jarrow Road on the Ferry
Lane Estate and the houses on
Northumberland Park, modern
buildings and seating in
communal areas. Patricia, a
14-year-old from the Bridge
NDC area, said she did not like
‘No Ball Games’ signs and felt
that young people should be
given somewhere else to play
ball.

Among the favourites were the
almshouses in Beaufoy Road,
which were built in the 1900s

Appendix E

Covering Areas: Tottenham Hale,
Tottenham Green and Seven Sisters

Love: Innovative Design in Northumberland Park

She added that there are too
many football and basketball
facilities, which are too male
dominated, but nowhere to play
netball. Other dislikes included
developments that have not
been landscaped, tatty play
areas, too much rubbish,
boarded up shops, too much
grey and broken street
furniture. Overall, well-kept
buildings and clean surroundings

Continued on page 2

HARINGEY COUNCIL




October 2005

. 3E++ER

| HARINGEY

Life through the Lens

Continued from page 1

were deemed to be important
by all three participants,
although there was some
disagreement about the use of

Hate: No one likes rubbish

bright turquoise on new builds
across the borough. The New
River Village development was
loved by some, while graffiti was
seen as “ugly” by one
photographer and *“art” by
another.

an 200 ideas

Tackling Homelessness in Tottenham

HARINGEY has one of the worst  will continue to take place -

homeless problems in the
country, with more than 5,000
people in temporary
accommodation.

The Council’s Housing
Partnerships Manager Geoff
Turner said there is not enough
housing in the borough to meet
current need.

Almost 4,000 households are
overcrowded and require an
extra bedroom, while more than
1,000 need two more bedrooms.
House prices in Tottenham are
too high for average wage
earners with the average income
at £28,000 and the minimum
house price at about £123,000.
In order to tackle homelessness,
development is taking place - and

across the borough.

Mr Turner said Haringey is
working to ensure new
developments are sustainable,
linked to local infrastructure and
that heritage is preserved.
Consultation is important and
benefits such as local labour
schemes and local lettings can be
achieved with new developments,
he added.

Also in place is a homelessness
strategy, including earlier
intervention for people about to
be made homeless, mediation
services, debt and welfare
counselling, more options other
than Council housing, landlord
accreditation, rent deposit
schemes and keyworker

schemes. In addition, Haringey is
putting empty private houses
back into use, using derelict sites
for development and
implementing shared ownership
schemes.

Interim Housing Strategy and
Development Manager Denise
Gandy explained that although
asylum seekers are dealt with by
an outside agency, the Council
has a legal duty to provide them
with housing, usually privately
rented accommodation until
their status is confirmed.
Councillor Isidoros Diakides
agreed to meet with residents
from the Tiverton Estate in Seven
Sisters after the meeting about a
development in their area,



The Peace Alliance was started
in Haringey in 2000 and the
first peace week in the country
was held here.The event is
now held in |5 boroughs.

The aim of the week is to bring
communities together to raise
awareness of community safety
and engage residents in peace
initiatives.

The theme for this year's
celebration was community
relationships, with a particular
focus on families and
friendships among diverse
groups.

Activities included sports

ace Week

its i
eld from &

{

b
te 18

L
oo
=t

gmc:}

events, a superfit challenge for
young people and parents,
family seminars, the domestic
violence bus tour, faith events
and an open air gospel concert.
The week culminated in the
Haringey Peace Festival on
Sunday 18 September, an all day
event with music, family fun,
information, talent
competitions, freestyle dancing,
clowns and more.

A Peace Walk went from Wood
Green High Road to Finsbury
Park, where a pan London
Peace Concert concluded the
day, with local artists
performing alongside Terri

an of peace. Haringey
. with avents acress the

Walker and other guest artists.
The Week of Peace is organised
by a steering group chaired by
the Haringey Peace Alliance,
which included members from
all of Haringey’s community
groups.

Mr Ogbo added that the Peace
Alliance is keen to work with
residents and that suggestions
on what people would like to
see happening in their area are
always welcome.

Contact the Peace Alliance
at 117 Bruce Grove,
Tottenham, N17 6UR.

Tel: 020 8808 9439.

S Enforcement Surgerles
2 are held from 7pm before

"‘phone the Councll on 020

- 8489 0000 to be put -
5 through to the rlght
"team! "




October 2005
GETTER|

EY
|HARINGEY

omrm

Transforming Tottenham

A FPREVIQUSLY troubled
Totienham street was
just one of the sites
given a makeover over
the past year with
Making the Difference
funding.

Improvement work in
Houghton Road took place in
March, which included
narrowing, hew bollards and
landscaping in response to
residents’ concerns that the
road was being used as a short
term car park and dumping
ground which invited anti-social
behaviour.

Other projects in the
area made possible
through Making the
Difference funding,
included clearing the
huge flower troughs
around the corner in
Pelham Road and
planting mature trees
and flower beds.

Neighbourhood
Management would like
to thank all the
residents who took the
time to submit their
ideas to improve their
area.

Affix
stam
here

Anara Javadova,
Neighbourhood Management,
. Tottenham Town Hall,
" Approach Road,

Tottenham
N15 4RY



{HARINGEY |
Mﬁ:mr

Are You Making
the Difference?

This is your chance to
participate in what's
going on in your area.

Area Assemblies are the place for
residents to contribute ideas on
how Haringey can improve the
areas where they live and talk
directly with councillors.
Discussions take place on the
issues residents think are
important. Regular topics at Area
Assemblies include, refuse
collection, traffic, public
transport, green spaces, schools,
regeneration and parking — all the
topics that affect residents’ lives

directly. Discussion groups are
often set up so everyone gets the
chance to talk and there is also a
‘soapbox’ at the end of each
meeting for residents to raise
issues of burning importance in
their area.

After each meeting we publish an
Assembly newsletter telling you
how the Council is responding to
each of the issues raised.

Over the past year the
Tottenham and Seven Sisters
Area Assembly has:

s Reached agreement with
Transport for London about
new environmental
improvements on Tottenham
High Road - including
realignment of bus stops,
changes to pedestrian crossing

times and changes to traffic
railings

* Initiated systems for better
future planning of school
places and health provision to
support new local housing
development, and more
opportunity for local residents
to influence planning decisions

* Provided opportunities for
residents to talk with London
Buses about practical
improvements to local bus
routes

* Introduced the new Bernie
Grant Arts Centre to local
residents, with discussions
about how the wider local
community can benefit from
its facilities.

g><__ ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Want to receive regular mailings about the Area Assembly?

If you wish to be included in the Council’s database please complete the form below.

Please print clearly

Name

Address

Post code

Telephone

Email

The quickest and easiest way to keep up-to-date is by email. The Neighbourhood Management Service is
developing a new email database and residents will soon be able to request to receive all of the Area Assembly
publicity electronically. To take part please provide your email address in clear, large print.

Email




will also be made more
welcoming and the play
equipment improved.

Mr Briggs agreed to investigate

Assembly News

| Next Meeting

P 2ISLiFe f@ E‘“}‘?E‘” @  the condition of the ground floor
S = toilets next to the changing The next meeting of th
rooms and to look at enhanci i .
RESIDENTS are set to i SR UL A | Tottenham and Seven

get a healthy boost
through plans to
improve Tottenham
Green Leisure Centre.

Andy Briggs, Interim Head of

Leisure Centres, updated the last

Assembly on the plans.
The proposals are for a new
health and fitness suite, dance

studio and young persons’ gym,
improved library shop frontage
and a new reception IT system

desk.They also involve the
completion of all urgent

maintenance works and dividing

the pool hall reception lobby.

P

the range of programmes on
offer, which could include the
introduction of classes for
specific groups, such as older
women.

The improvements are part of a
four-year drive to improve
leisure services across the '
borough, to ensure centres are
safe to enter and use and are
clean and well presented.

The new facilities are due to be
ready by January.

Mr Briggs told the group that
investment had also been
secured to improve facilities at
White Hart Lane and Park Road
Pools.

osiaals b

Sisters Area Assembly
g will be held on

Monday
{ October 31 at 7.30
g'at the Marcus
!} Garvey Library,
{ Tottenham Leisure
i Centre, NI5

e N

e s Wb ik

i Streetscene and
Enforcement surgeries
start at 7/pm.

s’

A i b b AL

TR [
The centre’s outside green airea

MARCUS GAR
===y LIBRARY

For more information about

 the Tottenham and Seven™ -
Sisters Area Assembly and
Neighbourhood Management

_in the area, please contact
Bob Goldsmithon: ~
020 8489 4531 or emalil
bob.goldsmith@haringey.gov.u

15172 10/05 Published by Haringey Council's Communications Unit

@169 Haringey Council uses recycled paper as part of its 6

to improving the envir




i

Area Assembly Meetings and Listening Evanis - You Talln 7
Where are Assemblies held?

How do Assemblies work?

When are Area Assembly Meetings Held?

How do | know what's happened after the Assembly meeting?

Who can come to Assemblies?

Contact us

Haringey's Assemblies are the place for you and other local residents to contribute ideas on how we

can improve the area where you live, meetings where you can talk directly with councillors.

Where are Assemblies held?

Assembilies are held in local community buildings - such as schools, libraries and church halls. They
are informal, so you do not need to read lengthy reports before coming along or know how local

government works.

Back to top

How do Assemblies work?

Discussions take place on the issues you think are important, led either by council officers or
community groups. Regular topics include refuse collection, traffic, public transport, green spaces,
schools, regeneration, parking - all the topics that interest local people. We often set up discussion

groups within meetings so that everyone gets an opportunity to talk.

There is also a 'soapbox’ at the end of each meeting for vou and other residents to raise issues that

are of burning importance in your area.

Back to top

When are Area Assembly Meetings Held?

Assembly dates for 2005/2006 Municipal Year are listed below
Cycle Two
Ali Assemblies will be considering the following topics:

"The Managing the Difference Programme" : establishing residents’ priorities
Residents’ Chance to Quiz the 'Top Bosses' - Executive Member Accountability

Area Assemblies and Scrutiny - (with the exception of the Tottenham & Seven Sisters

Assembly and the St Ann's & Harringay Assembly who will discuss the topic in the following cycle).




Cycle Four 2006

Assembly

Wood Green

Tottenham &

Seven Sisters

Muswell Hill

Northumberiand
Park & White
Hart Lane

StAnn's &
Harringay

West Green

Crouch End

Back to top

Date Venue

Monday 27" Bounds GreenSchool
February Bounds Green Road
7.30pm London, N22

nd
Thursday 2 High Cross Church
March — colsterworth Road N15
7.30pm

Monday 6" Alexandra Park School
March Rhodes Avenue

730pm LondonN22

Bruce Castle Museum

Saturday Lordship Lane
th

117 March Bruce Castle

12.30pm

Tottenham, N17 8NU

Monday 13" St John's The Baptist Church Hall
March Wightman Road
7.30pm London, N8 OLY

15™ March 386 West Green Road
7.30pm Tottenham, N15

Thursday 16 St Mary’s School (Music Hall)
March RectoryGardens
7.30pm N8 7QN

How do | know what's happened after the Assembly meeting?

After each meeting we publish an assembly newsletter telling you how the council is responding to

each of the issues that were raised. For copies of newslettersd, visit the Area Assembly Newsletters

page.
Back to top




Who can come to Assemblies?

Anyone can attend Assembilies. If we can help you to attend meetings or you require further

information, please contact us.

Back to top

Contact us

For further information, please contact:

Marcia Connell
Tel 020 8489 4543

Email marcia.connell@haringey.gov.uk.

Back to top




~ Providing Better and Fairer Access:

To increase the involvement of people in the life of their communities
and in the decision making processes that affect their quality of life an
the services they receive

WHY THIS IS A PRIORITY:

OVING QUALITY OF LIFE

® Healthy communities have a high degree of
involvement from members of the community
playing roles in making decisions about the
services provided to the public, and also giving
of their time to support and help others through
voluntary organisations and community groups.

® There is a concern that there is a danger of the
public playing less active roles in their
community. The process of 'civil renewal’ aims
to support active citizens and encourage them to
take formal roles in contributing to local decision
making, or informal roles within community or
voluntary groups, or helping improve the quality
of life in their neighbourhood by working with
the public sector agencies to be honest and
model citizens.

OUR KEY TARGETS ARETO:

® Increase the number of people involved
with voluntary or community organisations

® Continue to attract at least 5% of 'new’
people to each Neighbourhood Partnership
on average over the year

@ Encure that at least 85% of those attending

Neighbourhood Partnership meetings
are local people

® Increase the percentage turnout for local
elections

OUR AIM IS TO:

® Foster more effective communication
between stakeholders about local concerns

® Involve local people, including young people,
in decision-making about their community

® Encourage active citizens to be involved in
local activities

® Build community capacity by supporting
individuals, and organisations in respect of
finance, and other resources such as premises
and equipment

® Develop community cohesion where
by people further not only their own
interests but also those of other people in
their community




Improving community involvement

DURING 2004/05, WE WILL

O'F rther develop the ca
Nelghbourhood Partnershlps through
© supporting the steering:

® Develop further local lmprovement plans |n o
some Nelghbourhood Partnershlp areas .:

® Co-ordinate support to enable Croydon to bid
more effectlvely for external fundmg to
support commumty activity :

® Undertake a programme of capacrty eckmg ;
“for voluntary organisations

® Improve opportunities for- voluntary
organisations to access suitable
accommodation for their activities

® Develop the support available to enable
people to undertake volunteering
opportunities, particularly through Investmg
In Volunteering

OAccredlt the Commumty Champrons.;course to

° Develop a process to ensure that communlty
consultatron |s co-ordmated between pubhc

'DURING THE NEXT FEW YEARS,
WE WILL:

. . Rewew the Iessons learnt in developing actlon
.. plans and apply it to all neighbourhoods

® Implement Nelghbourhood Action Plans in’
conjunction with local people

® Develop methods to improve local election
turnout in 2006

° Explore the scope for greater involvement of
local people in the direct management of
aspects of publlc servrces

More information can be obtained from:

~David Freeman, Policy Manager (Voluntary -
Organisations), Croydon Council

020 8604 7042
email: david.freeman@croydon.gov.uk

lohn Sheridan, Business Manager,
Neighbourhood Partnerships, Croydon Council

2 020 8686 4433
email: john.sheridan@croydon.gov.uk

Who will make sure it happens?

Steve Phaure,

Chief Executive,

Croydon Voluntary 7
Action Council

Wil Tuckley,
Head of Policy and
Executive Office, Croydon




Commumty planmng in Wiltshire an overview

There are 20 Commumty Areas within Wiltshire each of which has a Community Plan. The plans are laid out in chaptcvs dealing with the, elghl th
identified in the overall smteglc plan for the County which is called “A County fit for our children™ This overall plan was adopted by the Wiltshire
Board in 2004 and helps inform and is informed by the twenty separate plans at a Community level. Some towns have been formally included in.
Regwnal Dcvclopment Agericy’s Market and Coastal Towns Initiative (MCTI). tn most cases Town and Pansh coundil's are actively: involved in the.
commumty planmng partnersh\ps across the County.

W 3 1. Malmesbury - population 17,410 2. Wootton Bassett - population 30,660 11. Devizes - population 30,020

There is a recently cstablished community planning
partnership. The area’s first community plan was published

A draft community plan is in the process of consultation.
An arca comimiitee organised by NWDC covers the area.

Published its first community plan in 2001. A strategic

| action plan is cumrently undenvay. The area has MCTY

} < : in 2001. This plan has now been updated and a new A community planning partnership has recently been status. The area has its own Dewvizes Development
+.| plan covering 2005-15 published. There is no formal formed. Partnership made up mainly of local businesses and
.| Development Trust established for this arca. There 1s an members in the community. There is also a 3 tier
~ . Area Committee which is organised by NWDC. Members forum.

5. Caine - population 20,680

* | There is 3n active community planning partnership

_| established for the area which began in 1998 following
3 Visioning event that was held for local residents and
organisations. There has heen @ comnwnily survey of
residents undertaken in 2003 which has helped draft
the areas community plan which covers 2004-14. The
arca was granted MCTT status in 2004,

6. Marlborough -~ population 21,960
There is an active community planning partnershi
established for the area and a local Develupment
(MADT). The area had a tesident sunwcy in 2003 t
results of which hawe informed the areas first comm
plan published in 2004. There isa 3 tier memher's §
active across the area.

r3. Chippenham - population 40,580

—
.| There has been a Chippenham ( ity Forum since 12. Pewsey - population 10,4
1999, .A (!rafl community plzn is in the proccss o‘fm c Has an active community planning par

© An arca ¢ d by NV specially formed local Development Try

* covers the area. A community planr.mg partnership will

be established summger 2005,
. J/

“Pewsey Arca Community Trust”™ [PACT
the doing arm of the partnership. The :
community plan was published in 2002
| plan is due to be published late in 200!
)} had a residents survey in 2001 and a reqq
fayre is held annually, The area has recent
\M(‘TI status.

PR :
4. Corsham — population 18,740
There is an aclive ¢ ity planning P;

et

Lavra The area has also been granted MCD siafus,

cstablished far the arca. Communiiy planning in some
form has been around since 1999. A houschold survey
of residents was undertaken in early 2005 and the results
have been feed into the areas draft community plan
which Is due to be published summer 2005. There is an
arca committee organised by NWDC which covers the

7 Bradford on Avon - population 15,780
There is an active ¢ p made
up of a co-ordinating gvoup and VMous wb-gmups
The arca benefited from a residents survey in 2002 and
a community open day in 2003. There s a lacal

~

8. Melksham - population 23,3!
Mciksham Ist is the ¢ ity planni
sct up for the area. The arcas first comn
published in 2003 which has now heen
second plan published in 2004, and an
action plan for community projects. A 1
cvent was held in carly 2008 10 ayree h
waould be jointly funded. There are plan
communily planning parinership » Dew
{_The area has heen granted MCT status,

-
13. Tidworth - population 14,

7| Development Trust which is heing er ged to play The community planning pantnership is
a wider community role. The areas first community plan lop of the arca slengside the

+ ] is due to be published summer 2005. J ‘ndwonh Development Trust. The areas

1

s

| planning partnership is calied Trowbridge Futures. The

9 Trowbrldge - populatwn 42 540
Theic has begi ain aciive

based in the town since 1999. The area had the first

groups have been formed particularly around the
redevelopment of the town centre. The area’s community
plan was published in 2004. The new community arca

arez has MCT1 status.

residents survey in 2001 and a number of key partnership |

L
40. Westhury - population 17,700

the Westbury Arca Action Group (WAG) and the arca's
first residents survey was undertaken in 2004. The first

| There is an active community planning partnership called

. ly plan was published in May 2005. The area |
. *| has a Development Trust and has been granted MCTI
p lea(us.

20. Mere - population 5,740

Smallest of the community areas in terms of population 1-
the area published it's first community plan in 1999, A |
revised “Mere and district™ plan has rcccnﬂy bccn issued ;

in carly 2005, There is no formal ¢
partnership and the arca is covered by the Wcsiem nre:

committee of Satisbury District Council which it shares |-

with Wilton and Tisbury.

16. Tisbury - population 7,330
Arevised “Nadder Valley™ community plan was published
4 in 2004 following an catfier plan published in 1999.
Therusnolocal" lop Trust, or ¢
| pt g partmership blished. A Western arca
committee of Salishury District Council covers the arca
1 alongside Mere and Wilton.

117. wilton - population 10.870

Has an active Weaving Witton's Future group connected
with it’s MCT1 status. The area is covered by the Westem

‘1 area committee of Salisbury District Council which it

shares with Mere and Tisbury. There is no local
{ Development Trust. The area has benefited from a
residents survey in 2003 by the Town Coundil. Recently
a second “Four Rivers™ cominunity plan has been
published following one developed back in 1999.

published in 2003 and a brokering table ¢
] Lfm 2005. The arca has MCT status,

p
14. Wanninster - population ;
Active communily platming partmership
{ first plan in summer 2005, There is no |
Trust for the area although the possibili
one & being explored. A residents suney 1
{ in 2003 which has hetped shape the cot
| The arca has MCT status, The Amy s a
3s a gammison town.
\

-

15. Amesbury - population 31
Published it's sccand “Stonchenge™ com
2004 following an carlier plan cstablishes

Has been given MCT status. There is ne
Trust or active community planning par
There is a Northem Area committee of S
“| Council that covers the area. There has be
1 sunxy.

19. Downton - population 16,890

Published it’s first conumunity plan in 1999. This pla:
has recently been revised and 2 second one “Souther
Arca” plan published in 200S. The arca is covered by
the Southem area commiliee as part of Salisbury Distvi
Council. 3 working group of which fead on producin

the revised plan.

18. salisbury - population 44,450

| vadis fimt cammunity plan in 1999 which has been
‘| updated and a second plan published in 2004, There

is a specific Safisbury City area committee of the Salisbury
District Council established. Salisbury City is too big to

recoive MCI‘I status. I‘Ime is no local Dw:iopmcnl Trust |.

blichead

or ty pt g partnership




Appendix F

Because Your Opinion Matters ......

Consultation

Evaluation of the Focus Group Sessions
Held on 20" and 215! April 2006

The Overview and Scrutiny Public Engagement and Communications Task
and Finish Group held Focus Group Sessions on 20™ and 215 April 2006 so
that it could hear the public’s views and opinions on how well it thought the
Council consulted. The results of the Focus Group sessions helped to inform
the Task and Finish Group’s review.

18 individuals attended the session on 20" April. After a brief introduction by
Councillor Malpas, Chair of the Public Engagement and Communications
Task and Finish Group, the Group completed questionnaires on how well the
public thought the Council consulted. After a short break the meeting split into
three Groups facilitated by Councillors Malpas, Hill and Simpson. The Groups
discussed what they felt the Council had consulted on well, poorly and what
they thought could be improved (results attached at annex 1). During the
group sessions, the completed questionnaires were analysed. The Chair
summed up the session by inviting the Councillor facilitators to report back the
findings from their individual groups. T Hall, Corporate Manager (Public
Engagement) then gave a précis of the results of the completed
questionnaires. An attendance booklet was circulated for all those to sign
who wished to receive a copy of the Task and Finish Group’s final report.

The Focus Group session held on 21 April followed the same format as
above. 29 individuals attended and split into three Groups facilitated by
Councillors Malpas, Roy and Councillor Woods, a non-Scrutiny Councillor,
who had offered to assist. (Results attached at annex 2)

Councillor Hadland, Leader of the Council, was present at the session held on
21 April.



The main comments from the six groups at the Focus Group Sessions were: -
Good
e Area Partnerships and Forums

Poor

Consultation feedback, including that from Area Partnerships
Councillors’ responses to citizens telephone calls

Knowledge of Ward Councillors

The use of over complex language

The lack of consistent, professional approach to consultation
Response from the Council (including letters, telephone, email etc)

Improvements

Residents’ ability to challenge/review decisions

Engagement at local level in service improvement and consultation

Use of Community Centres for meetings and consultation events

Timing and location of meetings

Provide information about the role of Councillors

Clarify the roles of Northampton Borough Council and

Northamptonshire County Council, but provide a seamless service

e Communicate results of consultation and actions from it — follow it
through

e Alternative means of communicating, for example, PC’s located in the

one stop shop.



Annex 1

Because Your Opinion Matters ......

Consultation

Focus Group Sessions — 20 April 2006

Facilitator: Councillor Simpson

Comments from the Group:-

Good
— Councillors’ representative role good/professional (housing option)
— 2005 Budget Consultation (public meetings made this good)
— Feedback Police (Varies)
— Leisure Centres consultation

— Ward leaflet (Eastfield 2004 example)

Bad

Stock Transfer (housing): — Not enough
— Not balanced/decision confirmation not consultation
— Central Government agenda

Restructure of the Council

ttiff/200406group2clirsimpson 1



Why didn’t Northamptonshire County Council consult on leaving Area Partnerships?

Need for Northamptonshire County Council to consult on public transport issues —
change on disabled bus passes etc.

— Feedback is poor
— Result and decision explanation
— Bus pass changes from 1 April 2006 — not informed
— Public relations (some not using media effectively)
— New political structures means less democracy
Cut out a considerable amount of red tape at all levels of Northampton Borough
Council
Less politics, more actions based locally
— Councillor communication
— Know who your local Councillor is
— Listened to but nothings happens

Tenants’ views are quite often ignored by politicians who have own
“agendas/policies”

ttiff/200406group2clirsimpson 2



Ideas to Improve

— Neighbourhood management/representations
— Ward Committees

— Newsletters to all areas/wards

— Dedicated Ward Officer

— Time management of committees

— Councillor surgeries with Officer support based in each area/office

— Use Community Centres more
— More access to public buildings for community (e.g. schools)

— Allowing management funds for later years and maintenance community
centres

— Joined up count for more effective use of resources

— More flexibility in providing services

— Promoting active citizenship (decision making by citizens)
— Neighbourhood working

— Tenancy rules should be applied

— Give Council more power

— Housing (Local Lettings Policy)

— One Stop Shop for all public services on area or neighbourhood basis

ttiff/200406group2clirsimpson 3



Because Your Opinion Matters ......

Consultation

Focus Group Sessions — 20 April 2006

Facilitator: Councillor Hill

Comments from the Group:-

Positive
Area Partnerships

The Council makes the effort — fairly well advertised

Negative

Area Partnership Issues: Poor feedback and knowledge of how resolved:-
e Size of areas

e Location of meetings — Is the Guildhall the best venue?

e Should meetings be held on Saturdays?
e Advertising should include subjects to be discussed
e Poor Councillor attendance — attendance records

e County Councillors need to attend

ttiff/200406group1clirhill 1



Poor consultation and priority assessment while in progress on neighbourhood
renewal

Why didn’t Northamptonshire County Council consult on leaving Area Partnerships?

There is a need for Northamptonshire County Council to consult on public transport
issues — change on disabled etc, passes

Improvements

More complex information needed — published on the web?

How do issues fit into the big picture?
Local notice-boards to give information

Clearer/simpler information/terminology in posters etc

ttiff/200406group1clirhill 2



Because Your Opinion Matters ......

Consultation

Focus Group Sessions — 20 April 2006

Facilitator: Councillor Malpas

Comments from the Group:-

Good

Community Forums

Area Partnerships

Town Centre Commission meaningful (walk about consultations)

Door-to-door canvassing on introduction of wheelie bins

Poor

Political system, Cabinet and Portfolio Holder system restricts information
Lack staff continuity

Poor staff morale

Telephone and e-mail interface —

Councillors do not always answer phone messages, emails or letters

ttiff/200406group3clirmalpas 1



Recycling consultation - waste of time — Officer talks to public and self-praised
themselves

*Joe Public’ never one of 5,000 households

Budget Consultation is always bad

Improvements

Better communication with BEM Groups

Better perceptions

Better communication with Northamptonshire County Council and the Police
Engagement with youngsters

Better media relations

Borough and Town being “rubbished’ by the Press

Borough locked in a time warp

Talk up the Town

Get more local issues and stop concentrating on the Town Centre

ttiff/200406group3clirmalpas 2



Because Your Opinion Matters ......

Consultation

Focus Group Sessions — 21 April 2006

Facilitator: Councillor Roy

Comments from the Group:-

What We Do Well

Identify the need for daytime AND evening meetings
— Refreshments
— BLOCK ENQUIRIES

— Respond to threats from the Ombudsman

What We Do not Do Well

— Get Heads of Service/managers to respond to letters/calls from members of the
public

— Poor/unclear complaints procedure

— Don't listen, don’t hear, don'’t act as a result of consultation

— Taking public wishes and imposing a Council agenda on any actions

— Not good at equality and diversity inclusion. Do not do well at social inclusion
— Telling us of important decisions

— Delays

— Consultation time limits too short

ttiff/210406cllrroy 1



— Poor continuity. Always stop and start

— Not telling us about consultation events

— Not telling us what difference my/our input has had (feedback)
— Notices in too small a print

— Selective processes for getting people involved.

— Not involving tenants in decisions about their housing

— Poor at making positive things continue

— Poor telephone call handling

— Poor customer service

— Managers DON’T know the Town. How can they make decisions for us?
— Decisions take too long

— “0845” is not charged at local rate for all telephone users

— Call people back

Areas for Improvements

— Be clear in communicating what is and what isn’t an NBC responsibility
— Better customer service training

— Better record keeping on the website — transparency in minutes e.g. Audit
Committee

— Use plain English in reports and minutes
— Consultation events on source of the audit report

— The organisation to listen (if possible one individual please) and to take action
on that which we see as important

— Support for not only individuals but also local business

— Consultation with Residents’ Associations should be broadened out to other
groups with a local focus

— We want Councillors to knock on our doors

— We want Councillors to be more proactive

ttiff/210406c¢llrroy 2



— Councillors need to be more open/approachable — it is not just about funding, it
is about every day problems

— The Council has to get relationships right
— KEEP PROMISES
— Good practice makes sense

— Better understanding and transparency about how money is invested so we can
see that it is done fairly

— Give a fair picture on who gets what
WE NEED TO SEE THE OUTCOME OF THIS!

We want to know when the report goes to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee and to
be able to speak to the report if we disagree with it

ttiff/210406cllrroy 3



Because Your Opinion Matters ......

Consultation

Focus Group Sessions — 21 April 2006

Facilitator: Councillor Woods

Comments from the Group:-

Good

Good Tenant Group — highest rated in the East Midlands

Forums & Area Partnerships (comment from Fire Service representative)
Disabled Forum

Slim Your Bin information

Poor

No ring-back from voicemail

Time taken to answer ‘phones

Not ringing back when promised

Help for tenants/residents in fear of crime (being terrorised)
Budget Consultation (e.g. HRA ring fenced)

Over/under representation of Council/Housing Association tenants

Briar Hill not consulted on forum/Area Partnership

ttiff/210406cllrwoods 1



Residents are not consulted on Area Partnership

The Council does not communicate well with the
public/residents.

Area Partnership/Forums should each decide how
best to communicate to their areas

one size does not fit all

Area Partnerships do not feedback anywhere

Feedback from forums

Minutes of Area Partnerships often circulated late and do not always accurately
reflect the meeting

Area Partnership/Forum to produce and sign up to their agreed Communication
Strategy

Overlap of responsibility — Northampton Borough Council/Northamptonshire County
Council /West Northants Development Corporation

Bureaucracy — too much
— selective editing

Do we take notice of consultation?

Feedback
Proactive versus reactive

Do we take notice of consultation?

Questions raised:-

? Do we record incoming calls

?  Why Ethnic Monitoring on today’s forums

? Why not English (i.e. ethnicity White English)

? Consultation versus Communication

ttiff/210406cllrwoods 2



Improvements

Engaging with more people
— more than "usual suspects’

Feedback from the Council as a whole (i.e. we should control information flows — not
the C&E etc.)

—  Chronicle & Echo/BBC Radio Northampton
— Newsletter
Change the attitude of Cabinet towards communication
Meetings of Portfolio Holders being held behind “closed doors”
Employee/Councillor communication needs to improve e.g. NDDS funding
More/better communications — West Northants Development Corporation partic,

empty shop (i.e. WNDC needs to communicate better — perhaps it could take an
empty shop as a shop window)

*  Listen to people

Hear the message

Act upon it

When reports come back they are either too big and detailed or content free:-
— short but full summary
— consistent approach
—  Work with the people, not against e.g. TOPPS info

Warning at change not FPN

Each Forum/Area Partnerships have own communication channel — one size does
not fit all

*  Never enough information

Separate breakout rooms for these events (some were somewhat hard of hearing
and struggled with the background noise in the Great Hall)

*  Hearing loops in the venues for such events

ttiff/210406cllrwoods 3



Expect to see my Councillor around their wards and to understand the local problems
Bring back St Crispin’s Fair
Encourage Residents Associations to form (need for funding)

Service Level Agreements for internal meetings (in particular Area Partnerships) —
when minutes will be published, frequency of meetings, venues of meetings

ttiff/210406cllrwoods 4



Appendix G
Northampton Borough Council

Public Engagement and Communications Task and Finish Group

Please complete the boxes below and return to the facilitator. The form will
then be forwarded to your Ward Councillor and the relevant Council
department for attention.

Name

Address

Email
Address

Telephone
Number

Brief
details of
Issue




Appendix H
Because Your Opinion Matters ......

Consultation

Results of completed questionnaires

1 Do you know why Northampton Borough Council wishes to consult with its
citizens?

YES 42 NO 14
2 If yes is ticked, why?

- The CPA report requires it

- In order that Council knows citizens’ priorities - can shape services
- In order that citizens can voice their opinion

- Best practice

- To ensure Strategies and funding meet citizens’ requirements

- Improve citizen satisfaction on Northampton Borough Council services
- Feedback

- Improve connection between citizens and the Council

- Essential when delivering public services

- Find out Citizens opinions

- Clearer communication and information sharing

- Tenants’ views on the future of Northampton

- In order to provide services to meet the customers’ needs

- Keep the public informed

- Gauge public opinion and expectations

- Government requirement

- To get the public’s vote in the elections

- To improve performance/services

- To be better informed

- Inform the public of the Council’s decisions

- The Council has made too many mistakes and needs to listen to the voters
- The Council wants people to know they are valued

ttiff/consultationquestionnaire 1



3 Have you taken part in Borough Council consultations? Please tick

YES 43 NO 13

4 If yes did you think that your views were taken into account?
STRONGLY AGREE 2 AGREE 14

DISAGREE 12 STRONGLY DISAGREE 9

5  What consultations do you think the Council has carried out well any why?

- None 9 votes
- Bus Schemes/Services 6 votes
- Budget 2 votes
- Housing 2 votes
- Recycling 2 votes
- Forums and Area Partnerships 3 votes
- Town Show

- Environment

- Trees

- Tenant Consultation

- Town Centre Commission

- New Strategies

- Disabled People’s Forums

- CASPAR

- Decent Homes Standard

- Temporary Sites for Travellers
- Town Centre by night

- Don’t know 2 votes

6 What consultations do you think the Council has carried out poorly and why?

- Budget 8 votes
- Al 6 votes
- Bus Schemes 4 votes
- Housing Stock transfer 3 votes
- Market Square 3 votes
- Road, footpaths, drains 2 votes
- Area Partnerships 2 votes

- Town Centre Commission

- Town Centre Improvements
- Delapre Park

- BME Community

- Corporate Plan

- Licensing

ttiff/consultationquestionnaire 2



- Review of Voluntary Sector Funding
- This Consultation
- Local meetings
- Private Portfolio Holder meetings
- None 2 votes
- Don’t know 2 votes
7 Northampton Borough Council listens to people.

ALWAYS 1 MOSTLY 5 SOMETIMES 37 NEVER 3

8 My comments make no difference to the situation.
STRONGLY AGREE 4 AGREE 20
DISAGREE 18 STRONGLY DISAGREE 1
9 Do you believe that Northampton Borough Council provides proper feedback as
to what happens as a result of consultation?

YES 13 NO 34

10 If no, how would you wish Northampton Borough Council to communicate its

feedback?
- Newsletter 2 votes
- Email 3 votes
- Area Partnerships 2 votes
- Press Release
- Letter

- Face to face interview

- Council notice board/local press

- All mediums

- Monthly column in local press

- Action points from the minutes of the meetings
- Public meetings

- Communicate with Neighbourhood Wardens
- Consult with relevant Groups

- Information leaflets/letters to tenants

- Website

- Clear reports

- Direct communication from the “top’

11 Which three priority issues do you think the Council should consult upon with

citizens?
- Revive Town Centre 11 votes
- Transportation 13 votes
- Security/Policing 10 votes

ttiff/consultationquestionnaire 3



- Budget 5 votes

- Housing 6 votes
- Repair of roads 6 votes
- Planning 5 votes
- Council Tax Spend 4 votes
- Elderly and disabled people’s facility 3 votes
- Environment 3 votes
- Bus Station 2 votes
- Grosvenor/Greyfriars 2 votes
- Recycling 2 votes
- Neighbourhood Management 2 votes
- Rent Increases 2 votes
- Cleansing 2 votes
- Vision for Northampton 2 votes
- Toilets

- Street Scene

- Traveller Sites

- Licensing

- Building

- Local laws

- Priorities and Strategies
- Council Contracts

- Parks and Leisure

- Tenant Management

- Community Engagement
- Customer Satisfaction

- Town Centre Nightlife

- Licensing

- Bus Services

- NBC/NCC services

- Delapre Abbey

- Litter

- Traveller Sites

-  MKSM Study

- BME Services

- Voluntary Sector Support
- Room hire for Area Partnerships
- Everything

12 Do you think there is anything the Council could do to be more proactive with
consulting diverse communities?

- Hold daytime meetings in the Community

- Hosting different types of consultation

- Advertising Area Partnerships

- Advertising on notice boards at Community Centres and out in the
community

- Go out to the Communities

- Send all Communities and Associations notifications of meetings

- Inform people

- Be more honest and confront diplomatic issues

ttiff/consultationquestionnaire 4



- Come to Residents Associations and the Federation of Residents
Association meetings

- Become more involved with NTACT

- Listen and react to electorate’s views

- Involve tenants

- Notices in the One Stop Shop

- Agendas, minutes etc to be produced in large print

- Walkabouts with Groups

- Disabled access to meetings

- Translators available at meetings

- Hearing loops in all meeting venues

- More responsive in a business manner

- Make everyone feel part of the wider community

13 | know what happens with the result of Northampton Borough Council’s
consultations.
AGREE 7 STRONGLY AGREE 2

DISAGREE 28 STRONGLY DISAGREE 11

14 Have you taken part in the following?

AREA PARTNERSHIPS 42 FORUMS 36
OTHER COUNCIL MEETINGS 34 COUNCILLOR SURGERIES
10
OTHERS: Resident Association meetings 3 votes
NTACT 3 votes

Federation of Residents’ Association
Bus Services Consultation meeting
Town Centre Commission Walkabout
Parish Council meetings

PCT meetings

Community Councils

15 How often do you attend these meetings?

REGULARLY 37 OCCASSIONALLY 11 INFREQUENTLY 3

16 Do you feel that Northampton Borough Council’'s documents are easy to

understand
AGREE 22 STRONGLY AGREE 2
DISAGREE 26 STRONGLY DISAGREE 3

ttiff/consultationquestionnaire 5



17 How would you like to give NBC your views/comments?

PUBLIC MEETING 39
20 PAPER QUESTIONNAIRE

TELEPHONE

FACE TO FACE 30 TEXT MESSAGING

WEBSITE

OTHER:

18

Email 3 votes
NTACT 2 votes
Community Centre Notice Board

Road Shows

Talking Newspaper

Walkabouts

Area Committees

Newspaper

18 Does your Local Councillor consult with you?

YES 29 NO 22
19 Have you ever responded? Please tick
YES 32 NO 4
20 Ifyes, how?
TELPHONE 17 EMAIL 14 LETTER
NEWLETTER 17 TEXT MESSAGE
WEBSITE 2 COUNCILLOR SURGERY
OTHER: Face to face 5 votes
Public meeting 3 votes
Council meeting 2 votes
Residents’ meeting
21 If no, why?

- Ask the Councillors/unaware why

- | consult with the Councillor but they do not consult with me
- Councillors for my area are not often at Area Partnership meetings 2 votes
- | do not know who my local Councillor is
- Not been asked

- Religious reasons

ttiff/consultationquestionnaire

DOOR STEP CANVASSING 12

26
3

12
2
6

4 votes
2 votes



- Political reasons
- Difficulty in acquiring a direct response

22 |s there anything else you would like to tell us?

- Need for better communication - 2 votes

- Essential to keep Residents Associations, Federation of Residents’
Associations and Area Partnerships informed first hand

- Consultation is to inform citizens of plans

- More emphasis on "hands on the ground’ consultation

- Consultation needs to be meaningful

- Walkabout consultation is dynamic

- Beneficial to hold more meetings out in the community

- Need for a framework for consultation and reporting the results and
outcomes. Information should be easily accessible

- Council Consultation should follow the standards set out in Consultation
Compact between public and voluntary organisations

- Imperative that sufficient time is given for full consultation

- Make questionnaires easier to understand

- The Council has a lot of consultants involved in making proposals

- Information given to the public is too simplistic

- More information should be available on the website

- A member of the public co-opted onto the Cabinet/Council

- Often the "whole picture’ is not presented to citizens

- The Council and Councillors are disengaged from the electorate

- Public apathy

- Notices should be in larger print and easier to ready

- More focussed Area Partnerships dealing with one or two subjects at any
one time

- Concerns over promptness/effectiveness of replies to residents from Council
departments

- The Town Centre Commission consultation worked

Other Issues

- Community development is increasingly becoming a hierarchal dictatorship
instead of supporting, enabling and empowering the community

- Need to employ a Tenant Participation Manager

- Town centre has not improved over last three years

- Traffic congestion is bad in the town

- Parking areas need to be altered in Rickyard Road

- Excessive parking costs

- Ringroad is incomplete

- Flood plan provision incomplete/non-existent

- In the light of Northamptonshire County Council’s decision to drop youth
services, NBC should be looking at these services.

- Council makes wrong decision such as the railway at Blisworth, knocking
down the theatre

- Confusion as to the responsibilities of the Borough Council/County
Council/Health Trusts etc

ttiff/consultationquestionnaire 7



NB: Not all of the sections were completed.

- Equalities Monitoring Section

Gender

Male 28 NB not all of these sections were completed

Female: 22

Age

13 and under

13-19

20 -39 7

40 - 65 28

65+ 15

Ethnicity

White 38 of whom British 36
Irish 1
Scotish 1
Other EU

Mixed 1 of whom White & Black Caribbean
White & Asian
White & Black African 1
Other

Asian Or

Asian British 1 of whom Indian 1
Pakistani
Bangladeshi
Other

Black Or

Black British 2 of whom Caribbean 1
African 1
Other

Chinese of whom Chinese
Other Eurasian

Disability

Do you consider yourself disabled YES: 14

NO 32

ttiff/consultationquestionnaire 8



NB: Not all of the sections were completed.

ttiff/consultationquestionnaire 9



Appendix |
Results of Youth Forum 18 April 2006 Meeting
NB: this meeting was attended and consultation joined in by
both Youth Forum members and young people who were their guests

Task & Finish Group Consultation Questionnaire Session

NB: The questions were gone through inter-actively as a group, with people able to vote
on different options.

1. Do you know why Northampton Borough Council wishes to consult with its
citizens?

YES: 6 NO:7
2. If yes, why?

- for the council to get a broad range of views
- to make sure the council is doing the right thing

3. Have you taken part in any Borough Council consultations?

YES:8 NO:3
NB: some people who were at the meeting for the first time declined to answer
4. If yes, did you think that your views were taken into account?

STRONGLY AGREE
AGREE

DISAGREE 8
STRONGLY DISAGREE

NB: the other young people did not wish to answer this question
5. What consultations do you think the Council has carried out well and why?

- Open Spaces Survey by NBC Planning Team at the Youth Forum was good,
people got to say their views

- Town Centre Commission consultation by NBC at the Youth Forum was OK
but had a lot of jargon

6. What consultations do you think the Council has carried out poorly and why?

- Northants County Council Councillors came to the Youth Forum to consult
about the Roadmender but seemed to have made up their minds already

- Bus Service Company Managers who came to the Youth Forum seemed not
to be giving real answers to questions, but just explaining how things are

- When there’s no feedback after people have taken part in a consultation



7. Northampton Borough Council listens to people

ALWAYS
MOSTLY
SOMETIMES 13
NEVER

8. My comments make no difference to the situation

STRONGLY AGREE
AGREE

DISAGREE

STRONGLY DISAGREE

N N

9. Do you believe that NBC provides proper feedback as to what happens as a
result of consultation?

YES: NO: 13

NB: members of the Youth Forum said that they could not really answer this question
because NBC gives feedback sometimes but not always, which meant the answer was
not yes, but wasn'’t really ‘no’ either.

10.How would you wish NBC to communicate its feedback?

- Town Crier

Feedback in person at meetings/events
Council newsletter (not party political)
Letter

11.Which 3 priority issues do you think the Council should consult upon with
citizens?

Budget 13 votes
Employment for young people 7 votes
Youth Clubs/things to do 6 votes
Recycling 5 votes
Town Centre 4 votes
Appearance of the Town 3 votes
Everything 3 votes
Crime prevention 2 votes

New ideas 2 votes



12.Do you think there is anything the Council could do to be more proactive with
consulting diverse communities?

- go to where people are rather than always get them to come to the council

- get other people like youth workers to ask the questions

- think about who is sent to do the consulting with people

- consult earlier rather than ‘tick box’ consulting ie when a decision’s already been
made so consultation won'’t really make any difference (e.g. NCC Roadmender
consultation at the Youth Forum)

- don’t use cheap rooms, hold meetings somewhere nice

- make young people feel involved and that they can make a difference

- provide incentives e.g.financial

13.1 know what happens with the results of NBC’s consultations

STRONGLY AGREE

AGREE

DISAGREE 12
STRONGLY DISAGREE 3

14.Have you taken part in the following?

Area Partnerships
Forums

Other Council meetings
Councillor surgeries
Other (please specify)

LL

coo> -

15.How often do you attend these meetings?

REGULARLY - Youth Forum
OCCASIONALLY
INFREQUENTLY - other council meetings

(e.g. to speak about an issue for Youth Forum)
16.Do you feel that NBC’s documents are easy to understand

STRONGLY AGREE
AGREE

DISAGREE

STRONGLY DISAGREE

NB: Members of the Youth Forum declined to answer this question, saying that it
depended on the documents whether they had lots of jargon for example, and also
because how well someone can read or understand a document is something which can
be very personal for a young person.



17.How would you like to give NBC your views/comments?
(choose top three)

PAPER QUESTIONNAIRE 14 votes
PUBLIC MEETING 13 votes
WEBSITE QUESTIONNAIRE 11 votes
FACE-2-FACE INTERVIEW 6 votes
SMS (TEXT) MESSAGING 3 votes
TELEPHONE 1 vote
OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY) nil votes

18.Does your councillor consult with you?
YES: NO: ALL

19.Have you ever responded?

YES: NO: ALL

20.If yes, how?

TELEPHONE

EMAIL

LETTER

NEWSLETTER

TEXT MESSAGE
WEBSITE

COUNCILLOR SURGERY
OTHER (please specify)

21.1f no, why?

- don’t know who my councillor is or how to contact them

- party political approaches — would prefer communication on behalf of council
- parents are more likely to be approached, newsletters from political parties more
likely to be targeted at them and picked up and maybe binned by them

- councillors don’t reach out to young people

22.1s there anything else you would like to tell us?

- | believe that helping people to become aware of what the council are doing is

extremely important

- even at school young people throw many of the school newsletters away before

they even get out of the school

- maybe the Youth Forum could have a role in helping to reach out to young

people



Equalities Monitoring Section

Gender
Male: 7
Female: 8
Age
13 and under 1
13-19 12
20-39
40 - 65
65+
Ethnicity
White 8 of whom British 7
Irish
Other Canadian
Mixed 3 of whom White & Black Caribbean
White & Asian
White & Black African 1
Other Peru, British, Caribbean 1
Asian
Asian British 1 of whom Indian
Pakistani
Bangladeshi
Other
Black
Black British 3 of whom Caribbean
African 1
Other
Chinese 0 of whom Chinese
Other
Disability
Do you consider yourself disabled YES:

NO: 14



Appendix J
Northampton Borough Council
Consultation Principles & Protocol

Draft

1. General Principles

Northampton Borough Council acknowledges and is fully committed to
taking into consideration the views of all stakeholders and in particular
citizens of Northampton about the services provided by the Council and its
partners. The following overall principles will guide the Council’s approach
to consultation:

We Will:

1.

2.

NS

Respect the views of consultees. Listen to, value and seek to learn
from their opinions, comments and suggestions.

Seek to make all consultation projects as representative and inclusive
as possible. In particular ensure that groups who are traditionally not
engaged with the Council or community are given the opportunity to
have their voices heard.

Use consultation to help identify and respond to the needs of different
sectors of the community.

Consult in an open and accessible way, ensuring that people are
informed about consultation projects, results and ensuing actions. Also
ensuring that people are aware about how the consultation process
influences decisions made by the Council and its partners.

Make careful and effective use of resources by building consultation as
part of what the council does in providing services

Work with partners to consult on public services across public bodies.
Continuously improve our approach to consultation learning from our
own experiences and positively seeking to build on experiences of
others.

Ensure that the results of consultation are used to inform and where
possible improve service provision and guide the Council’s policy
making.

2. Principles & Protocol

The following section provides more specific principles and guidance
which should be followed when carrying out any consultation.

| A Right to Confidentiality




As a minimum the Council has a statutory duty to comply with the
requirements of the Data Protection Act. The Borough Solicitor should be
able to advise on this if required.

As a general principle if participants are taking part in a consultation
activity and giving their views, any personal information about them or
information that could identify them should be treated as confidential. The
level will depend on the subject. Permission was always be sought from
the participants if personal data is to be passed on or used.

Using Existing Data/Avoiding Duplication

When starting a new consultation project Borough staff should ensure that
they have taken all reasonable steps to identify any similar projects that
have been done in the past and whether any existing data is available.
The Consultation Officer should be asked to confirm whether any similar
project done by Northampton Borough or partners has taken place and
whether any previous results are relevant. Before commencing a project a
consultation brief outline the aims and objectives of the project should be
circulated to relevant stakeholders for comment. This brief should be
signed off by the Consultation Officer before work proceeds.

Findings & Conclusions

Northampton Borough Council wishes to build a central resource of
consultation projects that can be used to help benchmark how well the
Council progresses in improving consultation with citizens and partners. It
also wants to develop ‘best practice’ and ensure that all consultation
carried out by the Borough is clearly identified as being part of the
Borough'’s strategic objectives. Therefore once a consultation project has
been completed the results and a report detailing the actions resulting form
the work should be provided to the Consultation manager for central
record keeping.

Accessibility

A list of past consultations as well as new projects being undertaken
should be available on both the Borough web site and intranet for internal
and external access.

Approval of a consultation project




All consultation carried out by Northampton Borough Council must be
approved by the Consultation Manager and be seen as ‘fit for purpose’ in
delivering the Council’'s Corporate Plan.

Feedback

All consultation should include a feedback mechanism to the consultees to
inform them of what action was taken as a result of the consultation and
what conclusions were drawn from it

Fit for purpose/appropriate method

A well planned consultation brief should be produced covering the issues
below to help decide which is the best method to be used to conduct the
consultation. The brief should be discussed with the Consultation
Manager. The following areas should be included:

e The kind of information required

The degree of influence that the consultation exercise is likely to
have on any decisions

Timescales

Budget availability

Is the consultation part of any regulatory requirement

Whether any work has been carried out previously in this area
which could be utilised.

Inclusive

In order to be inclusive any barriers to participation should be addressed.
Every effort to include citizens who traditionally do not engage with the council
should be made. In practical terms this may mean providing questionnaires in
alternative languages/large print/Braille for example. Generally it means being
clear about the ‘target’ audience for the consultation and making sure it is
representative of the town as a whole. The consultation must work to ensure it
takes into account the views of black and ethnic minority groups, disabled
people and your people.

Understanding stakeholders

Ensure you understand who you want to talk to as different methods can be
appropriate for different groups of people. You should also consider how to
use the Council’'s Forums and Area Committees to help in this process




Honesty

For every consultation exercise it should clearly explain to those involved the
degree of influence the outcomes will have on Council decisions. This will help
avoid raising expectations that cannot be delivered upon.

Impartiality

It is important that those participating in any consultation exercise have the
chance to form their own opinion and are not influenced by leading questions.
When writing surveys ensure you are objective and don’t ask such questions

e.g.:

Don’t ask

How satisfied are you with the excellent services provided by the
Council?

o Extremely satisfied
o Very satisfied
¢ Quiet satisfied

Do ask:

How satisfied or disattisfied are you with the services provided by
the Council?

Very satisfied

Quite satisfied

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied
Quite dissatisfied

Very dissatisfied

Sharing Data

As a minimum the Consultation Brief should be completed and returned to
the Consultation Manger for every consultation exercise/project
undertaken (details of projects being undertaken will be recorded by the
Consultation Manger and will be introduced onto the intranet. The results
of the consultation should also be sent to the Consultation Manger so they
can be held on a database and be available for other Northampton
Borough Council Services. This will also help in future tracking of progress
where a consultation exercise is repeated.




Action Plan

Every completed consultation exercise should include an action plan to
detail what action will take place as a result of the consultation. This
should not only indicate what changes are being made but should provide
a check date when the actions will be reviewed to see if they have been
achieved. In some cases it may be necessary to specify further
consultation to take place to measure the success of the change.




Consultation Checklist

Consultation is appropriate when you can offer people some choices on what
you are going to do - but not the opportunity to develop their own ideas or
participate in putting plans into action.

Who will conduct the consultation
This person should

e Have suitable authority and be able to communicate effectively
e Be fully briefed
e Be able to respond to issues raised

Where appropriate
The consultation is likely to be most appropriate when:

e You want to improve a service.

e The options can be set out in terms, which community interests can
understand and relate to their own concerns or needs.

o The initiator of the proposals can handle feedback and is prepared to
use this to choose between or modify options.

It is inappropriate when the following apply

e You aren't going to take any notice of what people say.

e You are seeking to empower community interests.

e You are not clear what you wish to do and are seeking ideas.

e You don't have the resources or skills to carry out the options
presented, or other means of implementing.

Methods
Consideration should be given to the following methods for consultation

Surveys and market research.

Consultative meetings.

Consultative committees.

Simulations where the options and constraints are clear.
Text messaging.

Webb Site polls.

Localised door to door surveys

These methods may be used in conjunction with information-giving and
presentational techniques, for example:



Advertisements.
Media briefing.
Leaflets and posters.
Exhibitions.

Videos.

Guidelines

« Consider what levels of response you want and how you will handle it
as well as what you are presenting.

o Make clear how realistic the different options are, and what the pros
and cons are as you see them.

« Be open about your own role, who ultimately takes decisions, how and
when this will be done.

« If you set up a consultative committee, give it clear terms of reference.

Possible problems

You have a low budget.
Use basic information-giving methods plus meetings hosted by local
organisations. Run an open meeting at the end of the process.

You don't have time to do things properly.
Be honest about the deadlines, and use the time-pressure to advantage.

You get more - or less - response than expected.
Was consultation the appropriate stance? Did you think it through from the
audience's point of view?

Consultation checklist
Before taking up a consultation stance consider:

e Are you clear which sections of the community you are consulting, and
have you the means to contact them?

o Are they likely to be satisfied with consultation?

« Can you present your vision and options for achieving it in a way
people will understand and relate to?

e Have you identified appropriate communication methods for the time
available and likely participants?

« Can you and your colleagues handle the feedback?

e Have you arranged for a report back to those consulted?

e Are you prepared to change your stance if people want more than
consultation?

e Are you just seeking endorsement of your plans?



Name of Committee
CABINET

Directorate: Citizens Governance &
Finance

Corporate Manager: Finance & Asset
Management

Date: 3 July 2006

Report Title Capital Programme
Key Decision YES/NO
1. Recommendations

That Councillors approve
1. the additional Capital Programme schemes as set outin Appendix 2;

2. that any capital receipts achieved in excess of the target level are used
to reduce borrowing; and

3. the associated prudential borrowing limits set out in Appendix3

2. Summary

This reports sets out the background to the 2006/2007 Capital Programme
process, the proposed programme for 2006/2007 and the outturn for
2005/2006.

ffernandes\committeepapersformatireporttemplatecabinet160506.doc



3. Report Background

a) The maintenance backlog on general fund operational buildings has
been assessed at just over £14M of which approximately £8.5M is
capital works related. This backlog has accumulated as a result of
providing insufficient funding to maintain existing assets in previous
years. In 2005/2006 a capital budget of £0.8M per year was established.
This funding was only sufficient to stop the backiog increasing not to
begin to address it.

b) Atits meeting on the 16™ February 2006 Cabinet put on hold
uncommitted general fund capital schemes pending a review of those
schemes in light of corporate priorities and the maintenance backlog.
This decision recognised the need to focus first on maintaining the
existing assets used to provide services before considering the scope
for new developments.

c) Subsequent to that meeting Cabinet approved release of Disabled
Facilities Grant to match-fund additional grant received from the
Government and additional resources for Private Sector Renewal
Grants to meet existing commitments. A review has been commenced
into future funding of both schemes in order to ensure corporate
priorities are met.

d) Atits meetng on 5" June, Cabinet approved £150k for the
refurbishment of the Market Square.

e) Appendix 1 Shows the Qutturn for 2005/2006 and the existing
commitments for 2006/2007. On the basis of existing commitments,
there are projected resources of £38k compared to previously
estimates of £1,127k over-programming.

f) In 2005/2006 over-programming of £1M was also incorporated into
original estimates. This was considered a prudent approach given
previously experienced slippage levels. Indeed the revised programme
for 2005/2006 approved in January and shown in Appendix 1 reflected
this level of slippage. The recommendation would be once more to
over-programme by this amount.

4, Options and Evaluation of Options

a) Corporate Asset Board met to make recommendations as to the Capital
Programme in the light of Corporate priorities and the need to maintain
key operational buildings.

b) The programme recommended by Corporate Assets Board is focussed
largely on the need to address the most urgent maintenance backlogs
to keep key buildings operational and address health and safety
implications.

ffernandes\committeepapersformatireporttemplatecabinet160506.doc




¢) The schemes recommended by Corporate Asset Board for approval are
set out in Appendix 2.

d) Going forward the Council will need to review its operational buildings
portfolio in the light of the Corporate Plan and service Plans to assess
their “fitness for purpose” and future maintenance needs. The financial
impact will be built into the Medium Term Financial Strategy to ensure
we improve our approach to whole-life costing and our requirements
for assets.

5. Resource Implications (including Financial Implications)

a) It is proposed that the schemes recommended for approval by the
Corporate Assets Board are funded as follows:

£000
Total costs of proposals 3,514
Existing Surplus Resources -38
Prudential Borrowing -2,250
Transfer from Risk Management Reserve -200
Over-programming 1,026

b} The transfer from the risk management reserve represents elements of
the Boundary Walls/Security Fencing schemes that should improve
security and reduce future claims.

¢) Prudential Borrowing of £2M will have an ongoing revenue cost of
£258k p.a. over the next ten years. In order to minimise this impact, the
first call on any additional capital receipts achieved above the target
level will be to reduce this level of borrowing.

6. Risk and Opportunity Issues

a) The proposed programme goes some way towards addressing the key
risks to the ongoing business of the Council of failure to address
essential maintenance needs of the Councils operational buildings. It
should be noted that this only addresses those most urgent issues
from the maintenance backlog and by now means addresses it fully.

bh) Some provision is also included fo allow the Council to exploit external
funding opportunities.

¢) The programme includes provision for PC replacement and existing
planned systems upgrades. Future IT re-investment needs will be fully
re-evaluated during the year to ensure that future development needs
can be met and opportunities for improved business processes
exploited.

ffernandes\committeepapersformatireporttemplatecabinet160506.doc




7. Consultees (Internal and External)

Internal . Improvement Board

| Corporate Assets Board

Senior Corporate Management Team
Service Managers (to identify schemes)

External | External consultation as part of the budget consultation
exercise.
8. Compliance Issues
A: How Proposals Deliver Priority Outcomes

Recovery Plan

Seeks to address some of the asset utilisation issues by focussing resources
on key operational buildings and addressing part of the maintenance
backlog. The Capital Programme feeds into the Medium Term Financial Plan.

Corporate Plan

The Capital Programme provides for assets in support of provision of
services,

B: Other Implications

Other Strategies

The Capital Programme feeds into the Asset Management Plan and IT
Strategy.

Finance Comments

The financial implications of the proposal are set out above. Additional
prudential borrowing of £2M is being proposed in order to address those
most immediate maintenance issues and the need to prevent failure of key
operational buildings. This assessment of the key maintenance issues and
the costs of addressing these has been assessed by reference to condition
surveys and detailed cost estimates.

The prudential borrowing is shown as being paid back over a ten year period,
as part of the ongoing improvement to the Medium Term Financial Strategy it
is intended to look at a proper asset replacement/ maintenance programme
for all of the Council’s general fund assets to ensure operational service
needs are met now and in the future..

Legal Comments

ffernandesicommitteepapersformatireporitemplatecabinet 160506 . doc




9. Background Papers

Title Source
Capital Programme Modern.gov
2006/2007 and 2006 on review of the Capital
beyond. Programme.
Disabled Facilities Report to Cabinet 8th May 2006 Modern.gov
Grants and Private on additional funding.
Sector Renewal
Grants
Market Square Report to Cabinet 5 June 2006 | Modern.gov
Refurbishment
Alison Betts
Corporate Manager Finance & Asset Management
ext. 8718
Name Signature Date Ext.

Author é % - m 2if6foe | BB
Corporate Manager %m M afufos| SN
Director S /C_,_/ 22/L(x

or Deputy

Monitoring Officer / -~ |
1> AR
(Key decisiononly) | << ]

Section 151 Officer

or Deputy 20 /4, ”
{Key decision only) Ma" % / 18

ffernandes\committeepapersformatireporttemplatecabinet160506.doc






Z9S¢EL SSbrl 950€ (4440 06692 899LZ
00z ore 6¢- 6¢ azr 59
a9 9¥9 109 Ovs- 9¢vT 9681
0s1 051 6oL} [51] ot 1EG) 96¢
1558 9106 09T ZL82- GZLEL t48 13
(494 66127 959 r4 4 G6E€99 FAR
09l rogL £9¢ - 44:T4 8T
000.3 000.3 000.3 000,3 000,3 000.3
10/900Z 2019002 90/5002 90/500¢ 20/5002 aeqg o)
awweifiory swweiboig paesIO) puads awweiboig pusdg
paaciddy paaoiddy Allen Janoirapun} peaosddy yasew
Apuaungy sQ-uer

SS0HOV H3ICBOSIQ ANV JNIYD 3DNAIY OL SHINLYYd HLIM MHOM
SUINLYY HNO HLIA DNINEOM NOLJNVHLIHON NI NOILYAIYC3Ad 32NA3y

FAKD TVLINTGANCHIANT 30NA3Y
ANY NOLJWYHLHON NI 3N3JS 133HLS JHL 30 SSANMNYITI THL FJAOHJWI

TT¥ HO3 SINOH LNA23Q 40 ALMIEYIIVAY JHL JHNSNT

NOLLYHINIOIY ANV LNIWLSIANI
THVMNI HOd INFWNOHIANT DINONODT JAILDVYLLY NV NIVLSNS ANV JLVIHD

$32AUIS ANNIAIY ANV S1I4INZE ONISNOH JAOHUdN! OL ANNILNOD



yauelg pue ajhoy | aseyd Jo aweane Buipuad pamenal 9q o) ,

juswysiqingdy aienks anen
[uig (IH Auaganig
S{ENPISAY

Aaqqy audeag

Jo0y [BADY

Jusliysinay

FuUBUUIBWY

sjuauRAcid)

iojelauacy dmyseq

{p) wwebolg ysauay

(Z) aunpnyselyu|

{g) wawdopasg

$S5300Y pIqesl]

0

slej 4 Buiohoay

saioe BuloAosy speibdn
adioyisBuy voisuapxg
uaisinboy

juawdinbg Aelq sy Ys(200
yed ugBuigy funcag
SI9%307

1zZznoer

swoocy Buibueyn maN
apeldn

Buipun4 yojep syuswsaaiduw|
S19)I0 | JusLolY

aienbg e
Ajadoid JUsuwisany|
S|ENpISSY

Aadord JUsWisaau|
sleayl

Aadorg waunssau)
wm_.___U___._m Uumhon._oo
jleypincy

ALDD

Afiojouyoa] uonewuo|
uanelbipy swelulen
Woyshs [eucnerRdo)
sBuiping o1jand
ajebulaq zg

jodag] aBpLgisaps
jodaq abBpugisapa
Aojpwasy
Alsjawarny

saoedg uadoysiied
ssordg uadoysyjied
sBury/seueq;sjunoy
syieg siunap
saoedg uadoysiied
wnasnpy uoiBuigy
aneay|

seords uadoysyied
1D si0kepy

. 126png anusaay Jo a3

14H
14H

PESEERESSE

oW
Ewwywvy
OWwWww

SH2
SHO
SHD
34D
SH3
SH2
SO
203
a3

£14dH
Z1dH
FA-AR
avL
[A-AR
0Zvyd
8lvd
FAR LS
givd
Glvyd
Fivd
FAL
[A%E ]
1es3
#S3
eZs3
¢s3
99543
954D
P95HO
£984D
BESHD
9£8Hd
BZSHD
64842
242
1000

NOLLYHINIOTH ANV LNIWLSIANI GHYMNI ¥Od LNTANOUIANT JINONODI JAILOVHLLY NY NIVLSNS ANV 2LvadD

Ltz 6612 989 ZZi- 6E99 L1BS

0sl 0 0 o ¢] 0

0 0 512 sle- G961 sl

0 0 A 4] Z-

0 0 gl- 5l 0

0slL 05! ¢ 051 gL

0 0 Se- 85 1 %4

008 008 901 906 ZioL

0 0 sle- 122 cl

0 0 ] ol- 6€ 62

0 0 9 o 0 g

0oe 00£ A [4 £6t S6v

0 0 Zl Zl- 0 cl-

0 0 €- €L oll

0 0 002 0oe- ooe 0

0 o8l 0 4] 0

0 0 8 18- 00% iy

0 0 LG G- 06e 661

0 00z o] 4] 0

0 0 4] € €

0 0 } 0z ¥4

0 0 gl 4] Sl

¢ 0 LG 25- 65 Z

10} LIOL £ 8 b

a szl 0 0 0

¢ 0 86 001 861

] €€ 0z 0Z- ve ¥

¢ 0 0 6 6

0 0 6l- 0051 18kl

091 P09k £9% ad £292 (43144

gEL gEL vol t01- 62E) 41504

o a o ot 5G 18

148 1i8 GIE £ 6eC) zecl

000.3 0003 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
L0/3002 L0/9002 90/5002 90/500Z 90/500Z ajeq o}

swuweifosd awweiBoiq presmacy puads awesbiolg puads
peaciddy paacaddy e 1waoiiepun)  paaciddy yoiey

(2} uswaoedoy waisis
anued PEa] P YD "DIA

{1} A0Sy 210093 Bunuswaduw|

uoneibiy sweyuiey
doyg dojg auQ
AGOjoUYDa ] uoIELLOU|

A4
v
A4

Elvd
Livd
2vd

SIDIAYAS ANNTATY ANV SLIFINTE ONISNCH FAOHAWNI OL INNILNGD



15588 9106 092 il6T- 8ZEE) ZL¥0L

0 0 59- S0€ ove

0 0 14 £l il

0 0 6 8 FA S

0 0 L4- S0l e

0 0 59- 59 ¢

0 0 G9- ool 1

0 0 5G- 06 §€

0 0 £l GG 49

0 0 001- 0o} V]

0 0 - 0% ¥

0 0 1§- 00l gt

0 0 94- 0¢ ¥l

0 0 1zl 051 x4

0 0 1Z- G ¥

0 0 £g- 08 iv

aol 00} 0z- 74 ] 8

9919 9919 0 0 4]

0 0 e AT £94

0 0 ooz- 00z 4]

0 0 £i- 08 L

4 0 LG~ 051 £6

005 00s 0 0 ¢

) 0 4} 0.8 88

¢ 0 99 G9EL £ 41

0 0 L)~ oole £661

o 0 So¥ 005 S06

o 0 9 g0l FLL

0 0 Evl- 17 AR

0 0 ¢l 0 £l

0 0 9 0st 961

ols 0LS 8i- 0l9 A%

0 g 8z- 0zl Z6

0 g L6 0s Let

0 g 0zZ- 14 0

ol i+ 9- 2 Z

7 52 9- 8z 02

0 o Sl G- Gyl 0

0 0 Sk S SHL 0

(114" Ors 21 169 LEL

005 596 LE GEB Zi6

1474 0oz 0 S G

000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
0/900Z 10/9002 90/500C 90/5002 20/5002 ayeq o

swwesbold  awwesBoig pliesuoy puads awweibolg puadg
paaosddy paaoaddy Auep 1aaof(iapun} peaacsddy Youew

suoIAUT 18jeg
uonoI|I0) ASeM

A@jes 2 yyeaH

Bupied jen

spuediay) Jedses

SHIOM ¥a(a

FomyoLg

saoua4

UORNEIAIH 2114 ' SOUB|BAING
81003 mmﬂm@

sapelbidn Au3g 100Q
s31uoojeq yyeaH sbury
$38IN07) J00Id dweq
sj00Y uieg

$j004 JB|4

Sy

1]

sploA [euded

sBoud suonesiuiapopy
SWogIyleg oypy
SUIYOWH Joypy

sBulamQ Jing WasAg
fHuyooyay

wawaoe|day
wawese|day MOpUIp DAN
S,UCIJESILISPAW PIOA

G

fummay

wawaoeday

m.__maﬂm_ |einjoniis

Jojoes dand

suchelaly pajgesig
{shomng) Ayopes g yyeaH
fyayeg 9 uyeaH

4]

4]

awaysg Busnoy papoddng
ise3 sbpuguinog

103995 9leAld

SJUBIS) UoIjEADUSY
AGejens Buisnoy Lidwg

SHIOAA [EJUSLUUOKAUT
SHIOAA [BJUSWIUONAUT
SYJOAA [BIUSUUONALT
SHIOAA [BIUSWUONAUT
SHIOAA [BIUSWILOHALT

SWOoY AJUnwwosg
HomNOUY
saoua

UONEDaI 8lid 5§ SduEeAINg

sioo(] abeleny
sapelGdny Aju3g Joog
sajucajeqg yjeay sbury
§65In07) Jooid dweq
Sj00Y Weg

$jo0y jeld

syn

SOUADAIL SJUBUD ]
piepuelg Aouanaq
prepuels Asusasg
piepuels fousnag
piepuels Asusasq
sjuawaaoidul] a3
fuyooysy

saoueddy seo)
usueoe|day MopUIp
SUOIESIUIAPOI PIOA
S|enpisay

Bummay

sjo0y afeleny

sileday |einjonng
SjueIcy saijjoey palgesiq
sucnelaly paqesiq
Aefeg % yyesH

Aajeg 2 yyeaH

¢ Auadold joH4

awaypg 19aNg 1eaH

.. - swweiford oHSY
aswwelford oHSY
SjuRIY) sty pajgesiq
$Juels) UoHBAOUSY
ABsieng Guisno Adwg

494
49H
49H
49H
49H
49H
494

8¥vHH
L¥YdH
SFvdH
SPYHH
#rYdH
£¥vHH
ZPvdH
I¥YHH
O0PvHH
BEVHH
8EVHH
LEYHH
9EVHH
GEVHH
¥EVHH
£EVHH
ZEVHH
LEWHH
62vdH
92vuH
SZveH
£2vdH
GIVHH
¥ivdH
£IvuH
0lvdH

8vdH

8vHH

LvHH

9vHH

SYHH

¥vdH
EZvdH

Z¥HdH
21494
L149H
0149H

940H

€49H

Z49H

L4OH

TV 404 STINOH LNIDFAQ 40 ALMIGYTIIVAY JHL FUNSNI



002 orz 8g- (13 ozd SoF
0 oF 0 0 0 uolesay UoRoY 1e4 sprejjog saoedg uedQ 1@ sHied SHD  ZZsuD
002 ooz 6¢- 6% azr S9¥ Jedsed spafoid ledsen 83 §183
NOLdWYHLAON SSOHOY H3QHOSIA ANY JNIND IINATH QL SHINLHYL HLIM MHOM
9¥9 o¥9 109 0v5- 9erT 9681
005 008 002 00z- ¥iElL A uonoy Jed 2IUa7Y) 80IN0SAY SYO 0
a¥l opL L ] I sainjnd Bulpjing lopag Aejunjoa dS0  1dSD
] ] 6/ GLs Lo IMH dwes sanuagd Ajunuwo) SHD  LGSHD
0 0 oL ¥ 2] ajug) funwwio) maN sha uojnop SHD SESHD
0 ] €T £z 0 sneday 1oley sanua) Aunwwo? SHD  LSHD
0 0 L0V L0b- 00% 6 aueq uojel uswysiqinsy 49H £149H
SHIANLYY HNO HLIM DNIMEOM NOLJWYHLHON NI NQILYAIMd3a 39NA3y
051 05t 8011 L¥ol- L8561 96¥
¢ 0 £ ¢ ] F4 awayog juaysiqinay 03UOH YNy SIS |1y ad sad
o 0 ¥eS ¥65- ¥65 0 saoed Aunuwos Aajjep auap Jaddn ad 20d
051 051 i6 46- 054 €6 awaysg 9002-500T Boud juawasueyul veqin ad 9ad
0 0 9.2 9lz- 9.2 0 wed Agunog Aapep auaN Jaddn ad 6ad
0 a €9 £2) g8l dw| (euoneaizay/aug Boud juswaouryus ueqin ad £ad
0 0 zZ ze- ot 81 IWBYDS UBIYSIINISY yog fay slwouco] abejay ad Zad
0 a 0 GlL Gl juswdinby (eaoway YD . jodag] aBpLqsapa s3 2183
0 c i-18 FLIN 1) e} sdw j9|loL SBOUAUBAUCD JGNd $3 1s3
(] ¢ ] £91 691 sjuatwenoidu) axen saoedg uadQysyled SHD  Z¥sSHo
] o - 4} gl Buouag py adicwjsiayioy sjuBWio|Iv SHD 0ESHD
INIHD TYLNIWNOHIANT 32N0TY ANY NOLJWYHLHON NI 3N3DS 133H1S JHL 40 SSIANITNYI 1D IHL JACUINI
000,3 000.3 0003 000.3 000.3 000.3
2019002 20/3002 0/5002 2045002 20/5002 aeq o)
aunweigosq awweibosg PIRAIO) puads awwesBoly puadg
paaouddy paroiddy e daaoflJapun]  paacuddy yaen



e LZkL- 0 (441 682Z- Z

Z9Stl §5tP) 9508 [£A% o 06692 89912

008EL 8eZeel 9508 0 L0LSE 99912

L4 L1447 gz 0 bivy Li8%

0 008 riEl Fi€1

0 Los 0 0

0 0 0 %4

4] 0 0 €

0 0 0 05

a 0 0 9

0 0 184 G961 084)

a 1] o

0 0 9t 73

4] 0 GiE 6.¢€

0 0 o0gl 054

4] 0 gcc L0€

ee G €62 £62

0 0 691 11174 LE

005¢ 00se ZiZ 0 00s¥ B6ES

gose 0052 000e 6ZST

Q00) 000t Zle 00s1 0482

1] g (474 J (11:FA )

9689 9689 1) 88lL

717" 0 174:11 440 0

90L1 90i1 £591 £591L

0 0 068 0 08EL L+13

0 0 1Y

0 0 ave 1.4

0 0 i Z8g

0 0 i8

0 0 5G oG

0 0 0se 052

0 0 12 1ee

0 0 4] 9

a 0 8E ¥l

000.3 000.3 0003 000.3 000.3 000.3
109002 £0/9002 90/5002 90/5002 90/5002 sjeg o)

awwelbolg  swweiBoly paeauo) puads aunuelbold puads
paacaddy paaoiddy Auen 1aaoj{1apun)  paaciddy yale

d¥0 229N0OS3
NYNLLNO AZLYWNILST

FAMAVIHVAY S30UN0S3IH AILVINILST

B 9UN0SIY UCNCT Jed JOIN/AN 7 YAW3
SLI00Y m_.__mr_m_._o MSN UOIIEpUND ||EQIOO0H
vadi
aJnydinog synoog
HYdSYD
[eUoLWaK YU siouely
1aulg Aagan|g uoidweyuon 1saau]
SYI S0URINSU) YoLng
sbejual ys|bug
SUET U003 NJAO
JUBLULISACE) U003 Bunuawsjduy
Buipung dpaQ
eI s8liioed pajgesiq
SLNYHD! ONIANND TYNHILX3

d3 (samed Aunwwon) 1aMsid 1SaM WINos
901 NOILDSS

{Buimosiog Jsuiefie parsnipe ucisiaold o) pallaysuel} Y8z sapnjous) BuisnoH

pund |[e1auac
SLdIF23M TVLIdYD

NOLLNEIFNLNOD JAYISIY VHH/ANNIAIY VdH
JAINVMOTIV SHIVdIH HOrvin
ONIMOHHOE QALHO0ddNSNN

ONIMOHEOED Q3140ddNS

uecy Buiuue|d
Buipung dmQ
IH dweg 99N
samasay (epdesy
(ssniioed Ajunwwion} 1o11s81q 1S3/ YINOg
(samoed AYUNWIWOD} LIS 1SR UIN0S
(ued Ajuned) oISl MS 90| uonoag
(ped Lwnog) ousia AMs 901 uoyoasg
sidisoay [endes

4/d 3ONYIvda

SIAUNOSTY






"wiia] Buo| 2yl Ul papasu aq |im 3oeds
[euonippe adioyisbury je psynuspl
uaaq sey aseds [euonippe ybnoy |

- uojdwieylIoN Jo uoisiaold ainjny

puer]

002 ayj Joj aoeds [elIng mau apiaoid 0] | Auajewe)) jo uoiisinboy
¢ xipuaddy ul Ino Jas ale sawayds enplAlpu| "80/.00Z PUE L0/9002
"S8OIAISS pue aINjanis 'auqgey Buiping usamjaq (anuaaal) W/ g3 pue
0] oabewep |jenuanbasucd Jo uoneESILWIUIN (lendes) wg g3 se pasuobajed usaq
‘uoesiwIulw ysu pue Ajpges ollgnd  © sey Bopoeq 8y “(WnUUe/000'0563
“(syuswiannbal aane|siba)) Alojes g yjlesy © Ajjuaing) asueusajuiew
‘AINUiUoD ssauisng © pauue|d pue aaisucdsal Sapnioxe
‘elI9)u0 BUIMO)|0) BY) UC paskq uaaq sey SIyl '000'0SZ' P13 Se psiyiuspl Bopoeg asueusjuiely
sjuswalinbal JO JUSWISSSSSE U pue JNo pslies ussq uaaq sey saipadoid ajelodion JO uononpay
Gpl'z | sey uoneuwuocu Bopjoeq doueUBJUIBW JO MIIA3L Y 1o} Bopjoeq asueusjuiewl [ejo) ay | - sBuipjing aqeiodion
‘uolje|sibs| ayy
UIYHM PaYIep] S|eIsaWI} SU} LiYim Juswsoe|dal si
10§ $20JN0s8l {eouUeUy S) Jo Buiuue|d saoaye o|qeus
PUB [I2UN02 34} U0 BABY [ SIY) 1BY] 1oedun [eisueul ‘010z wody juesabiuyal zzy Jo asn
8y} JO JUSIXa By} UIBUSISE 03 Apnis AJjiqises) B | 3y} mefno Ajjuaind asay | "uone|sibal
o} Alesso0au alojelay) si )| ‘uone|sifa) sy Ag pajoaye u sabueys ypm Ajdwios o) sbuippng
aq [im yey) spun Buiuompuod ne aaey Ajjusiing 9)e10d102 ulyIMm spun Buiuoipuocd awweiboid
yey} sbuip|ing [1oUNGD WOy INC palIed ale saonuds | Jle Buioe)dal 1o} syuawalinbal Apusp Juswaoe|day
Gz Hoddns pue 10anp S,[10Unco aY) Jo AIsAljep sy | pue Joedw ssasse o) Apnis Ajjigisea Buiuonipuo) Iy
~sbumiy pue louajul ay) 1o} s|qisucdsal "epuabe ay}
S1 1SN | Sa1jeay | 8y} IS[IUM ‘@Injoniis pue IoLIaIXa | UC 31ayMas|a Jodal Ul Ino 1as s|ielad siomod pojebajap
3y} Jo nedas ayy 1oj AjjIqisuodsal sulejas [I2uUno) ay) ‘sainjony)g Buloo){ pue s)osy8Q lapun uea ol
‘ases| Jussaid ay} Jo suua) Syl JIapun “pAYWIT Isni | iaquii] pue uojjesnsuad dweq Lep Aq paaosddy
saleayy uojdweyuop ay) o) 18| ale yoiym saipadosd ‘slieday JOOy ‘|eAOWISY S0)SaqSY saleay|
p¥S | paumo [Iounoy) aie sanesy) ajebuieg pue jehoy syl 0} Bunea: sanljiqisuodsay plojpue] ayebulaq 9 jedoy
aunp
"ApJtedoal ul sem JoIeW 3y Jo AJjIgRIA pue AJIje}iA BL)) ‘sjuawianoldwi Ajpjes pue | .G Jsuige) Ag pasoiddy
UONOE INOYYM JeY) pUE JodIeul JUSLIND 34} YIm sanssl | Y)jesy pue JnoAe; mau sjescdiodul o) — JuawIysigIney
oSl payBiybly ooz W 19xMeW J100pINo 3y} JO MaIASI Y | aJenbg jaxyiepy 8y Jo JuaysigqInay alenbg 193eW
0003
1509 posN Buluueld asiaiag payipuapl uonduossaq yoofold

SIANIHOS A3SO0dOUd JWINVHOO¥d TVYLIdVD




"$$900€ 0] sJalleq jesisAyd ayl asacidwi o} Bulop ale
Aay] ylom 3y} pue sajjuoyine [eoso| sioyuow (sbuiping
ollqnd 0} 800y paiqesid) 951 IdAG UoIppe uj
"$$3008 0} si1alieq [ed1sAyd SUWI0DISA0 O} JUSLUILIOIIAUD
|eaisAyd ay} o} spuawysnipe sjqeuoseal ayew

"00¥'693 s! 1Bl |JA] %G6 Ino

(951 1dAG ®)
sfuipjing oyqngd

0Z | 0} peYy aAey s13piacid a0IAISS $O0Z 1970100 1S| 92UIS Ljoea) 0} ainjipuadxs pasodoid ay| 0} $$900Y pa|qesi
‘(Jussaid je Ajjeuosess jJo peajsul) Jeak
ay) noybBnouy) Ajpaosys a1ow pasn aq o Bulp|ing "B0IADG WIhasn|y
ay) s|qeus o} paubisap sem 1oaloid ay] ‘wnasnpy ay] 10} sNLIOUd |[BISAC BU} L)iMm
uolBuUIQY 1B PasSaIppe 9 0} padu PINoM Yolym 038 aul} ul s1 Judwaaoidwl ayj Jey) pue
uoneloasp ‘(A1ajes 2 yjesH) Buuanodiool) Jo sanssi 19Bpnq anusaal ay) 1o} suoesdu
ale 319y} pasoso.d 0} Jou aiam piq ay) J| jod Buipuny BuioBuo ou ag [im 212y} Moys
-yojew ay) o} ppe 0} spuny Buisies Apealje ale oym 0} paonpoid Buiag aseo ssauisng
‘UoBINOSSY [ejuaunbay ay) Apenoiped ‘sioployoyels | e 0} Joalgns si awayos ay; Jo [eaciddy
|BUISIXa Apealje ale alay | aininy Y} Ul 3jge)ieae
juelb Jo JuUNoWe ay) eonpal |jIm weans uo Buiuod ‘Ajaoyiny ayy Joj uoijul
10848 sardwA|O ay) pue ‘ebueyd o3 anp ale sapuoud L3 punole ul Buug pinod JUsWisSaAul
$,41H — Wwepodw st Buiny ayj -anysuoydweyuoN siy} — pun4 A1a)01 abejay ayj 0}
Gzl ul puny o} sjoafoid Joj Bupjoo) st 41H YL | Pig B Joj Buipuny yojew si 1GZLF Syl wnasnjy uojbuigy
punol UOI}I3||02 S)SEM YOES YOB|q B U0 aJe Jey) siel
apisbuoje sin220 jeyy asnyal paddiy Al jo Junowe ay}
aonpal djay os|e Aewl a21A13S SIU} JO UOONPOAUI 9Y |
‘9sj@ auocAIans se sanioe; Bulpioal 0) $se00E BWES
ay) aney Aay) Jey) os ‘Ul aa) Asy Auadoud Jo adA)
ay} Jo ssajpiebal syuspisalssiawosno e o} Ajenba
aInsus 0] ‘iounc) ybnosog ucjdweylUonN 0} swodu
9SBaIIUl 0] €007 10V BuijoAoa)y 2JSEAA plOYyasSnoH ajel Bunsodwoo pue BuipAoal
auy) yum Aldwoo o] “(S1V1} IIPue) ol Sjsem HoAIp OdN Buiseasous 0} payu| joslold
Jayuny o] ‘|lupuel Wol) S)Sem LaAip Jayunj oy ugid ‘ybnosog ay} ui sbuljjamp
uonejusws|dwi ABajens sjsem [eianc jo Jed pue asu ybiy pue sje|} wol} sajqejohoail
08l | %9¢ Jo 1abuey BuioAosl go/Go0z Aloinjels ayy 1eswi o] | AIp 109)|00 0} S9[0e)da03l JO UOISIAOIY | - - Sle|d ul BuipAdey
8072002 ul 9oe|d axej} o} josfoud
jo abejs |eurd "900Z |udy Joy pauue|d uoyepeIsul Ym
paJjepic U33Q dAkY Sjiun 19)10) sy "/0/90 PUe 90/S0
¢ | siead uloeq o) 32ed jno palued Buiaq st 19aloud sy | | says JUSWI]O|e UC S19]10) JO uoie||e)sul $18(10 . JuUswWio|y
0003
150D pasN Buluue|d a21a18g paynpuap] uonduoasaq yoeloud




002

"SWIA)SAS pue S1emyos mau Jo sjuswalinbal
Auoedes ypm aui| ul Aloedes D4 ulejuiew o]

‘ouelg
pue j00y Jo jinsal & se 900¢/S002 U!
papuadsns awweifiold Juswaoe|doy
1d Butobuo ayj ajeisui-a1 0

aswweaboid
Jswaoe|day Od

0003
1809

pooN Buiuue|d a91A19g panuapy

uondussaqg

yo0louy







000'svL'Z3 V101l

0000083 - Buipuny paaoidde Ajjuating

000'09¢3 (sanuadold YyH UON) sawoH juadag (9

sloop ‘smopuim ‘sjool (63) ouge) pue ainjonlls
0} sbewep ssiwuiw pue sBuiping jojoid o) syuom Jusbin
000°0¥S3 adojaau3 jeusayxy (g

"9JJUS0 ({82 auy} JO JiNsSal B SB 9SNOH a||IAUCHID) e ssadoe
suoydalal Jo uoneuasuod Buimoljo) WalsAs suoydslo) s j1ounod
ay) 0} dn-yoeq epincid 0} J0jeisuab e Joj Buipuny Yo .3

Bunyd Asusblawa pue saamsal ‘swiee (ba)

000'6813 fjajeg (eano2| (¥
uone)s snq ‘seuseWad ‘sysed Jeo ‘sasedg uadQ g sied ‘siodag
'sapnjou|

000'08V3 ainjonyseyu] Aempeoy paydopeun g yedjood (¢
seoedg uadQ ¥ sied ‘sied Je) ‘sjuswioly ‘SsluS1PwWan
sspn|ou|

000°0L¥3 Bulousq fHunoag ; sjlep Aepunog (2
"awsyos JUSWIYSIqINJal [je1aao au) Jo Med se paspuny eq o} 000'0S3 - wansny uojbuiqy
000'0S3 w)sAs UCRE|IIUSA uopey wnasnpy uolbuiqy
0000013 uawsoedal BuluolIpuOD Jie pue Jooy wnasnp [enusd
000'06L3 Jswade|dey seIMag [elUBYIBN § UEld SaJuaY) 8INsa
000'0023 Juswiaoelday uley Jajepn 1odaQ abpugisap
000'00Z3 sjuswiaAoidw] 400y _ 8SNOH SIIAUCHIID

000'0263  Juswooeidey yun BulpueH ay % Jsjog 9SNOH S{jIAUOYID
sjoofoid sofely (1

psloid yoes Joj sabejs ubisap pue Alliigises) Jo uoiaidwod uo uojewluoD 0] Josigns aie molaq pajeoslpul S1soD

¢ Xipuoddy






Appendix A

TREASURY MANAGEMENT
POLICY STATEMENT

Part 1: Main Principles

JULY 2006







TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

Treasury Management Practices (TMPs) set out the manner in which the Council will seek to achieve
its treasury management policies and objectives and how it will manage and control those activities.

TMP 1 Treasury risk management

TMP 2 Best value and performance measurement

TMP 3 Decision—making and analysis

TMP 4 Approved instruments, methods and techniques

TMP 5 Organisation, clarity and segregation of responsibilities, and dealing arrangements
TMP 6 Reporting requirements and management information arrangements
TMP 7 Budgeting, accounting and audit arrangements

TMP 8 Cash and cash flow management

TMP 9 Money laundering

TMP 10 Staff training and qualifications

TMP 11 Use of external service providers

TMP 12 Corporate governance



TMP1 TREASURY RISK MANAGEMENT

“The responsible officer will design, implement and monitor all arrangements for the identification,
management and control of treasury management risk, will report at least annually on the
adequacy/suitability thereof, and will report, as a matter of urgency, the circumstances of any actual or
likely difficulty in achieving the Council’s objectives in this respect, all in accordance with the procedures
set out in TMP6 Reporting requirements and management information arrangements. In respect of each of
the following risks, the arrangements which seek to ensure compliance with these objectives are set out in
the schedule to this document.”

[1] Liquidity risk management

“The Council will ensure it has adequate though not excessive cash resources, borrowing arrangements,
overdraft or standby facilities to enable it at all times to have the level of funds available to which are
necessary for the achievement of its business/service objectives.”

[2] Interest rate risk management

“The Council will manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates with a view to containing its net
interest costs, or securing its interest revenues, in accordance with the amounts provided in its budgetary
arrangements as amended in accordance with TMP6 Reporting requirement and management information
arrangemenis

It will achieve these objectives by the prudent use of its approved financing and investment instruments,
methods and techniques, primarily to create stability and certainty of costs and revenues, but at the same
time retaining a sufficient degree of flexibility to take advantage of unexpected, potentially advantageous
changes in the level or structure of interest rates. The above are subject at all times to the consideration and,
if required, approval of any policy or budgetary implications.”

[3] Exchange rate risk management

The Council will manage its exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates so as to minimise any detrimental
impact on its budgeted income/expenditure levels.

It will achieve this objective by the prudent use of its approved financing and investment instruments,
methods and techniques, primarily to create stability and certainty of costs and revenues, but at the same
time retaining a sufficient degree of flexibility to take advantage of unexpected, potentially advantageous
changes in the level or structure of exchange rates. The above is subject at all times to the consideration and,
if required, approval of any policy or budgetary implications.”

{4] Inflation ri'sk management
The effects of varying levels of inflation, insofar as they can be identified as impacting directly on its
treasury management activities, will be controlled by the organisation as an integral part of its strategy for

managing its overall exposure to inflation.

It will achieve this objective by the prudent use of its approved financing and investment instruments,
methods and techniques, primarily to create stability and certainty of costs and revenues, but at the same



time retaining a sufficient degree of flexibility to take advantage of unexpected, potentially advantageous
changes in the level or structure of inflation. The above is subject at all times to the consideration and, if
required, approval of any policy or budgetary implications.”

[5] Credit and counterparty risk management

“The Council regards a prime objective of its treasury management activities to be the security of the
principal sums it invests. Accordingly, it will ensure that its counterparty lists and limits reflect a prudent
attitude towards organisations with whom funds may be deposited, and will limit its investment activities to
the instruments, methods and techniques referred to in TMP4 Approved Instruments, methods and
technigues and listed in the schedule to this document. It also recognises the need to have, and will therefore
maintain, a formal counterparty policy in respect of those organisations from which it may borrow, or with
whom it may enter into other financing arrangements.”

[6] Refinancing risk management

“The Council will ensure that its borrowing, private financing and partnership arrangements are negotiated,
structured and documented, and the maturity profile of the monies so raised are managed, with a view to
obtaining offer terms for renewal or refinancing, if required, which are competitive and as favorable to the
organisation as can reasonably be achieved in the light of market conditions prevailing at the time,

It will actively manage its relationships with its counterparties in these transactions in such a manner as to
secure this objective, and will avoid over-reliance on any one source of funding if this might jeopardise
achievement of the above.”

[7] Legal and regulatory risk management

“*The Council will ensure that all of its treasury management activities comply with its statutory powers and
regulatory requirements. It will demonstrate such compliance, if required to do so, to all parties with whom
it deals in such activities. In framing its credit and counterparty policy under TMPI.5 Credit and
counterparty risk management, it will ensure that there is evidence of counterparties’ powers, authority and
compliance in respect of the transactions they may effect with the organisation, particularly with regard to
duty of care and fees charged.

The Council recognises that future legislative or regulatory changes may impact on its treasury management
activities and, so far as it is reasonably able to do so, will seek to minimise the risk of these impacting
adversely on the organisation.”

[8] Fraud, error and corruption, and contingency management

“The Council will ensure that it has identified the circumstances which may expose it to the risk of loss
through fraud, error, corruption or cther eventualities in its treasury management dealings. Accordingly, it
will employ suitable systems and procedures, and will maintain effective contingency management
arrangements, to these ends.”

[9] Market risk management

“The Council will seek to ensure that its stated treasury management policies and objectives will not be
compromised by adverse market fluctuations in the value of the principal sums it invests, and will
accordingly seek to protect itself from the effects of such fluctuations.”



TMP2 BEST VALUE AND PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

“The Council is committed to the pursuit of best value in its treasury management activities, and to the use
of performance methodology in support of that aim, within the framework set out in its Treasury
Management Policy Statement.

Accordingly, the treasury management function will be the subject of ongoing analysis of the value it adds
in support of the organisation’s stated business or service objectives. It will be the subject of regular
examination of alternative methods of service delivery, of the availability of fiscal or other grant or subsidy
incentives, and of the scope for other potential improvements. The performance of the treasury management
function will be measured using the criteria set out in the schedule to this document.”

TMP3 DECISION-MAKING AND ANALYSIS

“The Council will maintain full records of its treasury management decisions, and of the processes and
practices applied in reaching those decisions, both for the purposes of leaming from the past, and for
demonstrating that reasonable steps were taken to ensure that all issues relevant to those decisions were
taken into account at the time. The issues to be addressed and processes and practices to be pursued in
reaching decisions are detailed in the schedule to this document.”

TMP4 APPROVED INSTRUMENTS, METHODS AND TECHNIQUES

“The Council will undertake its treasury management activities by employing only those instruments,
methods and techniques detailed in the schedule to this document, and within the limits and parameters
defined in TMP1, Risk management.”

TMPS ORGANISATION, CLARITY AND SEGREGATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES, AND
DEALING ARRANGEMENTS

“The Council considers it essential, for the purposes of the effective control and monitoring of its treasury
management activities, and for the reduction of the risk of fraud or error, and for the pursuit of optimum
performance, that these activities are structured and managed in a fully integrated manner, and that there is
at all times a clarity of treasury management responsibilities.

The principles on which this will be based is a clear distinction between those charged with setting treasury
management policies and those charged with implementing and controlling these policies, particularly with
regard to the execution and transmission of funds, the recording and administering of treasury management
decisions, and the audit and review of the treasury management function,

If and when the Council intends, as a result of lack of resources or other circumstances, to depart from these
principles, the responsible officer will ensure that the reasons are properly reported in accordance with
TMPG6 Reporting requirements and management information arrangements, and the implications properly
considered and evaluated.



The responsible officer will ensure that there are clear written statements of the responsibilities for each
post engaged in treasury management, and the arrangement for absence cover. The present arrangements
are detailed in the schedule to this document.

The responsible officer will ensure there is proper documentation for all deals and transactions, and that
procedures exist for the effective transmission of funds. The present arrangements are detailed in the
schedule to this document.

The delegation to the responsible officer in respect of treasury management is set out in the schedule to this
document. The responsible officer will fulfil all such responsibilities in accordance with the organisation’s
policy statement and TMPs and, if a CIPFA member, the Standard of Professional Practice on treasury
management.”

TMP6 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND MANAGEMENT INFORMATION
ARRANGEMENTS

“The Council will ensure that regular reports are prepared and considered on the implementation of its
treasiry management policies; on the effects of decisions taken and the transactions executed in pursuit of
those policies; on the implications of changes, particularly budgetary, resulting from regulatory, economic,
market or other factors affecting its treasury management activities; and on the performance of the treasury
management function.

As a minimum, the Executive will receive:

o an annual report on the strategy and plan to be pursued in the coming year

¢ an annual report on the performance of the treasury management function, on the effects of the
decisions taken and the transactions executed in the past year, and on any circumstances of non-
compliance with the Council’s Treasury Management Policy Statement and TMPs.

The present arrangements and the form of these reports are detailed in the schedule to do this document.”

TMP7 BUDGETING, ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS

“The responsible officer will prepare, and the Council will approve and, if necessary, from time to time
amend, an annual budget for treasury management, which will bring together all of the costs involved in
running the treasury management function, together with associated income. The matter to be included in
the budget will at minimum be those required by statute or regulation, together with such information as will
demonstrate compliance with TMP1 Risk management, TMP2 Best value and performance measurement,
and TMP4 Approved instruments, methods and techniques. The form which this organisation’s budget will
take is set out in the schedule to this document. The responsible officer will exercise effective controls over
this budget, and will report upon and recommend any changes required in accordance with TMP6 Reporting
requirements and management information arrangements.

The Council will account for its treasury management activities, for decisions made and transactions
executed, in accordance with appropriate accounting practices and standards, and with statutory and
regulatory requirements in force for the time being. The present form of this organisation’s accounts is set
out in the schedule to this document.



The Council will ensure that its auditors, and those charged with regulatory review, have access to all
information and papers supporting the activities of the treasury management function as are necessary for
the proper fulfillment of their roles, and that such information and papers demonstrate compliance with
external and internal policies and approved practices. The information made available under present
arrangements is detailed in the schedule to this document.”

TMP8 CASH AND CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT

“Unless statutory or regulatory requirements demand otherwise, all monies in the hands of the Council will
be under the control of the responsible officer, and will be aggregated for cash flow and investment
management purposes. Cash flow projections will be prepared on a regular and timely basis, and the
responsible officer will ensure that these are adequate for the purposes of monitoring compliance with
TMPI(1] Liquidity risk management. The present arrangements for preparing cash flow projections, and
their form, are set out in the schedule to this document.

TMP9 MONEY LAUNDERING

“The Council is alert to the possibility that it may become the subject of an attempt to involve it in a
transaction involving the laundering of money. Accordingly, it will maintain procedures for verifying and
recording the identity of counterparties and reporting suspicions, and will ensure that staff involved in this
are properly trained. The present arrangements, including the name of the officer to whom reports should be
made, are detailed in the schedule to this document.”

TMP10 STAFF TRAINING AND QUALIFICATIONS

“The Council recognises the importance of ensuring that all staff invelved in the treasury management
function are fully equipped to undertake the duties and responsibilities allocated to them. It will therefore
seek to appoint individuals who are both capable and experienced and will provide training for staff to
enable them to acquire and maintain an appropriate level of expertise, knowledge and skills. The
responsible officer will recommend and implement the necessary arrangements. The present arrangements
are detailed in the schedule to this document.”

TMP11 USE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDERS

“The Council recognises the potential value of employing external providers of treasury management
services, in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. When it employs such service
providers, it will ensure it does so for reasons which will have been submitted to full evaluation of the costs
and benefits. It will also ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their value
will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular review. And it will ensure,
where feasible and necessary, that a spread of service providers is used, to avoid over-reliance on one or a
small number of companies. Where services are subject to formal tender or re-tender arrangements,
legislative requirements will always be observed. The monitoring of such arrangements rests with the
responsible officer, and details of the current arrangements are set out in the schedule to this document.”
which demand specialist skills and resources.



TMP12 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Council is committed to the pursuit of proper corporate governance throughout its businesses and
services, and to establishing the principles and practices by which this can be achieved. Accordingly, the
treasury management function and its activities will be undertaken with openness and transparency, honesty,
integrity and accountability.

The Council has adopted and has implemented the key recommendations of the Code. This, together with
the other arrangements detailed in the schedule to this document, are considered vital to the achievement of
proper corporate governance in treasury management, and the responsible officer will monitor and, if and
when necessary, report upon the effectiveness of these arrangements.”






Appendix B

TREASURY MANAGEMENT
POLICY STATEMENT

Part 2: Schedules

JULY 2006







TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICES - SCHEDULES

This section contains the schedules which set out the details of how the Treasury Management
Practices (TMPs) are put into effect by this organisation.

TMP 1 Treasury risk management

TMP 2 Best value and performance measurement

TMP 3 Decision-making and analysis

TMP 4 Approved instruments, methods and techniques

TMP 35 Organisation, clarity and segregation of responsibilities, and dealing arrangements

TMP 6 Reporting requirements and management information arrangements

TMP 7 Budgeting, accounting and audit arrangements

TMP 8 Cash and cash flow management

TMP 9 Money laundering

TMP 10 Staff training and qualifications

TMP 11 Use of external service providers



TMP1 RISK MANAGEMENT

1.1 LIQUIDITY

1.1.1

Amounts of approved minimum cash balances and short-term investments

The Council will keep at least £5,000,000 available at 24 hours notice.

1.1.2 There is an agreed overdraft facility of £1,000,000 with the Co-operative Bank.

1.2 INTEREST RATE

1.2.1. Minimum/maximum proportions of variable rate debt/interest
the maximum proportion of interest on Minimum Maximum
borrowing which is subject to variable rate interest. 0% 50%

1.2.2.

1.2.3.

Minimum/maximum proportions of fixed rate debt/interest  Minimum Maximum

50% 100%

Policies concerning the use of financial derivatives and other instruments for interest

rate management.

forward dealing — the Council will enter into forward deals.
callable deposits (fixed investments for up to 5 years at borrower’s option) £1,000,000

LOBOs (borrowing under lender’s option/borrower’s option) are allowable



1.3 CREDIT AND COUNTERPARTY POLICIES

1.3.1. CRITERIA TO BE USED FOR CREATING/ MANAGING APPROVED
COUNTERPARTY LISTS/LIMITS

1. The Chief Finance Officer will formulate a suitable criteria for assessing and monitoring
the credit risk of investment counterparties and shall construct a lending list comprising
time, type, sector and specific counterparty limits.

2. Treasury management staff will add or delete counterparties to/from the approved
counterparty list in line with the policy on criteria for selection of counterparties. The
complete list of approved counterparties will be included in the annual report.

3. The Council will use credit criteria in order to select creditworthy counterparties for
placing investments with.

4. Credit ratings will be used as supplied from Fitch IBCA.
5. In addition, the Council will use building societies which do not have credit ratings.

6. The minimum level of credit rating for an approved counterparty will be as follows
(ratings per Fitch IBCA) : -

Short term  FI

Longterm AA -

Individual C

Support 5
Max. £5m

Individual

limit **

The maximum period for specified investments will be 364 days.
8. The maximum period for non-specified investments will be 5 years.
The maximum value for any one investment transaction will be £5m.

10. The maximum level of investment with any one group of counterparties will be £5m.



13.2

1.3.3

1.34

REMOVING COUNTERPARTIES

Credit ratings for individual counterparties can change at any time. The Chief Finance
Officer is responsible for applying the stated credit rating criteria in 1.3.1. for selecting
approved counterparties, and will add or delete counterparties as appropriate to / from the
approved counterparty list when there is a change in the credit ratings of individual

counterparties or in banking structures e.g. on mergers or takeovers.

The Chief Finance Officer will also adjust lending limits and periods when there is a change
in the credit ratings of individual counterparties or in banking structures €.g. on mergers or

takeovers in accordance with the criteriain 1.3.1.

FULL INDIVIDUAL LISTINGS OF COUNTERPARTIES AND COUNTERPARTY
LIMITS

See Appendix C.

WHICH PROVIDE CURRENT CREDIT RATINGS AND _ UPDATES ON
CHANGES

The Council uses credit ratings supplied through Sector from the following credit rating
agencies .-

Fitch IBCA

1.4 MARKET VALUE OF INVESTMENTS

14.1

The Council limits its exposure to investments whose capital value may fluctuate (gilts,
CDS etc.).
The Council itself does not use these instruments and the limit of its exposure is the amount

managed by its fund manager, who use the instruments.



TMP 2 BEST VALUE AND PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS

2.1.1

22

2.2.1

2.2.2

223

2.24

223

METHODOLOGY TO BE APPLIED FOR EVALUATING THE IMPACT OF
TREASURY MANAGEMENT DECISIONS

The following are used by the Council in its evaluation: the impact on revenue, interest rate
risk, possible changes in Government regulations, the impact on the Housing Revenue

Account and the repayment profile.

POLICY CONCERNING METHODS FOR TESTING BEST VALUE IN
TREASURY MANAGEMENT, e.g.:

Frequency and processes for tendering

Banking services
Banking services will be retendered or renegotiated every 3 years to ensure that the level of

prices reflect efficiency savings achieved by the supplier and current pricing trends.
Money-broking services

The Council will use money broking services in order to make deposits or to borrow, and

will establish charges for all services prior to using them.
An approved list of brokers will be maintained.

Consultants’/advisers’® services

The Council uses Sector as its consultants.

External Managers
The new Code of Practice places an obligation on the Council to monitor the performance of
the fund managers. The Council has appointed Sector Treasury Services Limited to assist in

this respect



2.3

2.3.1

23.2

METHODS TO BE EMPLOYED FOR MEASURING THE PERFORMANCE OF

THE ORGANISATION’S TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

BENCHMARKS AND CALCULATION METHODOLOGY:

Debt management

Average rate on all external debt

Investment.

The performance of investment eamings will be measured against the following
benchmarks: -

in house investments
7 Day LIBID

cash fund manager(s)
6 Month LIBID



TMP 3 DECISION-MAKING AND ANALYSIS

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.4
3.13.1

3132
a)
b)
<)
d)

FUNDING, BORROWING, LENDING, AND NEW INSTRUMENTS/TECHNIQUES:

Records to be kept

Minutes of weekly and other Treasury Management meetings.

Processes to be pursued
Weekly Treasury Management meetings, reports from advisors, conversations with brokers,

information from the internet, the Financial Times and external fund managers.

Issues to be addressed.

In respect of every decision made the Council will:

above all be clear about the nature and extent of the risks to which the Council may become
exposed

Be certain about the legality of the decision reached and the nature of the transaction, and that all
authorities to proceed have been obtained

Be content that the documentation is adequate both to deliver the Council’s objectives and protect
the Council’s interests, and to deliver good housekeeping

Ensure that third parties are judged satisfactory in the context of the Council’s creditworthiness
policies, and that limits have not been exceeded

Be content that the terms of any transactions have been fully checked against the market, and have
been found to be competitive.

In respect of borrowing and other funding decisions, the oganisation will:

Evaluate the economic and market factors that might influence the manner and timing of any
decision to fund

Consider the merits and demerits of alternative forms of funding, including funding from revenue,
leasing and private partnerships

Consider the alternative interest rate bases available, the most appropriate periods to fund and
repayment profiles to use.

Consider the ongoing revenue liabilities created, and the implications for the Council’s future plans
and budgets.

In respect of investment decisions, the Council will:

a)
b)

Consider the optimum period, in the light of cash flow availability and prevailing market conditions
Consider the alternative investment products and techniques available, especially the implications of
using any which may expose the Council to changes in the value of its capital.



TMP 4 APPROVED INSTRUMENTS, METHODS AND TECHNIQUES

4.1 APPROVED ACTIVITIES OF THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT OPERATION

borrowing;

lending;

debt repayment and rescheduling;

consideration, approval and use of mew financial instruments and treasury management
techniques;

managing the underlying risk associated with the Council’s capital financing and surplus funds
activities;

managing cash flow;

banking activities;

the use of external

42 APPROVED INSTRUMENTS FOR INVESTMENTS

In accordance with The Local Organisations (Capital Finance) (Approved Investments) Regulations
1990 and subsequent amendments, the instruments approved for investment and commonly used by
local organisations are:

e Gilts;

s Treasury Bills;

» Deposits and bonds with banks building societies or local organisations (and certain other bodies)
for up to 3 years

e Certificates of deposits with banks or building societies for up to 364 days

o Euro-Sterling issues by certain Supra-national bodies listed on the London and Dublin Stock
Exchanges.

4.3 APPROVED TECHNIOUES

s Forward dealing up to 364 days
o Callable deposits

44 APPROVED METHODS AND SOURCES OF RAISING CAPITAL FINANCE

Finance will only be raised in accordance with the Local Government Act, 2003, and within this
limit the Council has a number of approved methods and sources of raising capital finance. These
are :

PWLB
EIB |
Market (long term, temporary and LOBO’s)

Stock Issues
Local Temporary
Overdraft
Negotiable Bonds

All forms of funding will be considered dependant on the prevailing economic climate, regulations
and local considerations. The Chief Finance Officer has delegated powers through its Policy and
Strategy to take the most appropriate form of borrowing from its approves sources.



4.5 LIMITS

INVESTMENTS
Gilts or Treasury Bills

Deposits
Certificates of deposits
Euro-Sterling.

Forward dealing
Callable deposits

LIMIT
50% of Investec Portfolio

No limits
No limits (Fund Managers only)
No limits (Fund Managers only)

50% of Portfolio
£5m



N T T e s L L QR Sk

PO ,

INDEX OF SCHEDULES

5.1 Limits to responsibilities/discretion at committee/executive levels

5.2 Principles and practices concerning segregation of duties

5.3 Treasury management organisation chart

5.4 Statement of duties/responsibilities of each treasury post

5.5 Absence cover arrangements

5.6 List of approved brokers

5.7 Policy on taping of conversations

5.8 Direct dealing practices



5.1.1

a)

b)
c)
d)
e)

5.2

LIMITS TO RESPONSIBILITIES/DISCRETION AT COMMITTEE/EXECUTIVE LEVELS

Council/The Executive/Scrutiny
Receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, practices and activities.

The Executive

Approval offamendments to the Council’s adopted clauses, treasury management policy statement
and treasury management practices

Budget consideration and approval

Approval of the decision of responsibilities

Receiving and reviewing external audit reports and acting on recommendations

Approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of appointment.

PRINCIPLES AND PRACTICES CONCERNING SEGREGATION OF DUTIES

Treasury management work is carried out by “The Front Office”. Checks on activity daily are carried

out by "The Back Office™

5.3

TREASURY MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION CHART

The Front Office The Back Office

The Chief Finance Officer 3 Nominated Accountants
Finance Managers

Finance Team Leaders

Accountant (Corporate)

Accountant (Technical)



5.3 STATEMENT OF DUTIES/RESPONSIBILITIES OF EACH TREASURY POST

54.1.

Chief Financial Officer

1. The Chief Finance Officer will:

a) Recommend clauses, treasury management policy / practices for approval, reviewing the
same regular, and monitoring compliance

b) Submit regular treasury management policy reports

c) Submit budgets and budget variations

d) Receive and review management information reports

e) Review the performance of the treasury management function and promote best value
reviews

f) Ensure the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the effective division
of responsibilities within the treasury management function

g) Ensure the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit

h) Recommend the appointment of external service providers.

The Chief Finance Officer has delegated powers through this policy to take the most appropriate
form of borrowing from the approved sources, and to take the most appropriate form of investments
in approved instruments.

The Chief Finance Officer may delegate his power to borrow and invest to members of their staff.
The Chief Finance Officer ,Finance Managers and Team Leaders or the Treasury Manager or Deputy
must conduct all dealing transactions, or staff authorised by the Chief Financial Officer to act as
temporary cover for leave/sickness. All transactions must be authorised by at least two of the named
officers above.

The Chief Finance Officer and the Monitoring Officer will ensure that the Policy is adhered to, and if
not will bring the matter to the attention of elected members as soon as possible.

Prior to entering into any capital financing, lending or investment transaction, it is the responsibility
of the Chief Finance Officer to be satisfied, by reference to the Monitoring Officer, the Council’s
legal department and external advisors as appropriate, that the proposed transaction does not breach
any statute, external regulation or the Council’s Financial Regulations

It is also the responsibility of the Chief Finance Officer to ensure that the Council complies with the
requirements of The Non Investment Products Code (formerly known as The London Code of
Conduct) -;for principals and broking firms in the wholesale markets.



5.4.2. Treasury Manager

The responsibilities of this post will be: -

a) Execution of transactions

b) Adherence to agreed policies and practices on a day-to-day basis

c) Maintaining relationships with third parties and external service providers
d) Supervising treasury management staff

e) Monitoring performance on 2 day-to-day basis

) Submitting management information reports to the responsible officer

g) Identifying and recommending opportunities for improved practices.

5.4.3. Head of the paid service

The responsibilities of this post will be: -

a) Ensuring that the system is specified and implemented
b) Ensuring that the Chief Finance Officer reports regularly to the responsible committee/the Council
on treasury policy, activity and performance.

5.4.4. Monitoring Officer

The responsibilities of this post will be: -

a) Ensuring compliance by the Chief Finance Officer with the treasury management policy statement
and treasury management practices and that they comply with the law

b) Being satisfied that any proposal to vary treasury policy or practice complies with law or any code
of practice

c) Giving advice to the Chief Finance Officer when advice is sought.

5.4.5. Internal Audit

The responsibilities of Internal Audit will be: -

a) Reviewing compliance with approved policy and procedures
b) Reviewing division of duties and operational practice
c) Assessing value for money from treasury activities

d) Undertaking probity audit of treasury function.



5.4 ABSENCE COVER ARRANGEMENTS

Accountant (Corporate) is covered by the Accountant (Technical), Finance Managers and Finance Team

Leaders. Back Office has three members any one of which carries out checks.

5.5 LIST OF APPROVED BROKERS
Tradition, ICAP and Prebon.

5.6 POLICY ON TAPING OF CONVERSATIONS

All Treasury Management calls are tape recorded.

5.7 DIRECT DEALING PRACTICES -

The Council does not deal directly with counterparties.




NFORMATION 2

6.1

The Treasury Management Strategy sets out the specific expected treasury activities for the
forthcoming financial year. This Strategy will be submitted to the Executive for approval before the
commencement of each financial year.

The formulation of the annual Treasury Management Strategy involves determining the appropriate
borrowing and investment decisions in the light of the anticipated movement in both fixed and
shorter -term variable interest rates. For instance, the Council may decide to postpone borrowing if
fixed interest rates are expected to fall, or borrow early if fixed interest rates are expected to rise.

The Treasury Management Strategy is concerned with the following elements:

the prospects for interest rates;

the limits placed by this organisation on treasury activities

the expected borrowing strategy;

the expected investment strategy (including the appointment of fund managers);
the current treasury position;

the expectations for debt rescheduling;

any extraordinary treasury issue (such as the implications of a LSVT or housing company set
up).

The Treasury Management Strategy will establish the expected move in interest rates against
alternatives (using all available information such as published interest rate forecasts where
applicable), and highlight sensitivities to different scenarios.



6.2

6.3

6.4

POLICY ON INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

As required by the Local Government Act 2003, the Council must approve before the beginning of
each financial year the following treasury limits:

the operational borrowing limit £50,000,000
the authorized limit £70,000,000

the amount of the overall borrowing limit
which may be outstanding by way of short
term borrowing 50% of the above

2. The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for incorporating these limits into the Annual Treasury

Management Strategy, and for ensuring compliance with the limits. Should it prove necessary to
amend these limits, the Chief Finance Officer shall submit the changes for approval to the
Executive before submission to the full Council for approval.

ANNUAL REPORT ON TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY

An annual report will be presented to the Executive at the earliest practicable meeting after the end
of the financial year, but in any case by the end of September. This report will include the
following; -

a. a comprehensive picture for the financial year of all treasury policies, plans, activities and
results

b. transactions executed and their revenue (current) effects

report on risk implications of decisions taken and transactions executed

monitoring of compliance with approved policy, practices and statutory / regulatory

requirements

monitoring of compliance with powers delegated to officers

degree of compliance with the original strategy and explanation of deviations

explanation of future impact of decisions taken on the organisation

measurements of performance

report on compliance with CIPFA Code recommendations

B 0

= FE e

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION REPORTS

Management information reports will be prepared every Quarter by the Treasury Manager
and will be presented to the Executive, the Chief Finance Officer and the Head of Financial
Strategy.

These reports will contain the following information: -

Treasury Management strategy, transactions carried out (borrowing and investment),
outstanding debt and investments, changes to the approved investment list and rescheduling
of debt.



TMP 7 BUDGETING, ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS

7.1 STATUTORY/REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Submission of annual policy statement and treasury management strategy statement. Outturn report.

7.2 ACCOUNTING PRACTICES AND STANDARDS

The Council reports investment valuations at book or market price whichever is the lesser.

TMP 8 CASH AND CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT

8.1 ARRANGEMENTS FOR PREPARING/SUBMITTING CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Projected cashflows are presented weekly at Treasury Management meetings.

8.2 CONTENT AND FREQUENCY OF CASH FLOW BUDGETS

Annual projection at start of the year, daily updates of model.

8.3 LISTING OF SOURCES OF INFORMATION
All departments of the Council and the Co-operative Bank

TMP 9 MONEY LAUNDERING

9.1 PROCEDURES FOR ESTABLISHING IDENTITY / AUTHENTICITY OF LENDERS

The Council does not accept loans from individuals. All loans are obtained from the PWLB or from
authorised institutions under the Banking Act 1987: (the names of these institutions appeared on the
Bank of England quarterly list of authorised institutions until 1.12.2001 when the Financial Services
Authority {FSA) took over the responsibility for maintaining a register of authorised institutions. This
register can be accessed through their website on www fsa.gov.uk).

The Council also takes deposits from counterparties forwarded from our brokers and from local

organisations known and supported by the Council.



TMP 10 STAFF TRAINING AND QUALIFICATIONS

It is intended that all treasury management staff be adequately trained for their activities. This is an ongoing
arrangement.

10.6 STATEMENT OF PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE (SOPP)
1. Where the Chief Financial Officer is a member of CIPFA, there is a professional need for the CFO
to be seen to be committed to professional responsibilities through both personal compliance and by

ensuring that relevant staff are appropriately trained.

2. Other staff involved in treasury management activities who are members of CIPFA must also
comply with the SOPP.

TMP 11 USE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDERS

11.1 DETAILS OF CONTRACTS WITH SERVICE PROVIDERS. INCLUDING BANKERS
BROKERS, CONSULTANTS, ADVISERS

11.1.1 Banking services

a) Name of supplier of service — The Co-operative Bank.

b) Contract will commence April 2004 and runs for 3 years until March 2007.
11.1.2 Money-broking services

Money broking services are provided by Garban, Prebon Yamane and Tradition UK Limited.
11.1.3 Cash/fund management services

a) Name of supplier of service — Investec
b) Contracts are on a rolling basis and can be terminated with no notice,
¢) Cost of service - £25,000 for both managers

d) Payments due quarterly in arrears
11.1.3 Consultants’/advisers’ services

¢) Name of supplier of service — Sector Treasury Services

d) Contract commenced March 2004 and runs for 3 years until March 2007 extended for 2 years until
March 2009.

¢) Cost of service - £12,000

f) Payments due 6 monthly in arrears



1.1

1.3

2.1

2.2

23

3.1

Appendix 3

AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2006/2007 — 2008/2009

Introduction

The 2003 Prudential Code for Capital Finance in local authorities
introduced requirements for the manner in which capital spending
plans are to be considered and approved, and in conjunction with this,
the development of an integrated treasury management strategy.

The Prudential Code requires the Council to set a number of Prudential
Indicators. This report therefore incorporates the indicators to which
regard should be given when determining the Council's treasury
management strategy for the next three years.

Treasury limits for 2006/07 to 2008/09

it is a statutory duty under S.3 of the Local Government Act 2003 and
supporting regulations, for the Council to determine and keep under
review how much it can afford to borrow. The amount so determined is
termed the “ Affordable Borrowing Limit”.

The Council must have regard to the Prudential Code when setting
their Affordable Barrowing Limit, which essentially requires it to ensure
that total capital investment remains within sustainable limits and, in
particular, that the impact upon its future council tax/rent levels in
‘acceptable”.

Whilst termed “Affordable Borrowing Limit”", the capital plans to be
considered for inclusion incorporate those planned to be financed by
both external borrowing and other forms of liability, such as credit
arrangements. The affordable borrowing limit is to be set, on a rolling
basis, for the forthcoming financial year and two successive financial
years. The Council will borrow beyond the level of Government
Supported Borrowing for capital purposes in 2006/7 as set out in its
approved capital programme.

Current Portfolio Position
The Council's treasury portfolio position as at 31/05/2006 comprised:
Long-term borrowing - Market Loans £24,600,000

All the above loans are at fixed rates with maturity dates of up to 60
years. Interest rates vary from 4.85% to 7.03%.



Temporary borrowing of £341,500 at variable interest rates, currently
averaging 4.26%.

Loan from English Partnerships £1,292,312 for 28 years at 9.25%.
Other long-term liabilities of £1,000,000
Total debt therefore equal £27,233,812

The Capital Financing requirement for 2006/7 is estimated at
£13,998,000.

The Council also has investments at variable rates of £43,742,533 of

which one external fund managers manage £12,242,533 and
£2,000,000 is in two business reserve bank accounts with instant
access with an average interest rate of 4.5%.

4. Treasury Limits and Prudential Indicators 2006/07

41 In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003 and Prudential
Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities 2003, the Treasury Limits
and Prudential Indicators are recommended to the Council as part of its
treasury policy:-

Indicator 1
Estimate of Capital Expenditure

2005/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

HRA 8,678 6,896 7,000 7,000
Non HRA 12,990 10,180 5,200 5,200
Total 21,668 17,076 12,200 12,200

This indicator simply shows the proposed capital expenditure over the current

and the next three years.

Indicator 2
Estimate of Capital Financing Requirement

2006/2007 200772008 2008/2009

) £,000 £,000 £,000

HRA -10,712 -10,712 -10,712
Non HRA 24,710 28,070 27,430
Total 13,998 15,358 16,718

This indicator reflects the authority’s underlying need to borrow for a capital

purpose.




Indicator 3

Estimate of Ratio of Financing to Net Revenue Stream

Table A 2005/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009

% % % %
HRA -1.3 -1.3 -0.8 -0.8
Non HRA 2.7 2.6 1.8 1.8
Table B 2005/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009

% % % %
HRA & Non 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7
HRA

These indicators express the net costs of financing as a percentage of the
funding receivable from the Government and Council Tax payers.

Indicator 4a

Estimate of the Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions on
the Council Tax

£3.96

Indicator 4b

Estimates of the Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions on
Average Weekly Housing Rents

£00.00

These indicators express the incremental impact of capital investment
decisions proposed in the budget report. These indicators do not take
account of the revenue effect, such as running costs of the capital
programme. As the authority is proposing not to undertake any non
supported borrowing the effect on the Council Tax and Housing rents is nil.

Indicator 5
Net Borrowing to Capital Financing Requirement

The Prudential Code states:-

“In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for a
capital purpose, the local authority should ensure that the net external
borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of capital
financing requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates of any
additiorial capital financing requirement for the current and next two financial
years.”

The Chief Finance Officer reports that the authority has no difficulty in meeting
this rule.




Indicator 6

Authorised Limit
20062007 2007/2008 2008/2009
£.000 £.000 £.000
Authorised Limit 45 500 47,000 48,500

This is a “worst case” limit based on assumptions about potential increases in
temporary borrowing, underachievement of capital receipts in year and
overspend on the capital programme.

Indicator 7
Operational Boundary
2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009
£,000 £,000 £,000
Operational 39,000 40,500 42,000
Boundary

This is the likely maximum indebtedness of the council, including a small

contingency sum.

Indicator 8a

Upper Limit for Fixed Rate Exposure

2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009
% % %
Upper Limit for 100 100 100
Fixed Rate
Exposure

Nearly all or debt at present is fixed rate and therefore 100% is the required

percentage.
Indicator 8b
Upper Limit for Fixed Rate Exposure

2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009

% % %

Upper Limit for 50 50 50
Variable Rate
Exposure

As a hedge against our variable investment rate it could be useful to change

to variable rate borrowing.




Indicator 9
Principal Sums Invested for Periods of Longer than 364 days

2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009
% % %
Principal Sums 75 75 75

Invested for
Periods of Longer
Than 364 Days

75% of investments may be over 364 days. This will be used to limit interest
rate risk.

Indicator 10

Upper and Lower Limits on the maturity Structure of Borrowing

Limits on the Maturity Structure of Borrowing Upper Limit | Lower Limit
% %

Maturity period 100 0

Under 12 months 100 0

12 Months and within 24 months 100 0

2 Years and within 5 years 100 0

5 Years and within 10 years 100 0

10 Years and above 100 0

This will allow us the maximum flexibility for rescheduling and repayment of
debt under the new financial regulations.

Indicator 11
Compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management
in the Public Services

The Council has customarily considered an annual Treasury Management
Statement under the requirement of the CIPFA code of practice on Treasury
Management, which has been adopted by this Council.




Agerda ltem 7
tem number and title as
on agenda]

Name of Committee
CABINET

Directorate: Citizens Governance &
Finance

Corporate Manager: Finance & Asset
Management

Date: 26 June 2006

Report Title Financial Monitoring Report for Period Ending May 2006

Key Decision YES/NO

1. Recommendations

That Councillors note the actual financial position of the Council on both the
General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) for the period ending
May 2006. In addition that the projected financial position for the year ending
31 March 2007 is noted.

2. Summary

This financial monitoring report identifies no projected variances by 31 March
2007, on either the General Fund or HRA, from the Budgets approved by
Council prior to the start of the financial year.

3. Repbrt Background

This is the first monitoring report to Cabinet under the new budget management
regime relating to the period to the end of May 2006. At this point in the financial
year no variations are projected against budget at the year end. Improvement
Board recently approved the Trade Waste charge proposals to allow
implementation to meet the income target for 2006/07.

ffernandes\committeepapersformatireporttemplatecabinet160506.doc



Cabinet will in future receive budget monitoring reports quarterly along with an

explanation of any projected variances and management actions being taken to
address them. in addition monthly monitoring information will be provided to the
Senior Corporate Management Team meeting and to the Leader of the Council.

Management Accountancy staff are currently working with Corporate Managers and
their departmental management team to assess their need for financial support and
information to allow for improved Budget Monitoring Arrangements.

4. Options and Evaluation of Options
None
5. Resource Implications (including Financial Implications)

This financial monitoring report allows Councillors an overview of the financial
position of the Council for the year ending 31 March 2007. The key impact on
current and future resources is the position on reserves at the end of the year.

General Fund

The General Fund balance stood at £2.9M at 31 March 2006. A break-even budget
has been set and would maintain the balance for 31 March 2007.

Housing Revenue Account

The HRA working balance stood at £4.8M at 31 March 2006. Keeping within the
approved budget would add a further £660,000 to the balance by 31 March 2007.

6. Risk and Opportunity Issues

None

7. Consultees (Internal and External)
internal N/a

External N/a

ffernandesicommitteepapersformatireporttemplatecabinet160506.doc




8. Compliance Issues

A: How Proposals Deliver Priority Outcomes

Recovery Plan

Improvements to the financial management and control of budgets are
necessary to improve the Use of Resources judgement.

Corporate Plan

Forms part of improved financial management.

B: Other Implications

Other Strategies

None

Finance Comments

Legal Comments

9. Background Papers

Title Description Source

None

Alison Betts
Corporate Manager Finance & Asset Management
ext. 8718

ffernandesicommitteepapersformatireporttemplatecabinet160506.doc



Name Signature Date Ext.
Author —— ) w Qe . &@\_\_\ﬂa
Corporate Manager /{%éé‘j ) 2 /L foe | w7
Director ) / Z/\/ M\ a)efoe

Monitoring Officer
or Deputy
(Key decision only)

Section 151 Officer
or Deputy
| (Key decision only)

ffernandes\committeepapersformatireporttemplatecabinet160506.doc



CSs01
Cso02
CS03
Cs04
CS05

Plo1
Plo2
Plo3
Pl14

NORTHAMPTON
s BOROUGH COUNCIL -

Key Service Area

Net Expenditure

Customer Services
Kay Atkinson

Administrative Services

Call Care

Corporate Man {Customer Services)
Cne Stop Shop

Print Unit

Performance & Improvement
Dale Phillipson

Performance Management

Information Technology

Corporate Man {Performance/lmprove)
Telephones

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING FORECAST : LEVEL 2 - General Fund

FINANCIAL YEAR 2006/2007
PERIOD 02 (May 2006)
Current Cash Profiled Cash YTD Actual YTD (Under) / Year End Year End
Limit Limit Income & Over Spend Poslition Position
Expenditure Variance
{Under) / Over
Spend
A B C Cc-B D D-A
3 £ £ £ £ £
1,516,300 249,078 217,208 -31.,871 1,516,300 0
240,300 40,985 15,411 -25574 240,300 0]
410,040 68,313 69,127 814 410,040 0
1,298,910 216,458 138,100 -78,360 1,288,910 0
-101,460 -16,885 24,596 41,491 -101,460 0
3,364,090 557,940 464,440 93,499 3,364,090 1]
0 0 12 12 0 4]
2,606,260 434,203 592,480 158,277 2,606,260 4]
84,630 14,099 13,754 -345 84,630 o]
231,780 38,615 50,260 11,645 231,780 o
2,922,670 486,917 656,507 169,500 2922870 0

Prepared by Finance - 22.06.06



HRO1
HRO3
HR13

CEO1
CED2
CED3
CEO04
CEO&
CE08
CED?

PEO2Z
PED3
PEO4
PED5
PEDB
PEO7
PEO8
PEQS
PE1G
PE11
PE12

Key Service Area Current Cash Profiled Cash YTD Actual YTD {Under) / Year End Year End
Limit Limit Income & Over Spand Position Position
Expenditure Variance
{Under) f Over
Spend
Net Expenditure A B c Cc-B b D-A
Human Resources £ E £ £ £ £
Howard Crabtree
Corporate Man (Human Resources) 922,090 153,704 161,609 7.806 922,090 0
Training & Deavelopment 637,370 106,186 46,253 -59,933 637,370 0
Programme Delivery 51,870 8,642 6,115 -2,527 51,870 0
1,611,330 268,531 213,977 -54,554 1,611,330 0
Cltizen Engagement
Thomas Hall
Communications 293,420 48,884 57,974 9,000 293,420 0
Community Safety 1,060,830 176,813 88,723 -88,190 1,060,830 0
Events 167,140 -126,484 -250,925 -124,441 167,140 0
Corporate Man (Citizen Engagement) 83,640 13,934 10,592 -3,343 83,640 0
Community Development 1,185,530 185,592 75,383 -110,209 1,185,530 0
Museums 856,580 142,706 -47,753 -190,459 856,580 0
Community Grants & Other Grants 1,325,970 220,807 276,035 55,128 1,325,970 0
4,973,110 662,452 210,028 -452 424 4.973,110 0
Planning, Environmental Health & Lelsure
Christine Stevenson
Building Control 79,020 13,165 -84,706 -97,871 79,020 0
Development Control ~123,510 -20.577 66,204 86,781 -123,510 0
Food Safety 0 0 -492 -492 0 0
Leisure 838,700 127,076 -21,918 -148,994 838,700 0
Corp Man {Pianning, Health & Leisure) 430,480 71,718 75,753 4,035 430,480 0
Pest Cantrol 42,120 7.017 6,632 -385 42,120 0
Pollution Reduction 0 0 -485 -485 0 0
Travellers Sites 91,720 9,200 -16,020 -25,219 941,720 0
Commercial Services 399,570 66,576 57,499 -9,077 399,570 0
Environmental Protection 661,460 107,272 80,820 -26,452 661,460 0
Private Housing Standards & Improve 450,200 75,003 75,319 315 450,200 0
2,869,760 456,450 238,607 -217,843 2,869,760 0

Prepared by Finance - 22.06.06




FAD1
FAQ2
FAO3
FAO4
FAOS
FADG
FAQT
FAOB
FAD9

RGO1
RGD2
RGO3
RGO4
RGOS

Key Service Area

Net Expenditure

Finance & Asset Management
Allson Betts

Asset Management

Financial Services

Audit

Non Distributed Costs

Investments

Other Buildings & Land

Corporate Man (Finance & Asset Man}
Office Accommodation

Markeis

Regeneration & Growth
Chris Cavanagh

Corporate Manager (Regeneration)
Economic Intelligence

Housing Strategy

Planning Policy & Conservation
Regeneration

Current Cash Profiled Cash YTD Actual YTD {Under}! Year End Year End
Limit Limit Income & Over Spend Position Position
Expenditure Variance
{Under) f Over
Spend
A B C c-e D D-A
£ £ £ £ £ £
2,633,390 205,659 222,482 16,823 2,533,390 0
2,198,680 376,512 317,354 -59,159 2,196,680 a
483,730 80,589 80,622 32 483,730 0
902,450 150,348 150,408 60 802,450 0
408,550 35,512 642 -34,869 408,550 0
-1,512,480 -378,123 -416,334 -38,211 -1,512,490 0
105,160 19,078 4,302 -14,776 105,160 0
1,249,580 254,620 208,263 -46,356 1,249,580 0
454,450 -59,343 -115,503 -56,160 -454.450 0
5,912,600 684,852 452,236 -232,8617 5,912,600 0
84,390 14,059 13.815 -244 84,390 0
165,390 27,554 5814 -21,739 165,380 0
240,010 39,986 8,567 -31.419 240,010 0
639,110 106,476 31,043 -75,433 639,110 0
222,840 37,125 32,758 -4,367 222,840 0
1,351,740 225,200 91,998 -133,202 1,351,740 ]

Prepared by Finance - 22.06.06




8801
5802
5503
5504
5805
5506
5807
5508
5509
3810
5811
55812
3813
5514
5815
5516
3517
5818

HS01
HS502
H503
H504
H505
HS12

Key Service Area

Net Expenditure
Streetscene & Property Maintenance

Carl Grimmer

Neighbourhood Wardens
Abandoned Vehicles

Building Cleaning

Cemeteries

Concessionary Fares

Car Parking

Domestic Refuse

Highways & Transport
Corporate Man (Streetscene & Property)
Public Conveniences

Parks and Open Spaces
Route Subsidies

Street Cleaning

Town Centre Management
Trade Refuse

Westbridge Depot

Recycling

Housing Property Maintenance

Housing Services
Fran Rodgers

Benefits

Corporate Manager {(Housing Services)
Revenues

Housing Services

Homelessness

Housing Advice

Current Cash Profiled Cash YTD Actual YTD {Under}/ Year End Year End
Limit Limit income & Over Spend Position Position
Expenditure Variance
{Under)/ Over
Spend
A B c C-B D D-A
£ £ £ £ £ £
544,160 90,657 44,281 -46,376 544,160 0
56,910 9,481 2,588 -6,893 56,910 0
-47,270 -7.231 36,762 43,993 -47,270 0
2,640 1,234 -45 -1,279 2,840 0
1,098,550 274,638 -4,851 -279,489 1,098,550 4]
4,196,770 -623,584 -609,066 14,519 -4,196,770 0
2,423,690 408,376 227,872 -180,504 2,423,690 0
-186,580 -29,452 -3,054 26,398 -186,580 0
312,250 52,021 24,384 -27,637 312,250 0
277,140 44,050 15,282 -28,768 277,140 0
3,615,330 631,657 408,698 -222,959 3,615,330 0
0 0 -13,718 -13,718 0 0
2,189,470 378,337 361,018 -17,319 2,189,470 0
34,280 5711 -20,093 -34,804 34,280 0
-317,120 -1,150,436 -946,806 203,630 -317,120 0
532,780 88,773 61,380 -27,392 532,780 0
1,147,960 311,694 170,625 -141,069 1,147,960 0
0 0 849,523 849,523 0 0
7,487,420 485,925 595,779 109,854 7,487 420 0
439,980 73,301 308,376 235,076 439,980 0
86,300 14,378 13,723 -655 86,300 o
166,750 27,781 79,334 51,553 166,750 0
D 0 174,538 174,538 0 4]
1,073,950 178,920 286,865 107,945 1,073,950 0
434,910 72,456 89,920 17,464 434,910 0
2,201,890 366,835 952,755 585,920 2,201,890 )]

Prepared by Finance - 22.06.06



X1
LDO1
LDD2
LDOD3
LDo4
LDOS
LDO&
LDO7
LD08
LDOB

Key Service Area

Net Expenditure

Legal & Democratic Services
Ella Yeshin

Chief Executive

Corporate Services

Electoral Services

Land Charges

Legal

Licensing

Corporate Man (Legat & Democratic)
Civic & Mayoral Expenses
Democratic Services

Recovery

Net Expenditure {Cash Limit)

Current Cash Proflled Cash YTD Actual YTD {Under}/ Year End Year End
Limit Limit income & Over Spend Position Position
Expenditure Variance
{Under) / Over
Spend
A B L c-B D D-A
£ £ £ £ £ £
589,000 98,127 90,115 -8,012 588,000 ]
10,190 1,698 2,486 788 16,190 0
188,770 31,449 68,458 37,009 188,770 0
-222,400 -37.052 -42,600 -5,548 -222 400 0
587,480 97,874 99,489 1,615 587,480 0
-29,160 -4,858 7.010 11,869 -29,160 0
592,540 98,717 83,941 14,776 592,540 0
122,620 20,429 17,783 -2,646 122,620 0
961,010 160,104 147,150 -12,954 961,010 0
237410 39,653 70,214 30,661 237,410 0
3,037,460 506,041 544,047 38,006 3,037,460 0
35,732,070 4,701,142 4,420,373 -280,769 35,732,070 0

Prepared by Finance - 22.06.06




REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING FORECAST : LEVEL 2 - HRA

FINANCIAL YEAR 200612007
« BOROUGH COUNCHIL - PERIOD 02 (May 2006)

Key Service Area Current Cash Profiled Cash YTD Actual YTOD {Under} / Year End Year End

Limit Limit Income & Over Spend Position Position

Expenditure Variance
{Under} { Over

Spend
A B C c-B D D-A
£ £ £ £ £ £

CEOS Community Development 81,800 13,628 1,712 -11,916 81,800 1]
Cs08 Customer Services Housing 1] 0 102,930 102,930 0 1]
5518 Housing Property Maintenance 8,234,980 1,374,815 1,374,815 0 8,234,980 1]
HS01 Benefits 0 Q 6,297 6,297 0 0
HS04 Housing Services 7,076,180 1,178,917 1,178,917 0 7,076,180 0
HS05 Homelessness 101,160 16,853 1,244 -15,609 101,160 0
HS06 HRA Subsidy 7,695,190 1,282,019 1,282,019 0 7,695,190 0
HS807 Sheltered Housing 1,732,090 288,566 180,400 -108,166 1,732,080 0
HS08 Housing Rents & Other Income -38,231,470 -6,369,363 -6,369,363 t] -38,231.,470 o
Net Expenditure (Cash Limit) -13,310,070 -2,214,565 -2,241,029 -26,464 -13,310,070 1]
Net Recharges from Generat Fund 5,438,000 906,333 906,333 t] 5,438,000 1]
Major Repairs Allowance - Capital 7.488,000 1,248,000 1,248,000 0 7,488,000 ]
Capital Finanging Costs -278,000 -46,333 46,333 1] -278,000 o
Net Transfer to Working Balance 662,070 -106,565 -133,020 -26,464 662,070 0
Working Balance B/F -3,555,000 -3,555,000 -3,555,000 0 -3,555,000 0
Working Balance as at 31 March 4,217,070 -3,661,565 -3,688,029 -26,464 4,217,070 0

Prepared by Finance - 22.06.06



Agemda ltem 9

q

Name of Committee
CABINET

Directorate: People, Performance &
Regeneration

Corporate Manager: Howard
Crabtree

Date: 3 July 2006

Report Title Pay and Grading Review: Briefing Report, Choice of Job
Evaluation Scheme and Resource Implications

Key Decision YES

1. Recommendati_ons

o To note the report.

o To approve the use of the computerised version of the Nationai Joint Council
Job Evaluation Scheme to undertake the evaluation of jobs in the Council.

o To approve the resource implications and funding for project implementation.

y Summary

A Pay & Grading Review project has been set up:

o To deliver the Council’s obligations under the Joint National Agreement on
Single Status which provides for a pay and grading review to be jointly
agreed and implemented by 31 March 2007.

o To support the Recovery Plan by providing a pay and grading framework that
rewards employees appropriately to ensure they can be recruited, retained
and ‘motivated to deliver the Council’s services to the required standards.
The HR Strategy's Pay and Reward objective supports this aspect of the
Recovery Plan.

This is a challenging project that will require significant financial and human
resources to implement within the timescaie. It should be noted that the Craft
workers (Red Book) are not covered by this agreement.

flernandes\committeepapersformatireporitemplatecabinet1 60506 .doc



3. Report Background ¢

The Joint National Agreement on Single Status was agreed in 1997 and updated in |
2004 when it was determined that pay and grading reviews had to be completed by
31% March 2007. These agreements address concerns about equality and faimess
of working hours, pay and grading within the local government workforce.
Following the implementation of the Root & Brach Review attention can now be
given to completing implementation of this Agreement to support the Council’s
Recovery Plan.

There are a number of key steps in undertaking the pay and grading review which
include: choice of job evaluation scheme, identification of resources, agreeing a
timeline, evaluating a number of benchmark jobs, evaluating all jobs, finalising the
rank order of jobs based on the job evaluation exercise, agreeing a pay structure
that reflects the Council's requirements and negotiating this together with any back
pay and protection requirements with the Trade Unions.

4. Options and Evaluation of Options

The first critical step to commencing the review is the choice of job evaluation
scheme. 3 options have been considered: The National Joint Councii Scheme
(NJC) which is recommended by National Employers and trade Unions; the ‘London
Scheme’ developed by the London Government Provincial Councils which is being
used by a number of Councils across the country; and a proprietary scheme e.g.
HAY. The latter option was discounted due to cost and the fact that it is not
specifically geared to Local Government.

An analysis was undertaken of the other 2 schemes and views sought from
Councils using them. There are pitfalls to using both, however from a sample of
evaluations done elsewhere using each scheme, they produce a rank order of jobs
that is almost identical. It is therefore recommended that the NJC Scheme is used
so that Northampton can benefit from the experience and support available from the
National Employers and Regional Trade Unions representatives.

It is further recommended that the computerised version of the scheme is used to
enable a robust record of all evaluations undertaken which will allow analyses to be
undertaken easily and over time. The software required to run the scheme was
purchased ¢. 1999 but has not been used since 2003 when it was decided to
suspend the pay and grading project being undertaken at the time.

A specialist system is required for Pay Modelling; the system is available form Link
HR Systems. There are options to purchase or lease the system for 1 year. ltis
recommended that the system is leased and Consultant time purchased from Link
to operate it. This removes the need to train the project team in a specialist system
which based on the experience of other Councils is complicated to use to its full
capacity. It is likely that if we purchased it, we would require extensive Consultancy
time to operate it successfully.

flernandes\committeepapersformatireporitemplatecabinet 1 60506, doc



5. Resource Implications (including Financial Implications)

The Councit has a number of key improvement priorities to address between now
and March 2007. These improvements will demand considerable input from
managers at all levels to drive forward and produce the targeted improvements.
Whiist implementation of the National Agreement is essential the work involved has
the potential to divert management time away from improvement priorities. In order
to minimise the impact of the Pay and Grading project it is proposed to establish a
smali but experienced team to reduce the demands on management time. Further,
the use of the computerised version will reduce administrative and processing time.

The estimated “one off” cost of the dedicated Project Manager is in the budget for
2006/7. However, the cost of project administrator, specialist job analysts,
evaluation training for the computerised system and pay modeller were not detailed
or evaluated. The estimated costs of the project implementation are set out below:-

Project Manager Already budgeted
Project Administration £ 15000
Specialist Job Analysts £ 60000

Job Evaluation Training £ 5000

Pay Modelier £ 22000
Contingency £ 10000

Total £112000

There is no provision in the 2006/7 accounts for this expenditure and balances are
considered to be at a minimum prudent level given the profile of risks faced by the
Council. There is no real choice but to proceed with the project as its delay would
almost certainly lead to significantly higher costs through claims against the
Coungcil.

The options considered as to funding are deletion of existing budgetary provisions
in 2006/7 or temporary diminution of balances in the later part of 2006/7 that would
be repienished from additional provisions in 2007/8 budgets.

It is recommended the temporary diminution of balances is pursued. In this case,
the provision of this £112,000 must be a first call on budgetary provision for
2007/08.

An estimated £800,000 has been budgeted for in pay costs in 2007/8, this is
approximately 2.75% of the pay bill. It is difficult to predict more accurately until
initial evaluations and pay modelling have been undertaken. The experience of
other Councils nationally suggests that the pay bill impact can range from 2-10%,
with a national average of 3.5-5%. Future updates will be provided to Cabinet in
time for 2007/8 budget process.

flernandes'commiteepapersformatireporifemplatecabinet1 80506 .doc




6. Risk and Opportunity Issues

This is an opportunity to both meet the requirements of a National Agreement and
to develop a pay & reward framework that will enable the Council to recruit, retain
and motivate employees to deliver the right services to the right levels to the people
of Northampton. The risk of doing so is a significant cost to the pay bill above
current provisions. Further there will be input required from key staff to ensure
timely implementation.

The job evaluation scheme currently used is out of date, does not fully refiect
equality issues and has decayed over time. It could therefore be open to chalienge.
Therefore the risk of not implementing the National Agreement is to incur potential
Equal Pay Claims that in turn will have costs implications.

The risk of not using the National Joint Scheme would be to incur delays in gaining
TU approval to one of the other Schemes.

There could be a risk that National Trade Union negotiating issues resulting from
Tribunal cases elsewhere could impact on our ability to conclude negotiations with
the Trade Unions.

7. Consultees (Internal and External)

Internal Directors, Corporate Managers, and Trade Union colleagues have
been consulted and are in agreement to the approach proposed.

External The Regional Officers of Unison and GMB have been consulted.

8. Compliance Issues

A: How Proposals Deliver Priority Outcomes

Recovery Plan

Rewarding and motivating employees appropriately contributes to their ability to
deliver the Recovery Plan.

Corporate Plan

Pay & Reward is a key objective of the HR Strategy within the Corporate Plan.

B: Other Implications

Other Straiegies

The project wili be resource intensive in terms of the management time required to
complete |, and potentially detract from other priorities.

flemandes\committeepapersformatireporitemplatecabinet | 80508.doc




Finance Commants

£800,000 has been budgeted for 2007/8, however, the risk is that the cost could be
higher. This will have an impact on the Medium Term Financial Strategy, and 2
review points have been built in (September and December) to reflect this. In
addition there will be the need to claw back the additional resources above budget
being spent on the project in 2006/2007.

Legal Comments

All employers are required to ensure that their pay and grading systems comply
with The Equal Pay Act.

9, Background Papers

Title - Description Source
Pay & Grading Review | Presentation and paper highlighting | Annie Tillson, 13™
— Information for the key issues associated with this | June 2006.
Improvement Board project. _
Joint National Detailed terms and implementation | ‘Green Book'
Agreement, 1997, of the Agreements
2004.
HR Strategy and Action | Detaits the direction HR needs to Howard Crabtree,
Plan take to deliver the Recovery Plan 2006
Name Signhature Date Ext.
Author 2™
June
Annie Tillson 2006 | Annie
Tillson
Corporate Manager On Howard
leave | Crabtree
Howard Crabtree ,
Director 28" | Clive
June | Thomas
Clive Thomas 2006
Monitoring Officer | Francs Fernandes
or Deputy I P gc/g,(g ?"53q_
(Key decision only) - —
Section 151 Officer on Betts

Koy took 4
{(Key decision only)

e

flernandes\committeepapersformatireporttemplatecabinett 50506.doc




mm;; ltem 1

||

|

 Name of Committee CABINET
Directorate: _ Citizens, Governance and Finance
Corporate Manager: Thomas Hall
Date: 3" July 2006
Report Title Northampton Borough Council Anti-Social Behaviour

Strategy 2006 - 2008

Key Decision NO

1. Recommendations

Cabinet to approve the Northampton Borough Council Anti-Social Behaviour
Strategy, subject to the incorporation of the words advised under ‘legal
implications’.

2. Summary

The purpose of this report is to present the Northampton Borough Council Anti-
Social Behaviour Strategy, 2006-2008 for approval by Cabinet.

The strategy will be formaliy reviewed at two yearly intervals. However, there will be
an ongoing process of reviewing and evaluating taking place. This will ensure that
we take account of any changes in legislation and any binding court decisions. it
also means that we can incorporate any ‘best practice’ that would further add to the
effectiveness of the strategy. This ongoing monitoring process will be the
responsibility of the Northampton Borough Council Crime & Disorder Team Leader,
and will be undertaken in full consultation with partner agencies.

This strategy has been assessed and currently meets the requirements of the

Equality Impact Assessment. ]

ffemandesicommitteepapersformatireporttemplatecabinet1 60506 doc



3. Report Background

The 2006-2008 Northampton Borough Council Anti-Social Behaviour strategy has
been developed to reflect significant changes in legislation and the current
partnership approach to dealing with incidents of anti-social behaviour in
Northampton.

Prior to the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 anti-social behaviour and its associated
issues were, predominantly, the responsibility of the police. Section 17 of the Act
gave all local authorities a duty to consider crime and disorder implications in the
exercise of all its functions.

The Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy has been written to clearly reflect and support
the changes in legisiation and also incorporates and embraces service
developments achieved in the interim.

The strategy has been developed in collaboration with partner agencies and all
council departments that have a part to play in delivering an effective service to the
communities of Northampton in relation to anti-social behaviour issues. All have
had the opportunity to inform and shape the structure and content of the final
document.

Additionally account has been taken of other similar strategies both in the county
and elsewhere and elements of ‘best practice’ have been incorporated where
possible and appropriate.

The Government published its Respect Action Plan in early 2006 in order {o deliver
the Respect programme in a number of areas aimed at tackling the root causes of
anti-social behaviour in our communities. The strategy is designed to fully address
those areas identified for action.

It also supports the broader aims and values of the Northampton Community Safety
Strategy 2005 — 2008 in seeking to: ‘Provide and promote a safe environment for
people who live, work or visit Northampton by reducing crime and the fear of crime
and disorder’.

Additionally the strategy addresses objective 1 of the Northampton Community
Safety Strategy in tackling issues of anti-social behaviour within Northampton by
utilising multi-agency task groups and incorporating initiatives including
enforcement, prevention and education.

Finaily the strategy is completely in line with the Local Area Agreement’s safer and
stronger community agenda and partnership working arrangements in sanctioning a
joined up, approach on community safety issues, particularly as relates to priority
offending and tackling violencse.

ffemandes\committeepapersformatireporttemplatecabinet160506.doc




4. Options and Evaluation of Options

1. To approve the strategy as attached to this report.
evaluation: the strategy is the product of extensive consultation. Itis
believed to represent good practice in this field and to address the areas
identified for action in government guidance.

2. To reject the strategy in this form and seek to revise its objectives, focus,
application or partnership provisions.
evaluation: these elements have been derived collaboratively with key
partners locally. To seek to revise them significantly or reject them would
risk undermining the partnership approach.

5. Resource Implications (including Financial Implications)

The strategy and its implementation will not require additional Borough Council
resources, although internal alignment of resources to meet strategic goais will
need to be kept under review.

6. Risk and Opportunity Issues

[ The strategy seeks to:

= Prevent and deter incidents of anti-social behaviour
» Tackie the causes and deal with the consequences
» Take appropriate action against perpetrators

»  Support victims and witnesses

An action plan has been developed and adopted in order to support the deiivery of
the abjectives and farms part of the strategy.

7. Consuitees (Internal and External)

[ Internal Northampton Borough Council:
= Housing Services
Street Scene and Property Maintenance
Regeneration & Growth
Communications
Environmental Services
=  Community Safety
Leaders of the Council
Community Safety Portfolio Holder
Corporate Directors

External Northamptonshire Police
Northamptonshire Probation Service
Northamptonshire Connexions
Northamptonshire YOT

flfemandes\committeepapersformatreporttemplatecabinet1 60506 doc




Northamptonshire County Council:
» Children and Families
= Youth Service
= U-Turn
= Fire & Rescue Service

8. Compliance Issues

A: How Proposals Deliver Priority Qutcomes

Recovery Plan

The Recovery Plan seeks to ensure that all our Citizen Focused Services are
directly shaped by our customers, are convenient to them and that clear, timely and
accurate two way communication takes place whilst continually improving our local
and national reputation and profile.

Corporate Plan

A key element of the Corporate Plan is to work in partnership to reduce crime and
disorder across Northampton making it a place where people would want to live,
work, shop and visit. In order to achieve this, specifically, we will endeavour to:
» Target and reduce the number of people with ASBOs
=  Support and develop local communities through CASPAR projects
= Continue to work with the police and other agencies to identify crime and
disorder hotspots where CCTV can make a difference

B: Other Implications

Other Strategies

See ‘Background Papers’.

Finance Comments

.

Legal Comments

It is suggested that words are added to the Strategy to say that statements of the
law within the document are brief summaries and should be read as such and not
taken as definitive. Neither is anything in the document to be read as restricting the
Council's:discretion to pursue any remedy or course of action it sees fit in any
particular case.

ffernandes\committeepapersformatireporitemplatecabinet 1 60506.doc



9. Background Papers

Title Description Source
Crime & Disorder Act | Act of Parliament Government
1998
Anti-Social Behaviour | Act of Parliament Government
Act 2003

| Northampton Policy Document NBC
Community Safety
Strategy 2005 - 2006
Housing Management | Policy Document NBC

Service Nuisance and
Anti-Social Behaviour
Policy
Northamptonshire Anti- | Policy Document NCC
Social Behaviour
Reduction Strategy
(draft)
Northamptonshire Countywide Muliti agency Partnership
Local Area Agreement | Agreement

Author: Lee Owens, Crime & Disorder Team Leader, Ext 8164

Name Signatuy@ Date Ext

Author ,M 26 6 ol| $(3¥

' Corporate Manager (//'/Zv- (M 26/5/o¢| 7593
Director / L\-/ f2 2o /6 / ob | TS

Monitoring Officer
or Deputy N/a
(Key decision only)
Section 151 Officer
or Deputy N/a
{Key decision only)

flfemandes'\committeepapersformatireparttemplatecabinet 160506 .doc



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH
COUNCIL ANTI-SOCIAL
BEHAVIOUR STRATEGY

2006-2008

Page 1 of 18 vers-mar06



INDEX

INTRODUCTION PAGE 3
LINKS TO THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE OBJECTIVES PAGE 4
DEFINITION OF ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR PAGE 4
OBJECTIVES OF THE STRATEGY PAGE 4
FOCUS OF THE STRATEGY PAGE 4
PRACTICAL APPLICATION PAGE 5
WORKING WITH OTHER AGENCIES PAGE 6
NORTHAMPTON ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR UNIT (ASBU) PAGE 7
INFORMATION DISCLOSURE PAGE 7
SUPPORT FOR VICTIMS AND WITNESSES PAGE 8
OPTIONS AVAILABLE PAGE 8
1. Housing Enforcement of Tenancy Conditions PAGE 8
2. Police Action PAGE 9
3. Environmental Health Action PAGE 10
4. Injunctions PAGE 10
5. Protection from Harassment Act 1997 PAGE 11
6. Anti Social Behaviour Orders (ASBOs) PAGE 11
7. Anti-Social Behaviour Orders on Conviction PAGE 11
(CRASBOSs)
8. Acceptable Behaviour Contracts (ABCs) PAGE 12
9. Environmental Improvements PAGE 12
10. Community Development PAGE 13
11. Community Involvement PAGE 13
12. Neighbourhood Warden PAGE 13
13. Introductory Tenancies PAGE 14
MEASUREMENT OF THE PROBLEM PAGE 14
REVIEW OF THE STRATEGY PAGE 14
CONSULTATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS & OTHER AGENCIES PAGE 15
PUBLICITY PAGE 15
DOCUMENTATION PAGE 15
KEY CONTACTS PAGE 16
ABBREVIATIONS USED IN DOCUMENT PAGE 16
ACTION PLAN PAGE 17
Page 2 of 18 vers-mar06



ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR STRATEGY

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

WORKING IN PARTNERSHIP WITH

NORTHAMPTONSHIRE POLICE AND NORTHAMPTONSHIRE COUNTY
COUNCIL

2006-2008

INTRODUCTION

Historically, anti-social behaviour and its associated issues, were thought of
as the responsibility of the police and in the past, Northampton Borough
Council’s role in tackling anti-social behaviour was relatively low profile.

The situation changed with the introduction of the Crime and Disorder Act
1998 that required all local authorities work in partnership with other relevant
agencies in order to address problems of anti-social behaviour and so
improve the quality of life for people living in, working in and visiting their area.

Anti-social behaviour and nuisance are the most frequently expressed
complaints made to both Northampton Borough Council and
Northamptonshire Police. Every agency forming Northampton’s Community
Safety Partnership is committed to implementing and enforcing an effective
strategy to deal with these matters.

The primary objective of the NBC strategy was to address incidents of
nuisance, harassment and anti-social behaviour on the council’s housing
estates. Taking account of the experience gained, the increased focus on the
problem of anti-social behaviour and the emergence of the council’s wider
community leadership role, it is now also appropriate to extend the strategy to
encompass anti-social behaviour in the community as a whole. This includes
residential areas (irrespective of tenure), shopping, commercial and industrial
areas and recreational facilities throughout the borough of Northampton.

This strategy reflects these changes and also embraces service
developments achieved in the interim. It has also been written in support of
the council’s priority of ‘working with partners to reduce crime and
disorder across Northampton’ and in order that the council can fulfill its
obligation under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.

This strategy seeks to support the Northampton Community Safety
Partnership Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy, the council’s Housing
Management Service Nuisance and Anti-Social Behaviour Policy and the
Northamptonshire County Council Community Safety Strategy.

This strategy has been developed in consultation with officers of Northampton
Borough Council, Northamptonshire Police, Northamptonshire County Council
and other partner agencies. It is intended that this strategy will be
acknowledged and endorsed by all partner agencies.

An Action Plan of work being undertaken is attached and should be read in
conjunction with this document.

Page 3 of 18 vers-mar06



LINKS TO THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

This strategy has strong links and is consistent with a number of the council’s
Corporate Policies, in particular: ‘working in partnership with public,
private, community and voluntary sector organizations to improve the
quality of life for the people of Northampton’.

Additionally, implementation of the strategy will help to achieve the council’s
vision of: ‘working with and for the people of Northampton to build an
increasingly prosperous, healthy, safe and attractive town of which we
are all proud’.

DEFINITION OF ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

For the purpose of this strategy, the definition of anti-social behaviour is
consistent with that used in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and is as
follows:

“behaviour which causes or is likely to cause harassment, alarm or
distress to one or more persons not of the same household as the
perpetrator”

It is intended that this definition will include incidents of nuisance,
unreasonable and also petty and sub-criminal behaviour, which if allowed to
continue unchecked, will have a major and adverse impact on the quality of
life experienced by the victims.

OBJECTIVES OF THE STRATEGY

The strategy seeks to:

= Prevent or deter the incidence of anti-social behaviour

» Tackle the causes and deal with the consequences
» Take appropriate action against the perpetrators
= Support victims and witnesses

An Action Plan has been developed and is attached to this strategy.

FOCUS OF THE STRATEGY

The council recognises that in order to achieve the objectives of the strategy,
it will need to work in partnership with the community as a whole. This
includes tenants and residents and a range of other public, private and
voluntary organisations, who have an interest in the prevention and resolution
of problems associated with anti-social behaviour and have a role to play in
helping to achieve this.

Page 4 of 18 vers-mar06



PRACTICAL APPLICATION

The council acknowledges that there is often no simple solution to the
problem of anti-social behaviour. This strategy therefore includes a range of
options, which may be pursued either individually or in combination, in order
to achieve the desired outcome.

Wherever possible, the council wishes to see problems of anti-social
behaviour resolved through agreement between individuals or groups
concerned. In some cases the council and/or other agencies may be a party
to any such agreement. The prime objective is to pursue a problem solving
approach and therefore legal action will only be used if this offers the most
appropriate and effective course of action.
Reaching a decision on the option(s) to be pursued in individual cases, is
seen as critical to the successful implementation and practical application of
the strategy. Factors, which will influence this decision, are likely to take
account of the following:

» The views and circumstances of the victim

» The views of other partner agencies and stakeholders involved

» The facts of the case

» The seriousness (or potential seriousness) of the problem

= The impact, or potential impact, of the problem on the victim or the
community

» The feasibility of the potential remedies and the powers available both
to the council and partner agencies

» The impact of any action on risk management arrangements where the
perpetrator is a serious offender

» The proportionality of the remedy in relation to the problem

» The likelihood of the remedy proving effective
» Legislative requirements and constraints
» The council’s policies, corporate objectives and key aims

» The circumstances and (where appropriate) the views of the
perpetrator

Wherever possible the council will consider appropriate ways of preventing

(further) incidents of anti-social behaviour, subject to their feasibility, budget
and other constraints.

Page 5 of 18 vers-mar06



WORKING WITH OTHER AGENCIES

An essential feature of this strategy is the emphasis on joint working. Close
cooperation and involvement with a range of other local groups and
organisations, in both the public and private sectors, is paramount in order to
achieve the objectives. These agencies will include Northamptonshire Police,
Northamptonshire Youth OffendingTeams, Northamptonshire County
Council’'s Children and Young People’s Service, Northamptonshire Probation
Service, Northamptonshire Connexions, Crown Prosecution Service,
Community Mental Health teams, registered social landlords, residents
associations and other community groups.

In many instances, in order to pursue one (or more) of the available options,
joint working will be an integral part of the approach taken. This joint working
approach will be co-ordinated by the Northampton Anti-Social Behaviour Unit.
As well as providing evidence and additional information, it is recognised that
other agencies will often be able to play important roles in helping to solve
problems, particularly by the use of specialist skills and/or resources or
powers at their disposal. This approach to anti-social behaviour issues will
become routine.

However, where several agencies are closely involved, or the problem is of a
very serious nature (either specific to an individual, or to a location) a multi-
agency approach involving all those with an interest will be pursued. In order
to achieve this, dedicated groups will be convened by the ASBU to include
representatives from all relevant agencies in order to:

= Consider the nature and extent of the problem and the views and
interests of the agencies and stakeholders concerned

= Agree obijective(s)
» Evaluate options

= Decide on the course(s) of action to be followed and the part each
agency will play in achieving the objective(s)

= Develop Action Plans
= Agree a mechanism and timetable for review

Whilst it is envisaged that this approach is likely to be utilised only very
occasionally, it is seen as essential to have procedures in place which can be
used to respond quickly to significant problems of anti-social behaviour as and
when they occur, irrespective of their location. It is considered that this
mechanism would also be used as a prelude to seeking Anti-Social Behaviour
Orders (as detailed later in this strategy) but this would not preclude any other
appropriate action(s) from being pursued.

Co-ordination and monitoring will be critical to the success and effectiveness
of this multi-agency approach. It is recommended that this role (and also that
of coordinating action on potential Anti-Social Behaviour Orders) be

performed by staff from the Northampton Anti-Social Behaviour Unit. This will

Page 6 of 18 vers-mar06



ensure that an effective and consistent approach is taken in these very
serious but fortunately rare cases.

NORTHAMPTON ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR UNIT

The Northampton Anti-Social Behaviour Unit (ASBU) was re-launched in
February 2005. The unit comprises staff from Northampton Borough Council
and Northamptonshire Police and has close working links to U-Turn.

The ASBU works in partnership with all relevant agencies and other council
departments, with a particularly close relationship with Northampton Borough
Council housing services.

The priorities of the ASBU are to coordinate and monitor local agency
approaches and methods of dealing with anti-social behaviour. Various
methods are available to be utilised, including warning letters, intervention
work by U-Turn or the Youth Service and others that are shown in more detail
later in this strategy.

Working protocols have been developed, in consultation with our partner
agencies and other council departments where appropriate, in order to ensure
a consistent approach is maintained.

The ASBU is able to take referrals of named individual persons who are
engaged in committing acts of anti-social behaviour in order to co-ordinate a
multi-agency response in dealing with them, including case building for court.

Referrals can be from a number of sources including police officers, PCSOs,
council housing officers, neighbourhood wardens, environmental health
officers and registered social landlords (RSLs). A standard referral form has
been developed for this purpose.

All referrals are discussed weekly within the ASBU and final decisions on
action to be taken are reached after discussion with partners at the monthly
Northampton Anti-Social Behaviour Action Group (NASBAG) meetings.

The ASBU will provide monthly updates on actions being taken by the unit
and other agencies in respect of anti-social behaviour issues which will be
circulated to all relevant persons both within the council and partner agencies.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

Organisations involved in providing services to the public have a legal
responsibility to ensure that their use of personal information is purposeful,
fair, lawful and properly managed. Individual’s rights and privacy need to be
respected to maintain trust and a balance needs to be reached between the
need to share information to provide a quality service and the protection of
confidentiality.

As a consequence a Data Exchange Agreement (DEA) has been drawn up
between the Northampton Anti-Social Behaviour Unit and its partner agencies

Page 7 of 18 vers-mar06



enabling the lawful exchange of personal information on both perpetrators and
victims of anti-social behaviour to routinely take place.

SUPPORT FOR VICTIMS AND WITNESSES

The need to provide support to victims and witnesses of anti-social behaviour
is seen as an important feature of this strategy. The council, and in particular
the ASBU, has established good links with Northamptonshire Victim Support
which is prepared to accept direct referrals of victims and witnesses from the
ASBU. Additionally the Witness Support Service will provide specialist support
to witnesses who need to attend court to give evidence in cases of anti-social
behaviour.

The ASBU is committed to the support of all victims and witnesses of cases of
anti-social behaviour and case managers will make regular contact with them
to provide information, advice and support. The ASBU will also make
provision for panic alarms, mobile telephones or covert cameras to be
available where appropriate. A ‘Witness Support Protocol’ has been drawn up
in support of this commitment to victims and witnesses.

Northampton Borough Council and the ASBU will continue to work with other
stakeholders to develop and implement procedures to ensure that adequate
measures are in place to provide practical support to victims of anti-social
behaviour. The work will be undertaken on both an individual case basis to
respond to specific needs and also at a strategic level. It is envisaged that in
many cases, existing arrangements and resources will be used in this
process.

OPTIONS AVAILABLE

The options available to resolve problems of anti-social behaviour are detailed
below. It is important to appreciate that these may be used in a variety of
ways, either singly or collectively, rather than representing a step by step
guide or an incremental approach. It is essential that each case be dealt with
on an individual basis. This is in order to resolve problems in the most
appropriate way whilst having due regard to the specific circumstances,
rather than adopting a blanket approach.

The council recognises that in certain cases it will not be appropriate to take
action (or at least the action requested), for example where there are
opposing views and conflicting evidence, or where to do so would adversely
affect risk management arrangements. In these and in other cases, in addition
to the options described, information will be given about how to obtain advice
on the possibility of complainants taking their own legal action if they choose
to do so.

1. Housing Enforcement of Tenancy Conditions (to be read in conjunction
with the NBC Housing Management Services Nuisance and Anti-Social
Behaviour Policy).

This option applies to action taken by the council to enforce its own tenancy
conditions and also action by other registered social landlords (RSL’s).

Page 8 of 18 vers-mar06



In all instances, where perpetrators of anti-social behaviour are identified,
housing officers will forward details to the Northampton Anti-Social Behaviour
Unit which will record the information and, in consultation with our partners,
consider taking additional action where appropriate.

Where legal action is being considered by a landlord in order to enforce
tenancy conditions, good quality evidence is essential. This evidence can be
from other residents, housing officers, other agencies such as the police,
video and still photography and in exceptional circumstances professional
witnesses can be used.

Where action by other landlords under their tenancy conditions is necessary,
council officers will involve and liaise with the landlords concerned as
appropriate, in order to enlist their help and support in tackling the problem.

Re-possession by the council of dwellings within its ownership will only be
considered where:

* All other options have failed or are inappropriate AND

* There have been sustained and very serious breaches of tenancy, or
instances of violence, threats of violence, racial or other forms of
harassment or severe damage to property.

2. Police Action

Northamptonshire Police will record as incidents all reports of anti-social
behaviour and nuisance that are made to them. Many of the incidents that the
police are called to will not be criminal in nature, but may adversely affect
residents’ quality of life.

In all instances where perpetrators of anti-social behaviour are identified,
police officers will forward details to the Northampton Anti-Social Behaviour
Unit which will record the information and, in consultation with other partners,
consider taking action where appropriate. In relation to juvenile perpetrators
(17 years and under) the ASBU will make contact with the young person’s
parents or carers to inform them of their involvement in any incidents that
have come to police attention and advise them of potential future actions that
could be taken against their child (e.g. ABC or ASBO).

Details of persons who repeatedly come to the attention of the police in
connection with anti-social behaviour or nuisance are shared with the ASBU in
order that joint action may be considered to deal with their actions. This is
particularly useful when any of the parties involved are council tenants.

The police will also take the lead on making applications to the courts for
Crack House Closures and for implementing Dispersal Orders, but these will
be done in consultation with the council and with the active participation of the
ASBU.

Page 9 of 18 vers-mar06



3. Environmental Health Action

The council has a duty to investigate complaints of statutory nuisances such
as noise, smells, fumes or unhealthy conditions and to take the appropriate
enforcement action if a nuisance is established. The remedy for this is to
serve notice and if the problem continues, prosecution in the Magistrates
Court. Officers must also witness a significant nuisance or be able to
demonstrate credible evidence, before action is possible.

In all instances where perpetrators of anti-social behaviour are identified,
environmental officers will forward details to the Northampton ASBU which will
record the information and, in consultation with partners, consider taking
additional action where appropriate.

Evidence collection may include the use of noise monitoring equipment and
the deployment of a duty officer on an out of office hours emergency rota. It is
also essential that occupiers log details of evidence and they are prepared to
appear in court as witnesses, in order to prove that someone is actually
suffering nuisance.

Direct action to seize noise making equipment or to silence alarms may also
be taken in appropriate cases. Exercise of these powers frequently relies on
the cooperation and/or support of other agencies, in particular the police and
the Magistrates Courts in granting warrants.

4. Injunctions

Injunctions are a remedy, that are available to the council, other landlords in
the public and private sectors, businesses and private citizens.

In essence, an injunction is a Court Order that requires the person(s) named
either to do, or refrain from doing, certain specified acts. Failure to comply
with an injunction can result in a fine and sometimes imprisonment

Injunctions are particularly appropriate where:
= Swift action is required
» Eviction and other remedies are not appropriate
= Sustained and serious problems have occurred

The use of injunctions will be considered by the council where the authority
has a landlord or other interest, where specific and serious problems are
experienced and other options have either failed or are not appropriate.

In situations where the council is the landlord and where there has been the
use or threat of violence, the council may request that the court attach a
power of arrest to the injunction, giving the police the power to arrest persons
who are suspected of breaching its terms.

The use of injunctions as a remedy will also be considered where necessary
and appropriate, to respond to instances of harassment or intimidation of
council staff, members or agents of the borough council.

Page 10 of 18 vers-mar06



5. Protection from Harassment Act 1997

Northamptonshire Police, where necessary, have recourse to use the
‘Harassment Act’ which allows for officers to arrest and interview offenders
who “pursue a course of conduct, which amounts to harassment of another
party”.

This law was originally designed to tackle “stalkers” but has been successfully
used in Northampton to deal with nuisance repeatedly directed at individual
tenants and to deal with youths who have caused nuisance to such a degree
that it has seriously affected the quality of life of Northampton residents.

Following conviction a restraining order can be applied for by the police
restricting an offender’s future behaviour.

6. Anti Social Behaviour Orders (ASBOs)

Anti Social Behaviour Orders or ASBOs were introduced in the Crime and
Disorder Act and came into force on 1st April 1999. They are designed to
tackle persistent and serious anti-social behaviour in communities, ranging
from patterns of behaviour by unruly youths to serious harassment. They are
Civil Orders that are preventative and can prohibit individual(s) from
continuing to act in an anti-social manner.

Before an ASBO can be applied for, the police, local authority and other
statutory and voluntary organisations must consult in each case, in
order to consider whether it is appropriate to make an application.

ASBOs can only be applied for by either the police or local authority and once
in place will last for a minimum period of two years. Application is to the
Magistrates Court and the civil burden of proof applies. However it is still
imperative to have good quality evidence and/or witnesses who can identify
the perpetrators. A breach of the terms of an ASBO constitutes a criminal
offence, carrying a penalty on conviction of imprisonment (not exceeding five
years), or a fine, or both.

The council will continue to work closely with the police and other relevant
agencies wherever individual cases of possible ASBOs are being considered.
Protocols to achieve this have been developed and implemented as part of
this strategy.

7. Anti-Social Behaviour Orders on Conviction (CRASBOSs)

The Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003 makes provision for ASBOs to be applied
for on conviction for a substantive offence where anti-social behaviour was
evident in the commission of the offences for which the offender is on trial.

This application can be made at both the Magistrates and the Crown Courts.
If, however, the offender is acquitted of all charges the CRASBO cannot be
applied for at that hearing.

The grounds for the application need to be explained to the court and must be
relevant to the offence(s) charged. The conditions requested must reflect this

Page 11 of 18 vers-mar06



and correspond directly to the grounds, which can include previous
convictions of the offender.

Because of the direct link to the criminal trial prosecution lawyers from the
Crown Prosecution Service will deal with the CRASBO application in court. A
protocol between the CPS, the police and Northampton Borough Council is
being developed to take account of this.

8. Acceptable Behaviour Contracts (ABCs)

An Acceptable Behaviour Contract (ABC) is seen as a useful and practical
alternative to ASBOs, as another means of controlling and responding to
instances of anti-social behaviour. ABCs have the advantage that they can be
implemented very quickly and, in the case of juveniles, can also seek to
actively engage the youth’s parents in the process, in order to act as an
additional deterrent to help prevent further instances of anti-social behaviour.

ABCs have no legal basis in law and there are no sanctions available should
any individual decline to sign up to one. However should this be the case or
should anyone break any of the conditions of an ABC, this can be used as
evidence in any future application for an ASBO.

All ABCs should be drawn up in agreement and in consultation with the ASBU
which will be able to provide advice and guidance on the prohibitions. The
ASBU will, in most circumstances, also be involved in the signing and service
of the ABC on the recipient.

Whilst the signing of an ABC will be entirely voluntary, a refusal to sign will be
an important indication of the youth’s future intentions, particularly as the
terms of the agreement will include an undertaking not to carry out specified
anti-social acts in future.

It is expected that an ABC will last for six months in most cases, with a review
taking place after three months.

9. Environmental Improvements

In some cases it may be possible to deter anti-social behaviour or reduce the
likelihood of it occurring by altering or improving aspects of the physical
environment. In particular this approach may be appropriate where problems
occur in neighbourhood and town centre shopping areas, recreational,
housing and other locations where the council has an interest.

Examples of this are changes to the features of communal or landscaped
areas, closing off alleyways, the use of vandal resistant materials or
components and the installation of door entry systems and CCTV and the
introduction of traffic calming measures.

The council will consult with other landlords, business interests, stakeholders
and residents as appropriate to identify and implement practical solutions to
such problems where it is feasible and cost effective to do so and there is a
likelihood of these measures proving effective.

Page 12 of 18 vers-mar06



10. Community Development

Where problems develop which could have wider community implications, the
council will consult with the local community and other stakeholders to
consider how these might be overcome. ldentification of these issues is key to
a swift resolution, and there is a need to work closely with our partners and
recognise emerging patterns of anti-social behaviour at an early stage.

The council will seek to co-ordinate and manage this process through its
community development and/or housing management staff as appropriate.

11. Community Involvement

Whilst action by the statutory and voluntary agencies will play a major part in
controlling and preventing instances of anti-social behaviour, communities,
victims and witnesses also have a critical role to play by:

= Not accepting or tolerating anti-social behaviour

» Personally challenging and confronting instances of ant-social
behaviour where it is appropriate to do so. In particular the council
recognises that many instances of anti-social and unacceptable
behaviour can be dealt with quickly and effectively by informal
agreement between the parties concerned

» Reporting instances of anti-social behaviour which remain unresolved
to the council, the police and other relevant agencies

= Observing and recording full details of all incidents of anti-social
behaviour and supplying this information to the agencies concerned

» Making statements and appearing in court to give evidence if and when
required

It has to be appreciated that frequently it will not be possible for the council,
the police and other agencies to pursue and sustain effective action without
the involvement, support and co-operation of individuals or groups within the
local community.

12. Neighbourhood Wardens

The council has appointed a number of ‘accredited’ neighbourhood wardens
to cover various wards in the borough. The wardens work closely with the
local community helping to reduce crime and the fear of crime. The wardens
also identify and report instances of anti-social behaviour and other problems
to the appropriate agencies, enabling them to respond quickly and effectively.

The wardens help to deal with the results of certain anti-social behaviour at an
early stage, such as removing graffiti and broken glass and are the “eyes and
ears” of local agencies on the ground. It is anticipated that they will play a
significant role in helping to deter and discourage incidents of anti-social
behaviour occurring in the Borough of Northampton.

The neighbourhood wardens also help to encourage communities to accept
Page 13 of 18 vers-mar06



responsibility for the areas in which they live and to take pride in the
maintenance and improvement of those areas.

13. Introductory Tenancies

The implementation of Introductory Tenancies came into being in April 2005.
This applies to all new council tenants other than those who move via
transfers and mutual exchanges. The use of introductory tenancies makes it
easier for the council to recover possession, where serious instances of anti-
social behaviour and other major breaches of tenancy occur within the first
year of tenancy. Introductory tenancies also provide a positive message to
both new and existing tenants that anti-social behaviour will not be tolerated.

MEASUREMENT OF THE PROBLEM

The council, the police and other agencies already record cases of anti-social
behaviour in a variety of ways for their own monitoring and management
purposes. It is recognised that many of these cases will be duplicated (i.e.
reported by several different people and/or reported to more than one
agency). Itis not considered feasible or necessary to attempt to reconcile or
amalgamate these systems.

However, in order to monitor and measure the effectiveness of the strategy
relevant agencies will be requested to provide details of incidents of anti-
social behaviour reported to them. Data will be kept by the Anti-Social
Behaviour Unit to record the number of occasions when a multi-agency
approach is pursued, the outcomes and whether the action taken has been
successful in resolving the problem.

This data will also include the number of ABCs signed, the number of ASBOs
and CRASBOs obtained, the number of Youth Dispersal Orders, the number
of crack house closures and any other action taken in respect of anti-social
behaviour. The data collected will enable the effectiveness of the multi-agency
approach and specific strategic options to be evaluated and reviewed.

The ASBU will also monitor all cases of anti-social behaviour that are referred
to them and provide information on the effectiveness or otherwise of action
taken.

The ultimate aim of the council’s strategy is to ‘improve the quality of life for
the people of Northampton’ by working in partnership to reduce anti-social
behaviour. In addition to the actions taken, the success or otherwise of the
council, in this regard, will be measured by a reduction in the number of
reported anti-social behaviour incidents.

REVIEW OF THE STRATEGY

This strategy will be reviewed at two yearly intervals, or in the light of
significant changes in legislation or best practice, whichever occurs first. The
review process will include consultation with partner agencies and other major
stakeholders.

Page 14 of 18 vers-mar06



CONSULTATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS AND OTHER AGENCIES

Consultation will be undertaken concerning the provisions of the strategy as
follows:

=  Community Safety Information Sharing Group (NBC)
» With partner organisations and other major stakeholders.
= With Overview & Scrutiny
= With the Northampton Community Safety Partnership
The strategy will be revised and updated as necessary in the light of
comments received.
PUBLICITY
It is intended that the introduction of the strategy will be publicised via:
= A press release
= An article in Housing Matters

»= The provision of copies to partner agencies and other major
stakeholders

* Northampton Borough Council Website

= Northampton Now

= Publication of specific cases through media releases

DOCUMENTATION

Copies of the policies and protocols referred to in this strategy can be
obtained, upon request, from the Northampton Anti-Social Behaviour Unit.

Page 15 of 18 vers-mar06



KEY CONTACTS

Northampton Anti-Social Behaviour Unit
Cliftonville House

Bedford Road

Northampton

NN4 7NR

Crime & Disorder Team Leader: Lee Owens
Case Managers: Nicky Trafford
Nuala Faulder
Rodger Partington
Steve Gilbert (seconded police officer)

Telephone: 01604 838163 Fax: 01604 838143
E-mail: asbu@nothampton.gov.uk

ABBREVIATIONS USED IN DOCUMENT

ABC Acceptable Behaviour Contract

ASBO Anti-Social Behaviour Order

ASBU Northampton Anti-Social Behaviour Unit
CCTV Close Circuit TeleVision

CPS Crown Prosecution Service

CRASBO Anti-Social Behaviour Order linked to a Criminal Conviction
DEA Data Exchange Agreement

NASBAG Northampton Anti-Social Behaviour Action Group

NBC Northampton Borough Council
PCSO Police Community Support Officer
RSL Registered Social Landlord

SLA Service Level Agreement

Page 16 of 18 vers-mar06



ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR STRATEGY

ACTION PLAN
Objective Actions Lead Timescale Measurements
1. To identify 1. Maintain close liaison | Northampton | Ongoing No. of “hot spots”
anti-social with partners ASBU identified
behaviour “hot 2. Collate all anti social
spots” and take | behaviour data No. of case conferences
positive 3. Convene case called
remedial action | conference when
appropriate No. of case referrals as a
4. Make best use of all result
available legislation
2. To actively 1. Maintain close liaison | Northampton | Ongoing No. of “problem”
identify potential | with partners ASBU individuals identified
“problem” 2. Collate all relevant
individuals for complaints, information No. of case referrals as a
intervention and intelligence result
3. Utilise all available
resources to provide
the most appropriate
intervention
3. To Develop a | 1. Work in partnership Northampton | Completion | Agreed protocol accepted
CRASBO 2. Utilise all available ASBU/CPS | by May 2006 | by all relevant agencies
Protocol with information
the Crown 3. Ensure use of “Best
Prosecution Practice”
Service
4. To provide 1. Develop an anti- Northampton | Training Completion of anti-social
relevant training | social behaviour ASBU package by | behaviour training
for partners and | training package May 2006 package
other NBC 2. |dentify and ongoing
departments agencies/departments No. of
requiring training agencies/departments
3. Training delivered by identified as requiring
Anti Social Behaviour training
Unit Staff
No. of training inputs
given
5. To work 1. Hold regular Northampton | Ongoing No. of NASBAG meetings
closely with our | NASBAG meetings ASBU held
partners, 2. Establish working
utilising existing | protocols No. of case referrals
working 3. Encourage a high

protocols, to
deal effectively
with anti-social
behaviour
issues

standard of referrals

4. Utilise legal services
at every opportunity

5. Make best use of
intervention work

No. of liaisons with
legal/CPS

No. of cases taken to
Court

Page 17 of 18

vers-mar(06




Objectives Actions Lead Timescale Measurement
6. To develop 1. Produce an agreed Lee Owens/ | Implemented | Completion of framework
an intervention | framework for Brian by May 2006
programme for | intervention by U-Turn | Bodsworth Evaluated by
families at risk 2. Obtain sufficient (U-Turn) May 2007 Sufficient funding
of anti-social funding to enable work obtained
behaviour to be done with 10
requiring a families in first year
higher level of 3. Northampton ASBU
intervention to identify families
4. Implement No. of families identified
programme
5. Monitor and evaluate
after 12 months
7. To provide 1. Develop Northampton | April 2006 Completion of
adequate witness/victim support | ASBU and ongoing | witness/victim support
support to all procedures for ASBU procedures
victims and 2. ASBU Case
witnesses of Manager to provide No. of contacts with
anti-social victim/witness with witness/victim
behaviour cases | point of contact within
five days of referral No. of cases referred to
3. ASBU Case victim support
Manager to maintain
regular contact with
victim/witness and keep
updated on case
progress
4. Consider referral to
Northampton Victim
Support on every
occasion
5. Ensure other
adequate support is
provided
8. To contract a | 1. Bid for funding made | Peter In place by | Sufficient funding
mediation and response awaited Haytack June 2006 obtained
service as an 2. Agree service (Housing
alternative to provider Services) Completion of agreed

legal action in
neighbour
disputes where
anti-social
behaviour is a
potential
outcome

3. Draw up SLA

4. Provide training for
key employees

5. Put monitoring
arrangements in place

SLA
No. of persons trained

No. of times mediation
service used

Page 18 of 18

vers-mar(06




nda lfem 1]

Name of Committee Neighbourhood Management
CABINET {incorporating Neighbourhood
Renewal)

Directorate: Finance, Governance & e Neighbourhood Management
Citizens principles for Northampton
Corporate Manager: Thomas Halil * :2ghboumood Management

as
Date: 3 July 2006 o Deployment of resources

¢ Implementation

Report Title Neighbourhood Management for Northampton ]
Key Decision YES

1. Recommendations

That councillors;

1.1 Agree the Neighbourhood Management principies for Northampton

1.2 Agree that the Neighbourhood Management model for Northampton will
be based upon the Local and Area Neighbourhood Approach (LANA).

1.3 Agree the Neighbourhood Management areas as specified within the
report

1.4 Agree that NBC officers with the guidance of the Local Strategic
Partnership (LSP) and the Safer Stronger Communities Board {(SSCB)
work with NCC, the police and other agencies to align and deploy known
resources to target the identified Neighbourhood Management areas
(incorporating the Neighbourhood renewal areas in the town).

1.5 Note the outline implementation plan

2. Summary

2.1 Neighbourhood Management as an approach to delivering iocal services
across the town represents an opportunity to improve on what we do
presently, to bring about a more collaborative and performance focused way
of working with our partner agencies, and to give a more prominent role to
local pecple. _

2.2 It extends existing work with neighbourhood wardens and other locally-based
resources, allowing the targeting of efforts on those communities with the

IACommunity development\Cabinet report.2. NM.NR 3.7.06.doc Page 1 of 9

et & e b gt fe e e



23

2.4

25

greatest needs. This links clearly with this Council’s key priorities,
particularly around tackling crime and the ‘cleaner, safer, greener’ agenda;
regeneration; and involving local people in decision-making.

The proposed Neighbourhood Management model for Northampton is the
Local and Area Neighbourhood Approach (LANA). This operates on two
leveis of (1) more intensively targeted ‘Managed Areas’ and (2) ‘Co-
ordinated Areas’ for the rest of the town, depending on the levels of identified
need, and is based upon some key principies and characteristics.

Whilst it is intended for NM areas to eventually cover the whole town, the
initial roll out will see the focus on those parts incorporating Neighbourhood
Renewal areas and as detailed in appendix 2.

The Borough Council, with the Police and Northamptonshire County Coungil
have identified some key resources {o deploy into the new NM “teams’. For
The Borough Council these include Neighbourhood Wardens and Housing
Officers.

Report Background

3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

314

Neighbourhood Management Principles

Neighbourhood Management has been endorsed by this Council through the
Northamptonshire Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy (appendix 1
summarises the history), to tackle deprivation in the town using a multi-
agency approach.

Locally, Northampton has experience of successful CASPAR (Crime and
Anti-Social behaviour PARtnership) projects in targeted parts of the town.
Throughout the development of a local NM approach, partners have been
keen to build on the existing and well understood CASPAR practice, but with
a wider remit covering the whole range of deprivation.

Nationally, NM has been piloted in govemment Pathfinder areas. The
evaluation has shown that local people feel a higher level of engagement
and satisfaction with local service delivery, and services have been delivered
in a more efficient and cost effective way.

Successful Neighbourhood Management is based upon some key principles
and characteristics:

Someone who's job it is — a neighbourhood manager /co-ordinator

Must have community involvement

Must be a partnership approach

Must have a plan for the neighbourhood

Must have the tools to do the job, effective delivery mechanisms
5-15,000 population (Pathfinder experience shows these numbers give
critical mass — although only a guideline)

Neighbourhood management can’t do everything

Start work on where it is possible to demonstrate impact — nationally this
is cleaner, greener, safer (and housing) — clearer focus on smaller

IACommunity development\Cabinet report.2. NM.NR 3.7.06.doc : Page 2 of 9




3.2

3.21

322

3.3
3.31

3.3.2

3.4
3.4.1

3.5

3.6

3.6.1

number of issues, more obvious focus on service engagement
e Value in linking to schoois, Children’s Centres, and jobs or training
o Tackling Heaith inequalities — small scale and not mainstream

NM Model for Northampton

With the support of the Government Office of the East Midlands and a
government advisor on Neighbourhood Management, the proposed model
that is recommended for Northampton is the Local and Area Neighbourhood
Approach (LANA). This approach was received positively by Councillors
(from both Borough and County) who attended a workshop at the Guildhaill
on the 7" June 2006.

The LANA on which the Northampton model would be based is a proven
approach for successfully tackling deprivation within predominantly urban
areas. It has been piloted in Wolverhampton, and distinguishes between
Management and Coordination approaches in neighbourhoods:

Managed Areas
Managed areas have high levels of deprivation and include several priority

and borderiine neighbourhoods that need an intensive approach involving
focal communities supporting them to influence and monitor service delivery,
where there is major change required to reducing inequalities to the city
‘average’.

Managed areas are to be supported by a neighbourhood management
approach to joining up local services, developing agreements with service
providers to jointly plan and deliver services differently. There will be
responsibilities for delivering Neighbourhood Renewal Floor targets and
developing strategies that respond to local neighbourhood and town-wide
key targets.

Co-ordinated Areas

Co-ordinated areas in the main have less deprivation, no priority
neighbourhoods and therefore no responsibilities for directly delivering on
Neighbourhood Renewal Floor Targets, so a less intensive approach is
needed. This is more of a community development approach to supporting
local communities, local activists and Service Providers to work together to
develop and deliver co-ordinated local partnerships. Such an approach will
be expected to consider pockets of deprivation hidden within the wider
neighbourhood.

This approach supports Northampton’s ambition to roll out Neighbourhood
approaches across the Borough, but also reflecting on the need to initially
prioritise the most disadvantaged areas.

NM areas for Northampton

The maps provided at Appendix 2 outline the proposed areas for focus of
activity for Neighbourhood Management in the Borough. These were

IACommunity development\Cabinet report.2. NM.NR 3.7.06.doc ' Page 30of 9




3.6.2

3.6.3

3.7

3.71

3.7.2

3.73

374

developed through thorough consideration by a multi-agency group of
experts, and were considered and supported by councillors present at the
meeting on 7™ June 20086.

The initial focus of Neighbourhood Management will incorporate the
identified Neighbourhood Renewal Areas. These areas have been grouped
to form 6 Neighbourhood Management areas (not necessarily completely
aligned to ward boundaries):

Kingsheath and Spencer (plus Ryehill and small part of Duston)

Castle (incorporating the Spring Boroughs funded SOA)

St Davids (incorporating parts of Kingsthorpe)

Easffields / Headlands

Briarhill / Far Cotton/Delapre (plus part of Camphill)
Thorplands/Lumbertubs and parts of Beilinge

The areas are larger than neighbourhoods that communities would normally
identify. A feature of the approach will be that there may be a greater
emphasis on individual neighbourhoods or estates where peaks of
deprivation are most acute.

Governance

Clear and demonstrable govemnance arrangements need to be in place so
that accountability and performance can be monitored. With the clear
emphasis in both elements of the LANA on local people, there is a positive
and demonstrable leadership role for Councillors in both the Managed and
Co-ordinated approaches.

Further work is required to formally define the nature of the approach
undertaken in all of the 6 areas. Each area will need to determine it's own
management structure and as such there will be a rolling programme of local
negotiation to determine democratic involvement and community
engagement in each Neighbourhood Management Area.

However, the experience and method developed within the CASPAR
programmes, and the good practice of existing networks such as Workers
Forums and Local Alchemy groups will be looked at to be built upon rather
than duplicated or usurped.

The review of Area Partnerships currently underway within NBC will be able
to address the issues of local govemance that NM raise. There may be
anomalies within current Area partnership boundaries to be considered.

I\Community developmentiCabinet report.2. NM.NR 3.7.06 doc Page 4 0f 9




4.

Options and Evaluation of Options

4.1

42

43

The first option is to proceed as outlined in this report.
Evaluation. this approach is based on evaluated good practice from the
Government's ‘pathfinders’ and has been supported by stakehelders locally.

The second woutld follow the initial proposal devetoped from the NRS and
subsequently through Northampton. This suggested that additional
effectiveness could be secured through a split of the target areas in
Northampton into two areas East and West.

Evaluation: Subsequent consultation revealed that these areas were too
targe to be recognised as neighbourhoods by local residents and the
proposed governance structures duplicated and added complication to
existing neighbourhood engagement forums.

The approach proposed in this report has been supported through the
consuitation process, and is recommended for acceptance.

5.

Resource Implications (including Financial Implications)

5.1

5.2

53

5.4

The team for each area will inciude a Neighbourhood Manager, Community
Deveiopment support, Neighbourhood Warden and police Safer Community
Team. Resources for the management of the areas will come from the
alignment of resources from NCC, NBC and the Police, plus additional
resources which may be identified in the future not only from these
organisations, but others within the LSP.

Northampton Borough Council will initially contribute:
2 Neighbourhood co-ordinators
1 Community Development officer
Neighbourhood Wardens
Housing Officers
I Neighbourhood Project Manager (co-ordinator for Neighbour Element
funded area)
Plus support in the activities of:
» Monitoring and evatuation
e Accountable Body co-ordination
These resources will be made availabie through the realignment of existing
resources, deployed under new working arrangements. They do not
represent growth or additional funding.

Subject to approval it is understood that Northamptonshire County Council is
committing resources to provide:-

¢ A Senior Neighbourhood Co-ordinator

« 1 Neighbourhood co-ordinator

« community Regeneration officers

It is also understood that Northamptonshire Police are realigning some of their
resources to be co-terminus with the NM areas:

.

I\Community development\Cabinet report.2. NM.NR 3.7.06.doc Page Sof9




640 g obied 20p°90°2'E HN'WN "2 MO0 JBUITEALSIGOIASP AJUNWWOD)

sem Juswabeuep pooyinoqybisp Joj siesodoud pue uojdweyuoN
ul YN Buiuipno Jsded y ‘sepiwuwo ealy uojdweyuUoN

‘G0, JOQUIBAON pue 18goIo0
Ul SJSQIBW |BD0| PUE SE3JE YN Wol) sdnolb sjuspisal Wwoly
soAejuasaldal YIM play SBm LIONE)NSUOY) "UOHE)INSUCYD JUSPISaY

- play usaq sey
uonensuod oijioads uoidweyuoN Buimoiloj ay) Juswes.iby ealy
[e207 ay) pue ABajens |emausy pooyinoqyBieN epim Aluno?) ayi
Jo Juswdojaaap a8y} Ut play Sem jey} ucieynsucd ayj 0} uonippe u| [ewayxs

‘Buishol pue uonesausbay ‘Buluueld
Jusweabebu] uaznin wiol siebeuew ypim passnosip sjesodoid

pajiAUl @Jam
uoydweyloN o (Ajuno)) pue ybnolog) sioguawl pajodls j|B Uyoiym
0} 90, 8unf* ,/ UC p|ay sem jusiuebeueiy pooynoqybiaN ssnosip
0} JRUILLSS PUODSS Y "SEaJB N SE pa)iiuspl UsdQ 9ABY Seae
B8SOUM Slaquisw ypIm GO, Joquiaidas Ul pjay sem Jeulwas [eliu
Uy “pjay uoaq aAeY SIBUILLDS $18GIBU Z "SIBUILWAS S JaqUId

- [piBY usaq sey
uoRelnsuco dyivads uoidweyuoN Buimolio} ay) Juswealby ealy
[eoo ay; pue ABajens [emeuay pooyinoqybiaN apim AJuno?) ay)
JO juswidoieAsp 8y} Ul play sem jey) Uoge)nsucd sy} 03 Uolippe uj

fewajuy

(lew9)x3 pue feutiaju)) sesynsuon) i

‘Bupjew-uoisoap Jo Heay oY) 1B SSIJIUNWWOD 8y}
yiam ‘uonoe pejelisiul pue pejabise) ybnoiyy sy jo Anjenb senunwiwos saoldus pue
swajqold |eo0} apjor) 0} Ajlunpoddo eal e sapiaocid Juswabeuep pooyinoqubieN

-pausyibuadis Buiaq aie yy 9y} Uiylm pue |8Ad) jouno?) ybnolog yjoq

je sjuswabueLe Juswabeuew adcuewiousd ‘sysu asaly) ajebnw o} -diysiauped
216a1eNS 18207 3y yim Juswabebua aAnoaye Jo anssi Jejiwlis Jng Japeolq

au] sey se ‘Ja)siBal ysu [ejuswiiedsp juswebebu] uszyi) sy UM paijijuspl

uaaq sey 'swe|qoid [B00| 0} UOHUDYIE SADALS SS8| 92U PUR LOREUIPIO-09 JO 3or|
asned pinos yaiym ‘Ajpided ainyind pue spoyjaw Bunpiom mau Buippagquie jou Jo 3SIy

sanss| Aunpodd pue sy ‘9

‘[epow siys o3 Aosup
saaunosal Ajdde ueds Aay) Jayieym Buuspisuoo ale jsni| ale) Asewld 3yl S'G

BaJe | Ui JOJeulpio-0) poowinoqubioN

Ajuoud e se eate AN YOES LI SWEd) AJIUNMNLLIOY) JOJES | ises| Iy o




640/ abied 20P°90° L 'E HN'WN £ 1003 JaUiqe D\UBaWdo|aARD AJUNWILIO DY

‘UMOo] au} Jo ued ul jusweabeuew pooyinoqybisu

ybnouiy) sjgejieae spew Bulag si1 AsuUoW pun4 Jausals) ‘Joues|) ‘Jajes ouweds
‘sanss) asay) Buipioe) Je sAnosye Apenoined st uswabeuew pooynogybiau jey)
SMOUS Ualeasal — oAl 0} aoeld teusalb pue jojes ‘Isueao e uojdweyuon Bunen

‘lemausl pooytnogqubieu 1o} spiysa [ediound
e aq jjm Juswebeuew pooyinoqybiau — umo) ai jo uonelsouabal ay) Ul 1SeAUL

‘spooyinoqyBiau sisy) ut sanssi Buiajosas
pue BuiAjuspi Jo anuad auy) Je ajdoad |eoag)| ind o) paubisep si jJuswsbeusw
poownoqubBisu — paau Asyy) saolaes auy) apiaold pue sidoad [B00| 0) ualsI

:2-900¢ ue|d ajeiodio)) yelp oY) wol4

ueld ayesodion

Juswabeuews pooysnogqybiau jo peay ay je s1 Bupjew-uoisioap
pue JuawsAolduil 801AI9S [BI0] Ul SSJIUNWLICD 0 JUBWSAoAUl Juswabebu] uazy)
‘yoroudde wes) Lousbe-pnw syy ybnosy)
pasealoul 8q PINOYS SUSPIEM JO SSBUSAIDSYS ay) [adIAIeS Uapiepp poounogubiaN

ue|d AeAodsey

SaW02IN0 AJuoLd JoAljeg sjesodoid moH v

sanss| asueldwon K]

‘pieog ay} 0} uaxe) ale suodal Jeinbay ‘uejd uonoy
{emauay poowunoqybiaN auy Jo Asaalop oY) Joj yoeoudde Aouabe
MW siyy BulAlp Joj Alpgisuodsal sey 4§ uojdweyuoN-dst

-dnosg) sieo0 Jaiy) ayl Jo Bunesw

eje sfescdosd Jus.und sy} paJapIsuod aoljod anysuciduweylIoN
| JouIgeD
oy} 0) pejuasaid aq |im Juswebuele Juswebeuey poownoqybisN
o} [esodoud yuaund ayy Buuipne yodal y Yigl AInf —1suiged 99N

"AJOAIIBD S2IAISS BJEUIPIO-0D JO UOHEISPISLOD
oyvads yym Jids ease sy} suluLsap 0} 1$8q moy suiwsiap 0} Jaw
siouled ‘90, ABW ,9Z BU} UO P|ay Sem uoneynsuod Aousfe-In

‘GO JOQUIBAON | 84} U0 sajiluLIo]) Baly uoidWeyLIoN O] UaXE]




B: Other Implications

Other Strategies

Neighbourhood Management is an essential element of the Northamptonshire Local
Area Agreement, and is expected to be one of the vehicles for delivering its
outcomes.

Finance Comments

Initial discussions with the Community Development Manager have indicated that
no additional resources will be required to enable the dslivery of Neighbourhood
Management as described within this report. This will be achieved via the
reprioritisation of existing Council resources. Finance request that a resources plan
be provided to Finance for verification to ensure that the existing resources that are
to be utilised to achieve Neighbourhood Management are sufficient and that this wilt
have no detrimental impact on the budgets or service delivery of other services
within the Council.

Legal Comments

None

9. Background Papers

Title Description Source
Northamptonshire High-ievel strategy and principles NBC Community
Neighbourhood for evolving neighbourhood renewal | Development; NCC
Renewal Strategy in the county

Authors: Thomas Hall, Corporate Manager, ext. 7593

Sean Silver, Community Development Manager, ext. 8530

Name Signature Date | Ext.
Author Lo g}w 23f6fof] &30
Corporate Manager 7 1/‘ /a ¢| ~sd1
Director A/\/ M 23 /b /9 6 313
Monitoring Officer . B
or Deputy ' L/\JJ\ 21/ 233§
(Key decision only) {\0 / / é/j {
Section 151 Officer
or Deputy
| (Key decision only)

{\Community development\Cabinet report.2. NM.NR 3.7.06 doc Page 8 of 8



Appendix 1

History of Neighbourhood Management and Renewal in Northampton

tn 2003, in a report the Executive agreed the principle of multi agency work focused
in localities with the objective of tackling deprivation in Northampton. Subsequently,
the Borough Council signed up to the principles of the Northamptonshire
Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy, and began to develop a focused strategy for
Northampton (the Northampton element of the wider strategy).

Northampton Borough Council endorsed the Northamptonshire Neighbourhood
Renewal Strategy (NRS) as an element of the Local Area Agreement (LAA). A report
to Cabinet in January 2006 provided further detaits of the funded activity on the
Spring Boroughs Super Qutput Area. The Northamptonshire NRS follows the
National NRS ambition that “within 10 to 20 years, no-one should be seriously
disadvantaged by where they live”.

An NRS for Northampton has been drafted, and this identifies 23 Super Qutput Areas
(SOAs) in Northampton that fall within the 20% most disadvantaged in the country
{Index of Multiple Deprivation 2004). These SOAs were also identified by the NRS
as areas of focus. Additionally, Northampton has secured Safer Stronger
Communities funding under both the Neighbourhood and the Cleaner Safer Greener
element on the basis of one Super output Area in Castle ward falling within the 3%
most disadvantaged within the country .

The Local Area Agreement (LAA) supported by Northampton Borough Council was
agreed in March 2006, and this incorporates the multi agency approach to tackling
deprivation as detailed within the NRS. It further develops this way of working
together into the principle of Neighbourhocod Management (NM). The LAA commits
the Borough and the County to the implementation of neighbourhood renewal
approaches. The final and approved version of the agreement commenting This
builds upon approaches being developed in Corby and Northampton, the iatter
related to recently awarded Neighbourhood and Cleaner, Safer Greener
Elements funding, and will accelerate these localities in addition to developing
other target neighbourhoods. The LAA also outlines clear targets for the county in
terms of developing Neighbourhood Renewal action plans and partnerships, the
target areas within Northampton are reflected in these targets for 2006/07.

INCommunity developmertiCabinet report. 2. NM.NR 3.7.06.doc Page 9 of 9



Appendix 2
The attached map shows the proposed Neighbourhood Management Areas.

These are:
Kingsheath and Spencer (ptus Ryehill and smali part of Duston)
Castle (incorporating the Spring Boroughs funded SOA)
St Davids (incorporating parts of Kingsthorpe)
Eastfields / Headlands
Briarhill / Far Cotton/Delapre (plus part of Camphill)
e Thorplands/Lumbertubs and parts of Bellinge
and are outlined in green.

The yellow areas bounded by purple lines are the areas identified in the
neighbourhood renewal strategy, based on the most deprived Super Output Areas.

Document1 Page t of 1



B g~ ]

AL DOOL MM il W g R X U mioud a1 pe AL PUR JEAST diel

SRBULYI LEUONE C) IR Aoy ARG (D) SO0 Lt u Ay
10 A L 0 UML) W e Dariciin s 00 N . NS SOUIEAS DOGT. Skt L) Pl

D0000: 4 :TTVIS SOMEZ IZUYTD LING AST ST AR NMVYUD

SYIIVY TVAAINTE GOOHINOYHDIIN

ONILVEOJHOONI - SYIdV
INTWIDVYNYW GOOHINOIHDIIN




Agenda ltem 14

EXEMPT INFORMATION BY VIRTUE OF
PARAGRAPH(S)3 OF PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A
OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda ltem 15

EXEMPT INFORMATION BY VIRTUE OF
PARAGRAPH(S)3 OF PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A
OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972.

Document is Restricted



